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VISION

Making an impactful contribution to build a sustainable and
environmentally friendly world.

MISSION

To be a global market leader in resources recycling and environmental
protection, earning a quality return to shareholders through the
provision of quality products and services, by a group of motivated and
diversified staff force.

CULTURE

ommitted to building a long-term and win-win partnership
ding suppliers.
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A Snapshot of
CEG in 2018

— B /\FEGRIRFRHRE

ABOUT CEG B
Egzﬁﬁﬁgf%fgﬁﬂ%: Zigiyfﬁ

We are the only listed metal recycling corporation with major
operation bases across three continents (Asia, Europe and North
America) in the world. The Group is one of the largest metal
recyclers globally.

HMREHHE - —REBEEEMEMD BRI E= KM
LT BAEEBLEE -AEEREHEANEBERE 22—

In 2018, the Group processed and sold 5.29 million tonnes ,;""-". 4
of metals, contributing to an approximate saving of 4 million
tonnes of CO2, doing its part in creating a sustainable economy.
“EN\F AKEEREILHE 75298 WL E - 814 T 4400
B S i REIERHFELBEME T ER
MAINLAND CHINA
':F' A iﬂ.’r Taizhou production site
AMNEERH
& Largest importer of copper based scrap metal in China
i RESARESRBESBEANR

& Largest global scrap motor buyer in 2018
ZE ) \FERHEANEERRERS

Yantai production sites

BEatEEN

& Metal recycling operation: mainly engaged in metal trading

CEBOREYR T2LECEES

€ Waste-lubricant oil recycling operation: purification,
distillation and addition of lubricant additives to produce
5 lubricant base oil for lubricant oil production plants
JEE S B SR 75 R R ERFR DR S R AN - LA R
A TR AR E B B R R

Chiho Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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&€ Group headquarters
ESEEE T

© One of the few operators in Hong Kong that recycles
material within a closed-loop system
BB REANZ - ge i —EEIR A e 2 B U K B ¥k
LR —

© The first private company to obtain the Licence to Dispose of
Waste in Hong Kong
BBEE—RLECEESEREYMREER

: € Largest privately owned and most diversified and
comprehensive e-waste recycling centre in Hong Kong
. ERARAMEERZTREMNLEETREYLIKA L

s

GERMANY
{L% © Operates 85 yards covering South-West, Central and Eastern
e Germany

B85 (A5 BEEE A - h 3 RED

& Strongest region of operation in Scholz Group

I B X 5= B A 5% 8 RO AR 8 b [

© Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing with
all types of equipment including the most advanced post-
shredder material recovery technology
RiBE L (BIERLENFE D DBEIMN) REZ2EAU
5 DHEREIE RS

€ New fine metal sorting line was taken into operation in

2018
HREEEBOBRER T \FRBER

Technical Equipment £ i7 5% &5

Shredder #3HEH : 4
Shears B 1# :  >15
Employees & § : >1,900

EABREEERAT —B-NE&H 3



A Snapshot of CEG in 2018
B/ \FECRRFRISRE

USA ¢ 8 yards in operation
; EIESE T 15
= © 100% subsidiary
2EFAHE

& Business model includes brokerage and yard business
(including feeder yards)
XBEABEES RIS ER (BEHES)

© Supplier base with robust market position in selected areas

44 FB TR IR O 10 45 B TR

Technical Equipment +% i 5%

Shredder ##E#% : 3
Shears B £1#%: 3

Employees {& 8 : >310
POLAND
5&% &€ Operates 6 yards covering central and southern Poland, the

most industrialised and scrap rich areas
EiECEA LS BERMIELERRS ABEENRZHT
R

© Operations covering full scope of collection, sorting and

processing with all types of equipment
REE S SESHERETEAWE 98 REIR R

Technical Equipment £ /7 5% 45

Shears BJE1#: 5
Employees f& & : >140

4 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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BR it R

CZECH REPUBLIC
B

A Snapshot of CEG in 2018
-/ \FECRIRFRIFRE

© Operates 15 yards
EiEI5ET%

© Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in Austria
BN EEBECBEENMISEEE

© Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group
eIkl SR AVAS LN 3

€ Sourcing subsidiary in Hungary
AL 7 M B BREE F 2 )

& Strong track record in project business (e.g. power plant
dismantling)

BA X% (PINEB/HFRE) REHR

Technical Equipment +x1i7 5% 1

Shredder ) HE#E : 2
Shears BTH]#: 6
Employees {& 8 : >300

€ 100% subsidiary
=B SFANE

€ 61 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and Prague area
BEF B NRA R RAAAR MR H61E T 5

© A very strong market share in ferrous market (covering both
old scrap and new scrap market)
REECEMS OREERER KHER M%) FEmishn 5
T h A

© Business model is comparable with Germany with a dense
yard network including a large number of feeder yards and
several processing yards
HEFEBENEHER  IFLEHHES 215 % EH
B35 & % E 0 T35

Technical Equipment £ 117 5% &5

Shredder $3 7 # : 2 (one newly refurbished)
(—&E8H)
Shears f41#%: 5
Employees (& § : >300

BEABRREBARAR —FT—/\FF®R 5



A Snapshot of CEG in 2018
B/ \FECRRFRISRE

SLOVENIA
Hi g # e a2

' ROMANIA
= At

6 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018

€ 100% subsidiary
2EFRA

& Operates 18 yards
ZE 185

& Strong non-ferrous operations

EEsBEGIER

© Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets and
processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry and old
scrap)
Ml R THME EmBERMIRNABEZEHE
7 (TERER REER)

© Footprint for paper and plastic recycling
W R ALGR R 2B B Bl U

Technical Equipment +x i 3%

Shredder e : 1
Shears B 4] # : 3
Employees (& & : >310

&€ 27 yards in operation
EIE27 T

© Joint venture with two experienced local business partners

EMAEHEREENEBEHAR LS ELE

© Covering the heavily populated and well industrialised areas
in this country

BEZRAOREZEERSEIE(LHNBER

© Market attractive due to strong supply from industry as well
as presence of old scrap

TEERREERMEREA Ti5ARS N
© Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap exports
A+ HA SRR E H A RER

© High non-metals share of sales (including significant portion
of wood, paper and plastics)

FeB (BEREAM BRERZB)NHERELS

Technical Equipment £ 1i7 5% &5

Shredder 3 FEHE : 2
Shears B9 ] # : 6
Employees & 8 : >570



A Snapshot of CEG in 2018
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DENMARK € 100% subsidiary
g 2EFRAH
¢ 4 yards in operation
EEAMETS

© Business model with feeder and production yards

REMFEEIS R AEETHHEBRN

© Deep sea harbour yard (replacement of one current yard) has
planned to be taken into operations in late 2019
AFEIR - NEFERAZEE—([AREELS (BK—{ER
1)

€ Medium potential in non-metals

BEBRRIFCBEBNEN

© Efficient production
B E

Technical Equipment + i 3% 4

Shears BY ] # : 2
Employees (& & : >35
MEXICO © Owns 14 yards

%ﬁ%’r wE14ETS

€ 50% joint venture with a local co-shareholder
B — 2 E i R L ES0% RS &R

© Strong presence in northern part of Mexico, with strong
industrial supplier base

REBFEFILBATHEEXREY BEBROTEHER

© Strong supply from industrial accounts made operations
more robust than peers in North-America
RERZIETFPHHESERSERREIEMN—RRAZE
ERINE:)

Technical Equipment £ /i7 5% 25

Shredder 7 : 1
- Shears BT 14 : 2
. Employees €& : >300

EABREMERAT —B—N\EFEH 7



Financial
Highlights
Al e

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2018 2017 #wm,
—E-N\F —E—+F CRA)
Operating results (HK$M) WEEE (BEBT)
Revenue g
Asia CEM 3,751.4 4,813.6 (22.1%)
Europe B 14,883.1 11,626.4 28.0%
North America =M 2,278.3 2,051.0 11.1%
Total @5 20,912.8 18,491.0 13.1%
Gross profit EF 1,684.1 2,329.0 (27.7%)
Gross profit before adoption of KB BT FHREER
HKFRS 152 155 AT E R 2,304.7 2,329.0 (1.0%)
Segment profit/(loss) DEbE A, (EE)
Asia CEM 275.2 295.9 (7.0%)
Europe B 443.5 460.3 (3.6%)
North America b M 8.4 (2.5) 436.0%
Unallocated FOHE 118.4 169.8 (30.3%)
Profit before interest and B ) B K 75 38 A1 g
tax (EBIT) 845.5 923.5 (8.4%)
Finance costs, net B ISR AN BR (376.1) (377.3) (0.3%)
Profit before income tax K BT 15 B A1 i ) 469.4 546.2 (14.1%)
Income tax expense Frieiimx (70.4) (110.6) (36.3%)
Profit for the year F 75 ) 399.0 4356 (8.4%)
Financial position (HK$M) Mg (BEEET)
Cash generated from operations KEEEMEHNRE 674.0 850.3 (20.7%)
Cash and pledged bank deposits Re ke WIRRITER 1,010.7 1,071.4 (5.7%)
Total assets EEBE 11,388.9 12,093.7 (5.8%)
Equity attributable to RRBIREREER
shareholders of the Company 5,175.3 5,073.1 2.0%
Per share data (HK$) FRER (FB)
Earnings per share attributable to v &) B& 5 fE (L
shareholders of the Company BREA 0.25 0.26 (3.8%)
Shareholders’ funds per share BREERES 3.22 3.15 2.2%

8 Chiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2018



Financial Highlights
SRS

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2018 2017 #wm,
—E-N\F T CRA)
Key ratios (%) FEMBLEE (%)
Gross profit margin XS 12.6 (4.5%)
Gross profit margin before PN AE BB 153 E 228
adoption of HKFRS 152 1555 A #) F I &3 11.0 12.6 (1.6%)
Net profit margin' Fom ) & 2.3 (0.4%)
EBIT/Revenue B %18 K B T8 B
k| 5.0 (1.0%)
Return on shareholders’ funds? &R & & Bl 1) K2 9.3 (1.5%)

Revenue in Last 5 Years
BEAFEWRE

HKE'M
BEET
25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

W Asia Z2Ml ™ Europe BUM
® North America 3£ 3M

as a percentage of revenue

Gross Profit (Loss) and Gross
Profit (Loss) Margin in Last 5
Years

BEEFEN (BFR)R
EF (FBE) =
HK$'M
HEBT
2,500 15%
12.60%
2,000 13:00% 159,
1,500 9%
6.80%
1,000 6%
500 3%
0 0%
-0.30%

-1.40% 29
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018®

Gross Profit/(Loss) B,/ &518)
—— Gross Profit/(Loss) Margin BFI,/ (E518) &

Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company !

Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit attributable to 2

shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds

3 This information illustrates the impact before the adoption of HKFRS 15 at the 3

only.

beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 for comparison purposes

Net Profit (Loss) and Net
Profit (Loss) Margin in Last 5
Years

BEREFEN (BB R

FEN (FE) X
HK$'M
BEBT
600 s30% 109 57"
400 0.0%
200 5.0%
0 =6l 100%
o0 Bol. 150%
(a00) 200%
(600) 250%
(800) 30.0%
(1,000) 35.0%
(1,200) +36:50% 400%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Net Profit/(Loss) 5%,/ (E512)
— Net Profit/(Loss) Margin SB35, (E518) =

)i ) R AR IR AN B A SR A AU G MR A Y B
DEEE

RRE € DM ERREA R T RIR M S F
HERESHWANLFE

AEMMERNBE-_T-N\F+-_A=+—RHL
MR FEFNRNE B ERE LD F 155K TH
TR EFERAE-

EeRREBERAT —E-N\FER



Chairman’s
Statement

FREHRS

In 2018, the situation of international politics and the world economy
was unstable. The intensified geopolitical differences and the revival of
global trade protectionism and the conceptions of anti-globalisation in
turn constituting a multilateral trade conflict centered by the China-
US trade dispute. Although the overall China’s economy was stable,
on the one hand, it faced the pressure from economic transformation
and upgrading. On the other hand, it was required to properly handle
and prevent the potential systemic risks brought by unreasonable debt
and economic structures. At the same time, the Chinese government
was firmly committed to promote two arduous programmes, namely
“to address overcapacity” and “the battle to defend the blue sky”, and
introduced new recycling import policy. The abovementioned changes
have brought challenges and pressure to the global recycling industry.

In a year with twists and turns, we marched forward despite all the
pressure and difficulties. Fortunately, the tendency of the recycling
industry and economy will not be changed by short-term events.
Countries worldwide still scrupulously abided by their undertakings to
climate change and the theme on promoting sustainable development.
In China, the government has formulated national development
strategy to give prominence to the concept of protecting green hills and
clear waters, strengthening circular economy, and green development.
In 2018, the recycling industry has gained attention locally and globally,
and the position of the recycling industry has elevated.

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”, “we” or “our”) has considered the rising
regional trade protectionism when formulating our strategies, makes
best use of the situation, adjusts our business layout and strategic
planning in a timely manner to adapt to the new situation. The Group
is mainly engaged in metal recycling and processing of ferrous and non-
ferrous metal such as steel, copper and aluminum. The metals produced
by the Company is mainly sold in local markets, which means that
recycled steel produced in Europe is sold in Europe and that produced
in America is mainly sold in America. The high tariff imposed by Europe
and America on the lower priced steel from China to protect local steel
industries has indirectly helped local recycled steel industries, and from
which the Group has benefited. However, the rising trade protectionism
will harm economic growth in general. The uncertainty brought by
trade disputes has a ripple effect across the economy which in turn
softened the demand from customers.

10 cChiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Although the US government has withdrawn from the Paris climate
agreement unilaterally, governments in the Eurozone are consistent
with each other to defend this agreement. The European Commission
is working on legislation to require members of the European Union to
meet the emission reduction target under the Paris climate agreement.
The carbon tax issue in Europe has been raised for several times since
2017, imposing considerable pressure on steel factories. Many of our
customers are steel companies in Europe and America. It is expected
that steel mills in Europe will accelerate the process of converting their
production (using blast furnaces) to short process (using electric arc
furnaces). Electric arc furnace short process steelmaking uses recycled
steel as its main raw materials. On the other hand, blast furnace
steelmaking requires iron ore, coking coal and steel scrap as raw
materials. We believe that this will increase the demand for recycled
steel in Europe. In China, being the world’s largest steel producer, it is
vigorously promoting energy conservation and emission reduction to
defend the blue sky, as such the production capacity of blast furnace
enterprises has been limited to some extent. Domestic large steel mills
also vigorously improving steel capacity by converting to electric arc
furnace steelmaking. Therefore, we expect a significant increase in the
demand for steel scrap.

The main product of our business in China is recycled copper.
Copper price is the barometer of the economy, and China is the
largest consumer of copper in the world. The slowdown of Chinese
economy was triggered by various external factors. To stimulate
economic growth, the Chinese government increased its investment
in infrastructure construction, which is beneficial to copper demand.
However, softer consumer demand and the sluggish construction
industry do not bode well for the copper demand. Facing high market
uncertainty, we will try our best to maintain a high turnover to avoid
risks. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to expand the high value
copper recycling business, as China is highly dependent on imported
copper and regardless of power grids, cartridge cases, circuit boards or
for new energy vehicles, there all exist tremendous demand for copper.
The Group will supply the PRC market with high-grade recycled copper
processed in the processing yards in Europe and North America and
yards to be set up in Southeast Asia. With the rising usage of copper in
China, there will be growth in copper scrap. In addition, the domestic
recycling industry is constantly integrating and consolidating, there will
be more copper scraps recycled through proper and legitimate channels.
We will take advantage of this opportunity to expand our market share
of local scrap copper recycling by leveraging our industry and market
experience accumulated over the years.

Chairman’s Statement

FERS
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Chairman’s Statement

FERS

2018 marked an important year for the recycled metal industry in
China. The import of the Category 7 solid wastes, including scrap
motors and cables, has been completely banned at the end of 2018.
The new policy has brought great uncertainty to traditional enterprises
which rely on imported materials. The Group’s operation in China
has been inevitably affected in the short term. In 2018, revenue from
the Group's European and North American operations accounted for
82.4% of the total revenue of the Group, while that of our operation
in China accounted for approximately 17.6%, down by 7.6% as
compared with 25.2% in 2017. However, with the introduction of the
new policies, the retirement and collection of scraps from the upstream,
as well as the demand for copper in the downstream domestic market
will remain unchanged. The Group has an extensive network of
collection and processing yards across Europe and North America. We
started mechanical processing and sorting of scrap motors in the yards
in the US and Europe, while our set up in Southeast Asia is intensively
under preparation and will be put into operation in 2019 successively.
At the same time, the Group will take advantage of the opportunity
rising from the consolidation of the local recycling industry to expand
our domestic scrap metal business in the PRC. With our strengths and
resources, the Group is able to sort out a new model of the global
supply chain for non-ferrous scrap with higher economic efficiency, and
further consolidate and enhance our strengths in this regard through
the transformation.

Upon approval by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the
PRC, the Group has officially begun the recycling of waste lubricants
in Yantai, Shandong Province, China since the beginning of 2018.
Recycled lubricants are hazardous wastes, the recycling of which
requires enterprises to meet relevant requirements and possess relevant
qualifications. We have received the Permit for Operation of Hazardous
Wastes ( {(fEMEEW4EFFAIFE) ) for our production site in Yantai
in the second half of 2017. This business has been developing steadily
with expanding scales, making our production site in Yantai the largest
site for lubricants recycling with advanced technologies in eastern and
central China. The Group believes that waste oil recycling industry has
a promising prospect in China and will gradually expand the business
to other provinces through our qualifications obtained and operational
experience accumulated.

12  Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018
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As for our recycled metal procurement and trading business in Hong
Kong, we have increased our sales of high-quality brass and red copper
to third parties, and served as the front end for our yards in Europe and
North America in exporting to China. Our trading department in Hong
Kong will act as a trading hub and an important channel connecting
our production sites in South and South East Asia with the PRC sales
network going forward.

In 2018, the Group has put lots of efforts on strengthening leadership. |
believe that under the leadership of the Group’s international executive
management team with rich industrial and professional experience, the
Group will upgrade and transform, achieve stable growth, and provide
returns to shareholders.

2018 ANNUAL RESULTS

The operating revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$20,912.8 million (2017: HK$18,491.0 million), which
increased by approximately 13.1% when compared to 2017.

The annual profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$401.2 million (2017: HK$426.8
million), which decreased by approximately 6.0% when compared to
2017. The basic and diluted earnings per share for 2018 are HK$0.25,
(2017: basic and diluted earnings per share HK$0.26).

REGIONAL PERFORMANCE
Europe and North America

In 2018, Europe and North America recorded a revenue of HK$17,553.2
million, representing an increase of 23.1% when compared to last year
(2017: segment revenue HK$14,260.6 million); and a segment profit of
HK$451.9 million, representing a decrease of 1.3% when compared to
last year (2017: segment profit HK$457.8 million). In the second half
of the year, the performance of this segment suffered from increased
transportation costs and delays in delivery due to one-off impact
brought about by the shortage of land transport capacity resulting
from the bumper agricultural product harvest in Austria and the Czech
Republic, as well as the shortage of shipping capacity caused by the
drought in Germany which led to declining water levels.

Chairman’s Statement

FERS
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Chairman’s Statement

FERS

Asia

In 2018, the revenue of the Asia region decreased by 22.1% to
HK$3,751.4 million when compared to last year (2017: segment
revenue HK$4,813.6 million), and a segment profit of HK$275.2 million
was recorded, representing a decrease of 7.0% when compared to last
year (2017: segment profit HK$295.9 million). The decline in results
of the Asia region was mainly attributable to the gradually contracted
import business in the second half of the year.

PROSPECTS

In 2019, after a year of strong growth in the global economy, we expect
to see a softer economic growth. In China, the government will adopt
various measures to stabilise the macro economy. On the other hand,
the difference of Sino-US trade negotiations in principle should have
been resolved, thus the trade war has a chance to come to an end.

The Group will continue to implement stringent risk management and
hedging policies on our business in this year, enhance the development
strategy of organic growth together with prudent mergers and
acquisitions, and expand its business scale gradually. On the whole,
the Group enjoyed an increasingly sound financial position, maintained
business growth, constantly improved its cash flow and lowering its
debt ratios to reduce finance costs. The note issued by the Group
in 2016 with a principal amount of US$200.0 million has also been
redeemed upon maturity through refinancing and own funds, and a
new round of financing was completed at a lower cost than before
even when the Federal Reserve raised interest rates. The management
remains cautiously optimistic about the long-term prospects of the
Group. At the same time, we are well prepared to cope with short-term
changes in the market in which we operate.
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Market outlooks of 2019 are divergent: some would think it will be
bumpier; while others would think it will be a head start for a decade
of accelerated growth. As an entrepreneur in the recycling industry,
in good times and in bad times, we stay pessimistically optimistic and
work earnestly. Sustainable development in the circular economy sets
the tone for future growth across the globe without boundaries. Given
this trend of development, our mission is turning waste into resources
and supplying the resources from presence to absence in efficient and
green ways. Looking ahead, we stride with tenacity to live up to our
expectations.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my heart-felt gratitude to the
members of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company and all our employees around the world for their loyalty,
efforts, professionalism and valuable contributions, and also to our
customers and partners for their priceless support and trust.

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion

and Analysis
EIEIB 51 am IR Sl

FINANCIAL REVIEW Ry CI=
Financial Overview HEHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF Increase/
_HK$M _HK$M (Decrease)
AEAT B8%E;  ®m/ORD)
Revenue U = 20,912.8 18,491.0 13.1%
Gross profit EH 1,684.1 2,329.0 (27.7%)
Gross profit ratio XS 8.1% 12.6%
Gross profit before RNBEP TGS ER
adoption of HKFRS 15 155 AT B A 2,304.7 2,329.0 (1.0%)
Gross profit margin before RNE BN RE %R
adoption of HKFRS 153 25155% Al B 7 &3 11.0% 12.6%
Other income H A 99.2 113.9 (12.9%)
Other income as a percentage of ~E MUK A(RRZA B DL
revenue - 0.5% 0.6%
Other gains, net H b U & 5058 269.0 237.1 13.5%
Net other gains as a percentage of JFE ARG M= E D L
revenue 1.3% 1.3%
Share of post-tax profit of an JEMREEE DB 7&’:}%@%
associate and joint ventures, net 180w B F 88 125.5 108.8 15.3%
Total operating expenses' ,@‘é BR@gE (1,332.3) (1,865.3) (28.6%)
Total operating expenses as a KEBREBERGERENE S
percentage of revenue 6.4% 10.1%
Total operating expenses before R4 E B B 75 3R &5 ¥ 8
adoption of HKFRS 153 FISRATR S & B A3 (1,952.9) (1,865.3) 4.7%
Total operating expenses before AN & & B 7% 3k 45 2 Al
adoption of HKFRS 15 as a FISRATH L E B
percentage of revenue? BEERENE D 9.3% 10.1%
EBIT R ) 2 B A I8 B g A 845.5 9235 (8.4%)
EBIT margin BR Il K B I8 Al ) 4.0% 5.0%
Finance costs, net B 75 Ak AN 7 5B (376.1) (377.3) (0.3%)
Net finance costs as %ﬁ‘%iﬂﬂ&?%ﬂﬁ%mﬁ’]ﬁ
a percentage of revenue 1.8% 2.0%
Profit before income tax Bk BT 1S B0 B 5 ) 469.4 546.2 (14.1%)
Income tax expense Fris i f &2 (70.4) (110.6) (36.3%)
Effective tax rate ERBE 15.0% 20.2%
Profit for the year F W A 399.0 435.6 (8.4%)
Net profit margin2 Fm &2 1.9% 2.3%
Profit attributable to: LA & 75 G & A
Shareholders of the Company AR AR 401.2 426.8 (6.0%)
Non-controlling interest JEVE R E (2.2) 8.8 (125.0%)
399.0 435.6 (8.4%)
1. Included distribution and selling expenses, and administrative expenses 1. BESERHER I FMITHRMAX
2. Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 2 RN R RRBEARFRREMEEFE RSN
as percentage of revenue DETE
3. This information illustrates the impact before the adoption of HKFRS 15 at the 3. ABMBMRBE-T - \F+—A=+—H
beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 for comparison purposes E@E%fg{ﬁ;@mﬁéﬁf% B 76 i A 2 A1 561 555 Al
ve- % i o

only.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstim R 5

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B e (48)

Revenue Wz

The Group recognised a record-high revenue in the year ended AEEEZE T \FILFEHPNRHEHK
2018. The revenue was approximately HK$20,912.8 million in 2018, #28#Tm - —ZZ— N\FH)HE 4 /4209181,280
representing an increase of approximately 13.1% compared to BB WM _-E—+5F47184189,1008/8 L&
approximately HK$18,491.0 million in the year of 2017. M4I13.1%

The increase in revenue was largely driven by the higher sales quantities ~ Y&sE 00 - = 2 R PBUNAIEE MK THE 238
in Europe and North America, which offset the decrease in the Asia & HE#H T M RAEKIE - AR TEHEERE
region. It was also attributable to the continuous recovery of the ferrous BB EECBERE T "FENEEH
and non-ferrous prices after they bottomed out in the fourth quarter of ~ E&FEIMEL N =T — \F L FH K

2016 and reached a four-year new high during the first half of 2018. MEHS °

Increase/
2018 2017 (Decrease)
—E-N\f “E-tF #i,/ (HD)

As a Asa

percentage of percentage of

total segment total segment
HK$M revenue HK$M revenue HK$M

B Lok e B paille
BEAT BENEIN BEAT BTNasl BEAT
Asia oM 3,751.4 17.6% 4,813.6 25.2% (1,062.2)
Europe B 15,166.5 71.2% 12,061.6 63.2% 3,104.9
North America =M 2,386.7 11.2% 2,199.0 11.6% 187.7
Total segment revenue P ELE 21,3046 100% 19,074.2 100% 2,2304
Inter-segment sales AEREEE (391.8) (583.2) 1914

Revenue Yoz 20,912.8 18,491.0 2,4218

ESBREBERAT —ZE-NFEH 17



Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for the financial year ended 2018 was HK$1,684.1 million,
a decrease of HK$644.9 million or 27.7% compared to HK$2,329.0
million recorded in the previous financial year. Gross profit margin for
the year decreased from 12.6% to 8.1%.

The gross profit and gross profit margin showed a significant fluctuation
from last financial year, which is a result of the adoption of the new
HKFRS 15 in 2018 whereby the outbound freight costs have been
reclassified from selling and distribution expenses to cost of sales.
Should such reclassification have not been made, the gross profit for
2018 would be HK$2,304.7 million and the gross profit margin would
be 11.0% on a like-for-like basis.

The decrease in gross profit on a like-for-like basis was mainly
attributable to higher transportation costs in the Europe region due to
shortage of railway and shipping transport capacity.

Profit before interest and tax (EBIT)/Margin

EBIT for the year ended 2018 was HK$845.5 million, a decrease of
HK$78.0 million or 8.4% compared with the previous financial year.
EBIT margin also decreased from 5.0% to 4.0%.

Total operating expenses were HK$1,332.3 million, a decrease
of 28.6% over the previous financial year, primarily due to the
reclassification of outbound freight cost from distribution and selling
expenses to cost of sales. The like-for-like total operating expenses
would be HK$1,952.9 million, an increase of 4.7% over the previous
financial year. Total operating expenses as a percentage of revenue on a
like-for-like basis also decreased from 10.1% to 9.3%.

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from HK$562.3 million
to HK$49.0 million (like-for-like: HK$669.6 million), a decrease of
91.3% compared with the last financial year (like-for-like: increase of
19.1%). As a percentage of revenue, distribution and selling expenses
decreased from 3.0% to 0.2% (like-for-like: slightly increased to 3.2%
of revenue).

B2 E st w5l

ISR (8)

ERERER
HE_Z-N\FLUBRFENEFA16E
841088t R E—WHRFEHKESMH23E
2,9008 7 TR L 6184,4908 B 70 5027.7% ©
ERNEFKRE12.6%EE81% °
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TTHR T \FRAFBEH B RS ER
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BT ATV ER EEFEB11.0% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstm R 51

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit before interest and tax (EBIT)/Margin (continued)

Administrative expenses decreased from HK$1,303.0 million to
HK$1,283.3 million over the last financial year. The decrease was mainly
from decrease in legal and professional fees but offset by increase
in salaries and benefits. As a percentage of revenue, administrative
expenses decreased from 7.1% 10 6.2%.

ISR (8)
BAERBIEARER, CBRR (F)
THRAY A E—ERFEN13E30088 T T
F£Z2=12188,3308 B e NEEBRMMNERE
MEESB R E®RES REF AT
TSI REN B D LLHR7 1% E
6.2% °

Increase/
2018 2017 (Decrease)
—E-0\f —E-tF #0,/ (BD)
Asa As a
percentage percentage
HK$M of revenue HK$M of revenue HK$M
BEEL FUENESL BEAT HUEMEDL BEBT
Distribution and selling expenses SHEREERS 49.0 0.2% 562.3 3.0% (513.3)
Administrative expenses ABAX 1,283.3 6.2% 1,303.0 7.1% (19.7)
Total @zt 1,332.3 6.4% 1,865.3 10.1% (533.0)
Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Earnings Per IR R PSR R E R 2R

Share

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 was HK$401.2 million, having decreased by
HK$25.6 million or 6.0% as compared to the last financial year. Net
profit margin also declined from 2.3% to 1.9%, mainly attributable to
the decline in the gross profit margin.

Taxation charges reduced from HK$110.6 million in the last financial
year to HK$70.4 million in the financial year of 2018. The effective
tax rate decreased from 20.2% to 15.0%. The lower taxation charges
and effective tax rate are resulted from tax optimisation strategies
implemented and settlement of tax disputes in the current financial
year.

Basic earnings per share for year ended 31 December 2018 were
HK$0.25 as compared to HK$0.26 in the previous financial year,
representing a decrease of 3.8%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group’s cash generated from operations before changes in working
capital for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$847.0 million,
a decrease of 11.3% as compared to HK$954.9 million in the previous
financial year. It was mainly attributable to the decrease in operating
profits.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2018 were HK$5,175.3 million,
an increase of 2.0% from HK$5,073.1 million as at 31 December 2017.
Shareholders’ funds per share increased by 2.2% from HK$3.15 to
HK$3.22.

The Group's financial resources remain stable and steady. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had cash, various bank balances and
pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$1,010.7 million, a decrease of
5.7% or HK$60.7 million as compared to HK$1,071.4 million as of 31
December 2017. It was mainly for repayment of external borrowings
and the needs in the working capital for expansion of business
operation.

Nevertheless, the current ratio increased from 1.12 as at 31 December
2017 to 1.62 as at 31 December 2018. Total external borrowings were
approximately HK$3,787.6 million (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$4,155.2 million). Such borrowings were mainly utilised for the
purchase of mixed recycle metal and working capital, and denominated
in Euro, U.S. Dollar and Renminbi. Approximately HK$1,757.9 million
(31 December 2017: approximately HK$2,412.7 million) of borrowings
are at fixed interest rates.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was 33.3%
(31 December 2017: 34.4%) which is calculated based on the total
borrowings divided by our total assets.

The Group has successfully obtained a syndicated term loan facility
of up to US$300.0 million during 2018 for a term of two years with
a lower financing cost for the refinancing of existing borrowings and
working capital needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstm R 51

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change

Inventories as at 31 December 2018 were HK$2,105.7 million, having
decreased from HK$2,338.5 million as at 31 December 2017. The
inventory turnover days for the financial year dropped to 42 days from
46 days as compared with last financial year. The improvement in
turnover days was mainly due to continuous improvement in inventory
and procurement management.

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2018 were HK$38.8 million,
as compared to the provisions of HK$21.2 million as at 31 December
2017.

ISR (8)

EEESE(t
R-E-N\E+-_A=+—BHEEA21E
570880 BN _E—+tF+=-A=+—H
#9231E3,8508 B LB ATRL D « RBT U EHY
FEREEHE ALK BB HFE L6
KEF TR - AEARNNETERANTFE
MBS RIS E o -

RZE—-N\E+_A=1+—BNGEEEER
380BB L MR _E—+tF+RA=+—
BB &R A2,1208 8 T °

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
All figures are in HK$M unless REEHBAN BT
stated otherwise NBEBATERT
Inventories & 2,105.7 2,338.5
Average inventories as a percentage FHEFERREB S T
of revenue 10.6% 11.1%
Turnover days AR 42 daysk 46 daysk

Net trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2018 were
HK$1,367.5 million, increased from HK$1,307.3 million as at 31
December 2017. Debtor turnover days for the financial year dropped
from 27 days to 23 days when compared with the last financial year.
The higher receivable balance as at 31 December 2018 was mainly due
to increase in revenue in the current financial year compared with the
last financial year. The Group adopts a tight management on credit
exposure.

FEHRERERFEAR T —tF+=
A=+—BM1B3ER0EBTENER -
—N\F+ZA=+—HM13{86,7508 5T °
B F— B RF AR L AN B BRAF T A E UER
FOAE B EM2TRTRE23R —T— )\ F
T A=+ BRERFELSIEN =2 H
AR B E S8 _E— B B E A8 N A
B ALBHEERRETRIEEE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-+t5F
All figures are in HK$M unless RRBEHAN MESHE
stated otherwise KB&BTERTR
Trade and bills receivables, net FE 5 MEEEKFIA 1,367.5 1,307.3
Average receivables as a percentage FHEBFIBRREE DT
of revenue 6.4% 7.5%
Turnover days EL =k 23 daysk 27 daysk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and bills payable as at 31 December 2018 were HK$1,042.9
million, as compared to HK$1,192.8 million as at 31 December 2017.
Creditor turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2018 was 21
days, it dropped from 24 days as compared with the corresponding
financial last year.

B2 E st w5l

ISR (8)

EEESEL (E)

B REBRERMNFRER-_ZE—N\F+=A
—+—HAI10E42908 B0 MR T —+
FH+ZA=1+—BAIA11189,280& E T - &
BT N\E+-_A=+—BI-EENEN
BRNAEAEAN R REFHETRFESN
8RB FTRRAD o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
All figures are in HK$M unless RRBEHAN MESHE
stated otherwise NABBTTERT
Trade and bills payables B o5 MEREBERNFKIA 1,042.9 1,192.8
Turnover days AR 21 daysk 24 daysk

Treasury Policies

The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the Group's
global operations. The Group principally uses forward foreign exchange/
futures contracts as appropriate to hedge the foreign exchange risks/
commodity price risks in the ordinary course of business. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative
purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group invested HK$602.1
million in the purchase of tangible assets including machinery and
equipment, leasehold improvements, office equipment for the
improvement of production efficiency (31 December 2017: HK$429.3
million). All of these capital expenditures were financed from internal
resources.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Revenue by Regions
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Revenue by Products
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
The Group’s performance

After the completion of the acquisition of one of the world’s largest
mixed metal recyclers with advanced end-of-life vehicles (“ELV")
processing technologies in Europe and North America in two years
ago, we are integrating our business operations in Asia, Europe and
North America, and became one of the leading worldwide mixed metal
recyclers with the capabilities to handle and recycle multiple types of
materials. Through the geographic diversification, we are in a good
position to mitigate the risks of relying on a single market.

The Group sold in aggregate over 5.3 million tonnes of recycled
products in 2018. This represents a 3.3% increase when compared
to 5.1 million tonnes being sold in 2017. During 2018, the Group
continued its usual practices of buying mixed metal scraps and selling
its recycled products in accordance with its processing ability. Moreover,
the Group made efforts to streamline and improve the inventory cycle
so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on the overall
performance of the Group.

Operation Performance

The Group had extended the metal recycling business from its original
operation base in Asia to Europe and North America, becoming a truly
global operator, ranking among the top few in the world. Management
has then reorganised the Group’s business segments for the purpose
of reporting and analysis, with specific commentaries made on the
continents where the operations situated.

Europe

Our Europe segment provides all steps in recycling mixed metal
scraps and is equipped with the one-stop shop service for collecting,
gathering, sorting and processing. We are among the processing
and technology leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal recycling
worldwide. We own many advanced processing technologies in scrap
metal shredding and post-shredding.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe (continued)

Our scrap metal shredding services, including cleaning, sorting,
shearing, shredding, and pressing, constitute a “One-Stop-Shop”
process for all customers and cater to any metal supply needs. In post-
shredding technologies, we are able to achieve approximately 97%
recovery rate for ELV, ranking as a world leader (95% recycling rate is
the existing recovery target under the European Union directive).

In 2018, total segment sales tonnage and revenue in Europe increased
by approximately 8.2% from 4.1 million tonnes to 4.4 million tonnes
and 25.7% from HK$12,061.6 million to HK$15,166.5 million,
respectively, as compared to the previous financial year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$1,647.9
million, a slight increase of HK$11.3 million or 0.7% compared with the
last financial year, but gross profit margin for the year decreased from
13.6% to 10.9%, excluding the effect from the adoption of HKFRS
15. The segment profit decreased by 3.6% from HK$460.3 million to
HK$443.5 million.

The drop in Europe's performance is attributable to the higher
transportation costs from the shortage of railway and shipping
transport capacity, and the difficult market environment and price
development in the latter half of 2018.

North America

The North America segment has advanced recycle process know-how
in all relevant process steps from collection, sorting, processing to
trading of materials. It operates state-of-the-art shredder technology
and has extensive post-shredding technologies in place for recovery
optimisation.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the North America total
segment sales revenue increased by approximately 8.5% from
HK$2,199.0 million to HK$2,386.7 million while the total segment sales
tonnage remained flat at approximately 0.6 million tonnes (2017: 0.6
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstm R 51

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
North America (continued)

The gross profit and gross profit margin decreased by 1.0% from
HK$291.2 million to HK$288.4 million and from 13.2% to 12.1%
in 2018, respectively, before the reclassification of outbound freight
costs to cost of sales under the new HKFRS 15. While the overall
macroeconomic conditions in the US were supportive for our business,
such as the tax reform and strong demand for steel products in the
automotive and construction sectors, the sentiment has been falling as
a result of the rising trade protectionism.

Segment profit has turned around from a loss of HK$2.5 million to a
profit of HK$8.4 million as compared to the last financial year due to
tight cost control measures taken.

Asia
In Asia, our major production facilities are situated in Yuen Long (Hong
Kong), Taizhou (Zhejiang) and Yantai (Shandong).

In the year of 2018, total segment sales tonnage in Asia segment
decreased by approximately 31.4% from 0.46 million tonnes to 0.31
million tonnes and revenue decreased by 22.1% from HK$4,813.6
million to HK$3,751.4 million as compared to the last financial year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$391.2
million, representing a decrease of HK$62.0 million or 13.7% compared
with the last financial year, while gross profit margin for the year was
10.4%, increase from 9.4% in previous year, excluding the impact
from the adoption of the new HKFRS 15. The segment profit for Asia
decreased by 7.0% from HK$295.9 million to HK$275.2 million.

The decline in results of the Asia segment was mainly attributable to the
gradually contracted import business in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged certain plants and
buildings, land use rights,
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$4,542.4
million (31 December 2017: HK$4,344.6 million) to secure borrowings.

inventories, trade receivables and bank

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, additions
in construction in progress and set-up of a joint venture which are
contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements and amounted to HK$116.6 million (31 December 2017:
HK$175.3 million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the Board is not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.

The Group has contingent liabilities of approximately HK$27.4 million
(31 December 2017: HK$42.5 million) which consist of non-financial
guarantee in favour of investee entities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstm R 51

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “"HCA 3040/2015"), followed by
an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the Company and Mr.
Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum of HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged non-
payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company
Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the terms of a shareholders loan assignment dated 24 June 2010
between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company. The case is still
in progress.

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited ("HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015. Further, HWH has also agreed
that a sum including the amount of HK$57.8 million be held in escrow
as security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter alia, HCA
3040/2015. As such, the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to
be a claim of material importance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong (High Court Action No. 2939 of
2016, “"HCA 2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant,
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr.
Fang as the 4th defendant. So far as the Company and its subsidiaries
are concerned, Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence on
24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company and
CTHK's defence on 20 June 2017. The case is still in progress.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 2939/2016 to be a claim
of material importance for the reason set out above, details of HCA
2939/2016 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.

B2 E st w5l

BAREERSIAAE (B)

Delcoff BRERZE—RFE+—A+HURK
REEASE—HE  ARBNZETRAEA
K (BB)BRAR ([BEARMES|)EA
FEoWE  HWHIEAS = s R EEAR
B ERESSSARRRFR (SRR
ZT—NF 529395 - [HCA 2939/2016] ) ©
BARQE RHETFRE A Delcomt 5B &
HEA-—ZT—RAE=A=ANEEK (AEH
R-ZE——F=HF—HARAZTT &DelcoR
B RRES ) MIBERA AR RE - Delcoit
—FRBA R EBREI0EFRT £ER
FDelco AsiaA —ZZEZ N F MM A +/~HE A&
A7 A Kb E BB % FUE - Delcoft —H &
EFE BRLELZNEMES - AQE LT
ARMBEBNR _T—+F=A-_+HBAEH
g MBRER —Z—+FNA-+HBAR
AIRBEARMEBSNNRRER SR - RHNE
HITH o

T2l EXAEERRAHCA 2939/2016

WHBEBRBR RAREFHEEHCA
2939/2016KFFIEE ARIFT

EeRREBERAT

—z—n\F£${ 31



Management Discussion and Analysis
EIREstm R 51

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy
aims minimising the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

On 7 March 2018, the Group adopted a commaodity price risk hedging
policy the Board believes is suitable for the current operating conditions.
The commodity price risk hedging policy is posted on the Company’s
website, www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group'’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rate of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to U.S.
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues following the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group's
financial statements. In addition, the Group continues monitoring
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance
between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of 3,338
employees. In addition, we engaged approximately 805 separation
and selection workers through local recognised contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labor
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$1,272.8 million. The remuneration package of staff consists of
basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other benefits
as considered appropriate. Remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined by reference to the market standard, individual
performance and their respective contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee of the Company and the Board'’s approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonuses, are determined by
the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation
and performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group considers that investor relations are important to a listed
company. The Board believes that maintaining a good relationship
with investors and keeping them up-to-date on the latest corporate
communications and business development in a timely fashion would
enhance transparency and strengthen corporate governance of the
Group.

Going forward, the Company will continue to make effort to keep our
investors abreast of the corporate and business developments, and to
introduce the Group’s strengths and strategies in order to gain support
and recognition from them and also the market in general.
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Profile of Directors and
Senior Management

EEREREEASERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #i1TE& =

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 55, is an executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 29 April 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company and he is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tu was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company during the period from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He has been the chairman of
USUM Investment Group Limited since April 2014. He has been the director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (&£ B AR
2 A1) since January 1996 and the director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (BE &% B R 2 &) since January 2003. USUM
Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (&£ EABR /A F]) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (EZIZERER A
7)) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (RZIZ# B R A 7)) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, the executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (2%
S EERAA) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (fE& &
BB MR Aa]) from January 1997 to December 2013. He served as the general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline
Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (A& B EEE & )TEM A 7)) , a company that used to be controlled
by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin Transportation and
Machinery Factory (EEEZ X BEM M) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from
1993 to 1995. He served as the chairman of Chongqing City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal Factory ( EE T LEEH &
&S BM) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to 1993 and the factory
director of Chongqing Cinhua Metals Factory (EE & ¢ B2 M) , from 1983 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (4 & 32 F %) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (BEETZ B KIZEET) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongqging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce ( & Bl T 7%
%) , the president of Chonggqing City Industry and Commerce Federation (EE ™ T & H#) , the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EE M 42 E), the vice president of Chonggqing City Charity Federation ( EE M &
E#8g) and the vice president of Chonggqing City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EE TR EERB A L) .

Mr. Tu is a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* CBES M AERAF]) , a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3903), and a director
of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603766).

The annual salary of Mr. Tu is HK$2,300,000, He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and discretionary
bonus of Mr. Tu are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, qualifications,
experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to annual review by
the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
BERSRERASER

Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin"), aged 55, is the chairman of the Board, chief executive officer and an executive Director
of the Company. He joined the Group on 1 June 2016 as executive vice president, and was appointed as an executive
director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated to chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2016, to
the chairman of the Board of the Company on 17 July 2017, and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 11 October 2017. Mr. Qin serves as the chairman of the executive committee, the nomination committee,
the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Qin was appointed as the president of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. on 22 January
2018. From 2004 to 2016, Mr. Qin worked with LafargeHolcim group and his last position with LafargeHolcim group
was the purchasing director of the China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and cementitious materials.
Mr. Qin served as the head of the purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd. from 1996 to 1999 and
the finance director of Tianjin Philips Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Qin has extensive
experience in corporate operation management, process and budget control, strategic materials procurement and
supplier management. Mr. Qin holds a bachelor degree of Finance and Accounting from Renmin University of China and
a Master of Business Administration from the University of Southampton.

The annual salary of Mr. Qin is HK$5,021,104. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual salary and
discretionary bonus of Mr. Qin are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company,
qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company’s remuneration policy and is subject to
annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Wun Lam (“Mr. Wong"), aged 54, is the chief financial officer and an executive Director of the Company. He
joined the Group on 10 August 2017 as chief financial officer, and was appointed as an executive director on 11 October
2017. Mr. Wong serves as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee and
the pricing committee of the Company. He is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong obtained
a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Calgary and received a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from Kellogg School of Management at the Northwestern University. He is also a Chartered Accountant of
Canada. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong had more than 29 years of extensive experience in the field of financial
management. He was the Chief Financial Officer of Cargo Services Group and before that, Mr. Wong worked in Royal
Philips Electronics, Jarden Corporation and CLP Power and held senior positions in financial and business management.

Mr. Wong is not entitled any salary for the appointment as executive Director of the Company but he is entitled an
annual salary of HK$2,600,000 for his role as chief financial officer. He is also entitled a discretionary bonus. The annual
salary and discretionary bonus of Mr. Wong are determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the
Company, qualifications, experience, the prevailing market conditions and the Company's remuneration policy and is
subject to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B~ IEH {TE =

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke serves as the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 40
years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of
Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange: V1 Group Limited (Stock Code: 82), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1005), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited) (Stock
Code: 445), Zhong An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672), Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882),
Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Forebase International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626),
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) and Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock Code:
6158), TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 515) and TradeGo FinTech Limited (Stock Code: 8017).

Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for his position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Ms. Qian Liping (“Ms. Qian”), aged 41, is an independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on 24 October
2016. Ms. Qian is a member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Qian is currently a professor at the School of Economics and Business Administration in Chongging
University and a managing director of Marketing Committee, Chinese Research Council of Modern Management. She
was also a visiting scholar of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2010 to 2011. Ms. Qian has been appointed
as an external review expert of several journals including “Management World”, “Journal of Marketing Science” and
“Nankai Business Review", and was awarded “2015 Annual Excellent Review Expert” by “Journal of Marketing Science”.
She has more than 16 years of research experience in B2B Marketing and Marketing Channel Management and has
intimate knowledge of the marketing environment and management mechanism in mainland China. Ms. Qian holds a
doctoral degree in Management from School of Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University.

Ms. Qian is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to her duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Mr. Zhu Hongchao (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 18 April
2018. Mr. Zhu is the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the audit committee
and the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhu is one of the founding partners of Shanghai United Law Firm and a senior lawyer. He possesses a Juris Master
degree obtained from Fudan University and has rich litigation and non-litigation experience in terms of Contract Law,
Law of Torts, Company Law and other legal fields. Mr. Zhu has served as a permanent legal adviser or specially invited
adviser of a large number of state-owned enterprises, Global 500 enterprises and governmental departments for a long
time. As one of the first batch of lawyers with the qualification to practice securities law, he has participated in the
reorganisation and listing of over 40 large Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Zhu is currently the director and senior partner of Shanghai United Law Firm. He also serves as an arbitrator of
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (Shanghai International Arbitration Center) and Shanghai Arbitration Commission, a mediator of Shanghai
Commercial Mediation Center, and a part-time professor of Shanghai University Law School and East China University of
Political Science and Law.

He once served as the third, fourth, fifth and sixth deputy president of All China Lawyers Association, the sixth president
of Shanghai Bar Association and the seventh chief supervisor of Shanghai Bar Association.

He is an independent director of the following companies: Wonders Information Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 300168 (SHE)),
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd., Jupai Holdings Limited (Stock Code: JP (NYSE)), and E-House (China) Holdings
Limited and Leju Holdings Limited (Stock Code: LEJU (NYSE)). He is currently an independent non-executive director of
E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2048 (HKEX)). He once served as an independent director of
the following companies: Sinochem International Corporation (Stock Code: 600500 (SHA)), Shanghai Guangdian Electric
Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 601616 (SHA)) and Tengda Construction Group Co,. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600512 (SHA)).

Mr. Zhu is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$250,000 per annum, which is determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the market rate for her position as independent non-executive Director and is subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EFE A

Mr. William Thomas Bird (“Tom"), aged 56, is the chief operating officer of the Company. He also serves as a member
of the pricing committee and the strategy and investment committee of the company. He joined the Group on 20
November 2017. He is a ferrous board member of the Bureau of International Recycling (the “BIR"), and was also elected
as the interim president of the Ferrous Board of the BIR in October 2017. In May 2016, he was elected as treasurer of
BIR. He was also the former president of European Ferrous Recovery and Recycling Federation.

Prior to joining the Company, Tom has more than 30 years of extensive experience in the field of metal recycling. From
2016 to 2017, he was the chief executive officer of Liberty Metal Recycling. From 2010 to 2016, Tom was the managing
director of Van Dalen UK Limited and Mettalis Recycling Limited. He worked with Sims Metal Management UK Limited as
a managing director from 1995 to 2009. From 1991 to 1995, he was the general manager in Allied Bird Fragmentation
and from 1986 to 1991, he worked with Bird Group of Companies as a Manager. Tom has extensive experience in the
operating and trading of international ferrous scrap sector and global business management.

Tom obtained a Bachelor’s Degree (Hons) in Business Administration in Plymouth University. He also completed the Senior
Executive Finance Programme in Templeton College Oxford University.
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Mr. Goh Kian Guan (“Mr. Goh”), aged 42, vice president, chief investment officer of the Company and general
manager of the investment & development department of the Company. Mr. Goh also serves as a member of the strategy
and investment committee of the Company and he is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the Group
since 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr. Goh was the managing director for investments at USUM Investment
Group Limited. Prior to USUM Investment Group Limited, Mr. Goh was the head of international merger & acquisition at
an investment firm in Shanghai. Before that, Mr. Goh served in Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory and BNP Paribas
Investment Banking Energy & Commaodities team. Prior to his post at investment banking, Mr. Goh was with the strategic
investment team for Singapore Telecom working on merger & acquisition. Mr. Goh has many years of experiences with
both buy-side and sell-side, covering energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT) and high
end manufacturing. Prior to that, Mr. Goh served 6 years as an engineer, working on various projects, including oil
fields, refineries, petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real estates and advance equipment
manufacturing, covering technical, commercial and financial management.

Mr. Goh graduated with a Master of Finance degree from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology of Australia, and
a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University of Singapore.
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Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu"), aged 39, the company secretary of the Company. She joined the Group in May 2017.

Ms. Yiu has worked in corporate secretarial field and corporate trust fields in several listed companies on the Main Board
and GEM of the Stock Exchange, commercial bank and professional firms for over 17 years.

Ms. Yiu graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011 and was awarded a Master’s Degree in Corporate

Governance. She is an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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The Directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 114 to 115 of this Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 10 to 15 and pages
16 to 33 respectively of this Annual Report which also form part of this
Directors’ Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to gradually
embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we will continue
to improve environmental sustainability measures in all our facilities.
In 2018, we complied with all relevant environmental regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC that have a significant impact on the
Group's business. There were no significant fines and no non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
during the year. Details of the above information will be set out in our
environmental, social and governance report which is scheduled to be
published within three months after the issuance of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2018 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
to have their feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to
ensure the service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important task in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

The Group has committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or national origin, and are in accordance
with anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees
are treated equally within our welfare system and are provided with
effective channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when doing business. A group-level Whistle-
blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible violation
of law or company policy and to promote standards of good corporate
practices.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 29 in the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which any of the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect
substantial interests, and which was still valid as at 31 December 2018
or any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE RULES
GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (THE “LISTING RULES")

On 19 December 2016, the Company as issuer entered into a
subscriptions agreement (“Subscriptions Agreement”) with an
independent third party institution (the “Subscriber”) pursuant to which
the Company agrees to issue and the Subscriber agrees to subscribe for
certain notes (“Notes”) in the principal amount of US$200,000,000 due
2018.

Pursuant to the Subscriptions Agreement, Mr. Tu and USUM Investment
Group Hong Kong Limited Jaifg#& & & E (HE) BR2AF] ("USUMHK")
shall also provide a personal guarantee and a corporate guarantee,
respectively, in favour of the Subscriber to secure, among others, the
due and punctual observance and performance by the Company under
the Subscriptions Agreement and other documents.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE RULES
GOVERNING THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON
THE STOCK EXCHANGE (THE “LISTING RULES"™)
(continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, it will be an event of default if,
among others, (i) USUMHK ceases to beneficially own (directly or
indirectly) at all times a shareholding in the Company representing the
single largest shareholding in the Company, or (i) USUMHK ceases
at all times to be controlled by Mr. Tu and Mr. Tu ceases to be the
single largest shareholder of USUMHK. For the purposes of this clause,
“control” of each person means (whether by way of ownership of
shares, proxy, contract, agency or otherwise): (a) having the power to
cast, or control the casting of 40% of the votes that might be cast at
a general meeting of such person; or (b) having the power to appoint
a majority of the board of directors or remove any director of such
person; or (c) having the power or ability to influence the management
and financial policies of such person. If any event of default occurs, the
Subscriber may require the Notes to be repaid immediately. As at the
date of this report, USUMHK owns 62.85% of the total issued share
capital of the Company and Mr. Tu indirectly owns 45.956% of the
total issued share capital of USUMHK.

A supplemental agreement dated 29 June 2018 (the "Supplemental
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and the
Subscriber and pursuant to which the Company may early redeem
the Notes subject to the terms and conditions of the Supplemental
Agreement.

Three redemptions were conducted on 29 June 2018, 3 July 2018
and 20 December 2018 according to the Subscriptions Agreement
and the Supplemental Agreement and Notes in the principal amount
of US$80,800,000, of US$78,000,000 and US$41,200,000, being
US$200,000,000 in total, were redeemed respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, all principal amount of the Notes and related
fees and expenses had been fully redeemed by the Company.
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EF8HRS
DIRECTORS o=
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this FRARBEARREHPEBR I EFEE:
report are:
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Qin Yongming OKBAEAE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FERITEAAZ)
Mr. Tu Jianhua RBEESAE
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer) BRRAE (BEHIEE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIKHITES
Dr. Loke Yu EpiEY N
Ms. Qian Liping BT
Mr. Zhu Hongchao KRB LA
(appointed on 18 April 2018) (RZFE-NFOA+/\AEZEF)
Mr. Zhu Dajian BARERE
(retired on 12 June 2018) (R=ZF—=NNENF+ZHRIE)

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Qin  RIEARRBIABEIZME] - FoKRALEERES
Yongming and Dr. Loke Yu shall retire from office and, being eligible, ~ #8178 &R - MK F R E 4R £84(1))2(2)
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general {f&ERTEENRARFEEKRREFAE
meeting of the Company under articles 84(1) & (2). EERET
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors’ Report

EFERS

Start Expire Duration of contract
R Elp AHEH
Executive Director Qin Yongming 17 July 2017 NA (open contract) NA (open contract)
WiTEE L —TtF TER TEA
tAttR (FEBREH) (FEBREH)
Tu Jianhua 29 April 2018 28 April 2021 3 years
REE —E-N\F —B--fF =%
mA=t+hB mA=+N\B
Wong Wun Lam 11 October 2017 10 October 2020 3 years
EBR —T—+F ik Sl 223 =F
+A+—H TATH
Independent Non-Executive Directors Loke Yu 24 June 2016 23 June 2019 3 years
BYEHITES B A ZE-RF —E-NE =F
~NAZ+HmA ~AZ+=R
Qian Liping 24 October 2016 23 October 2019 3 years
ERY ZERE —E-NF =F
+A-+mA +A-t+=8
Zhu Hongchao 18 April 2018 17 April 2021 3 years
Rt “E-N\F “E-F =
mA+N\H mA++H

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set at
on pages 34 to 43.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2018 of the Company are set out
below:

Experience including other directorships

(@) Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of TradeGo FinTech Limited (Stock Code: 8017)
with effect from 29 August 2018.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Shenzhou Space Park Group Limited (Stock Code: 692),
SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39) with effect
from 6 August 2018, 27 September 2018 and 1 November 2018
respectively.

(b)  Mr. Zhu Hongchao, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, resigned as external director of Bright Food (Group)
Co. Ltd with effect from 31 October 2018.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 54 to 55 in this
Annual Report and Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business (including those to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party) in
which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director
had material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 58 to 59 in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or which subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTOR'S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 58 to 59 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of Its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,998.5 million.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any donations during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2018, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 3.0% (2017: 2.6%)
of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers comprised 9.5% (2017:
10.1%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
less than 25% of total revenue in 2018 and 2017.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their respective
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or five largest customers during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company's business were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had
the following connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions:

SALES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 January
2017, a number of connected transactions have been entered into
and will continue to be carried out between the Company, members
of the Group and Loncin International Limited (“Loncin International”)
according to the sales framework agreement (the “Sales Framework
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Loncin
International on 11 January 2017. Pursuant to the Sales Framework
Agreement, Loncin International shall purchase and the Company shall
supply, or shall procure relevant member(s) of the Group to supply,
certain products to Loncin International for a term commencing from
11 January 2017 and ending on 31 December 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Sales Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are US$150.0 million,
US$250.0 million and US$350.0 million respectively. The total amount
of the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018 was US$58.3
million.

Mr. Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds
98% equity interests in Loncin Group Co., Limited, which in turn
holds 98% equity interests in Loncin Holdings Co., Limited (“Loncin
Holdings”). Loncin International is wholly-owned by Loncin Holdings.
Therefore, Loncin International is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tu.

Accordingly, the Sales Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 17 February
2017, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened
and the Sales Framework Agreement was duly approved.
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FRAMEWORK SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 16 October 2018 (after trading hours), Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited* (8 NBE&XEEBABR AT, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework sale and
purchase agreement (the “Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Chongging USUM Recycling Resources Developments Co., Ltd.*
(EERNHBEERMEAR LA ("USUM Recycling”) for a term of
six (6) months commencing from 16 October 2018 regarding the supply
of scrap copper/brass to USUM Recycling for a total consideration of up
to RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.4 million).
The total amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB97.5 million.

USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), being
a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of USUM Investment Group Limited* AR E £ BN A
FR A &E]) (“USUM Investment”) which directly holds 100% interest in
USUM Recycling. Accordingly, USUM Recycling is a connected person
of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the Framework Sale and Purchase Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16
October 2018.

LOAN AGREEMENT

On 20 October 2018, Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry Company Limited*
(BNEBGRHMFEAFRAF), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as lender, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with USUM Investment as borrower in respect of the
loan in the amount of RMB32.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$36.2 million) for a term of ninety (90) days.

USUM Investment is holding 100% of USUMHK which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, USUM Investment is a
connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules and
the transaction contemplated under the Loan Agreement constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20
October 2018.

* for identification purposes only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The aforesaid connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the aforesaid connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant continuing connected
transactions were disclosed.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, no other
related-party transactions disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2018 constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:
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Description of businesses of the entity

Name of entity which businesses are which are considered to compete or
considered to compete or likely to likely to compete with the business of Nature of interest of
Name of Director ~ compete with the business of the Group  the Group the Director in the entity
BRAEAEEERBARFR RARRASEXBRERFATE
EEpg THBRAFNEBERER BRBRFHERRENEBHEL ESNERNESMHE
Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources According to the business scope as registered  Controlling Shareholder
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging with the State Administration For Industry
Usum™) & Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.
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Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu lJianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently only engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and the above
entity do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 23
June 2010 (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company and as approved by the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 June 2010. It is a share incentive scheme established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants have
or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, as its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
director, employee, advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, agent, business partner, joint venture business partner,
promoter, service provider of any member of the Group.

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June
2010, the original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options could be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 Shares and it was refreshed during the 2013 extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in
compliance with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 161,973,829 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
17 February 2017, being the date of the 2017 extraordinary general
meeting (“2017 EGM"), when the scheme mandate limit was last
refreshed.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant, any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of Shareholders in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The subscription price at which a grantee may subscribe for shares on
the exercise of an option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of the grant of relevant option and in any case shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the participant at the time of
making an offer for the grant of share option.

The total number of securities available for issue under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under the refreshed Scheme mandate limit,
and all other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
161,973,829 shares,
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

representing 10.09% of the total number of

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed from
the date of the scheme limit last refreshed to 31 December 2018 under
the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no share options have been granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme since the refreshment of the
Scheme Mandate Limit on 17 February 2017. An offer of the grant of
a share option shall be accepted by the eligible participants within a
period of 28 days from the date of offer of grant of share option. The
consideration paid by each grantee for the acceptance and grant of
each share option is HK$1.00, which has to be paid within 28 days.

There were no options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and no
share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Reporting Period.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

IR
ESERIETRABREATRS  HEAR
0 RS A0 B R AR EE O E A
ARPHEERAR

RZE—N\FF+ZA=+—H XRAES
NEZBITHRABRAR R sk E AL 85 EE
(TER (BHERKBEKA) ([EHFRPEK
Bl 1) EBEXVER) R - R RESFTHES
RABIREES RS EIIE2G6ETEE
9% 50 0 FR P AT 8% S AR I =TT AR B BN 8%+ Pt
BEMBETAESETELERSNIZESTH
(MEESFRI]) BN RARIRBEBRERS
FTEMR AR ([HRAT]) MERIABINT

Long positions in Shares: ROHNEFR:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of EAR AR RE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interested BRABEDL
BEEpA B RmtE BERBHNROBH (HEE1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
REELRL MREFER 2 #E S (BFEE2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

Save

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong Kong Limited
("USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") was indirectly interested.
USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited (“USUM
Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest
shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings”), with
an equity interest in USUM Group of approximately 45.956%. The remaining equity
interests in USUM Group are held by 22 individuals and 30 companies, all of whom
are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold
between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98%
owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin
Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms.
Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at
31 December 2018. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the

Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the

SFO),

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in Shares:

REDHE (B)
FERRARQTRORERRGHERR
KE

RZB-NFE+_A=+—HB BAQATESE
REETHABI AT ALTRARQT KNG
MABER MDA ELS AREES LB EENE
3361578 T 17 B < B el AR B ad 8 e b 25 Kook

B
R HFRE:

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested HERATRE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BHEEEN BREDL
BREBHHE B, Rty RA7 A E (FBFEET)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Hong Kong Limited
AR EEE (FB)ERAQA EmR R (MfEE2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
BMEREEEROBRAA REZEHNERE 2w (FF3E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEIERBR QR REZIEHER 2 = (PfF3E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEEEEBERAQR REZEHEE 2 s (BfF5E2)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
RS REZEENERE 2w (Fg5E2)
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Approximate

percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested AT R AE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEEEN BB
BRERE R B EmtE IR0 B (Ht5E1)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
Tai Security Holding Limited EmfEAA (HF5E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.78%
Investment Limited
EEERKREBRAT EmEAA (MtsE4a)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 8.94%
corporations (Notes 3 and 4)
SREAZNSE A R ESER 2 #a (FFEE3%4)
Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for  Beneficial owner 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
and on behalf of DTC SP)
Pengda Value Fund SPC EmEAA (H$5ES)
(fRDTC SP1T%H)
Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
(Cayman) Limited corporations
Cinda Asset Management REEGER 2 = (HMfEES)
(Cayman) Limited
Cinda (BVI) Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
corporations
Cinda (BVI) Limited REEGER 2 #Ews (BF3ES)
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Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested AT RAE
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest BEREEN BB
BRERBHE B REntE IR 43 4 % (HEEET)
Cinda International Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
corporations
EEBRERAR AR MEESERZ #a (Ht3E5)
Sinoday Limited Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
corporations
Sinoday Limited REZZESER 2 #Ea (H$5E5)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%
Limited corporations
REEE (BB IERERAA M ESER 2 #am (Hf5E5)
China Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled 97,250,000 (Note 5) 6.06%

Co., Ltd.*
FEEEEEEERMDERAT

corporations

REEHEE 2 #E

* For identification purpose only
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

Q)

)

(3)

(5)

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu was
indirectly interested in. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of USUM
Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 45.956%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 22 individuals and 30
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31
December 2018. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie
("Mr. Zhang”) as at 31 December 2018. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union") as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2018. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

The 97,250,000 Shares were held by Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting for and on
behalf of DTC SP) (“Pengda”) as beneficial owner and Pengda was wholly-owned
by Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited (“Cinda Asset Management”). Cinda
Asset Management was wholly-owned by Cinda (BVI) Limited which was in turn
wholly-owned by Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”). Cinda
International was held as to 63% by Sinoday Limited which was wholly-owned by
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd, China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, Sinoday Limited, Cinda
International, Cinda (BVI) Limited and Cinda Asset Management were deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Pengda pursuant to the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
page 58 to 59 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

The remuneration of the Company’s senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

i ()
EBRRAR ARG RAABRA OERR
®A ()

B EXFHEN R NF+-_A=+—
B ARARWFHABEMAL (RRAREER
FEITHABRRIN) RA R a0 SAE B R»
FEBERERES LS GRAIEXVEE2 %3
DEMESRE F LB B A R AR IEE S &
HE 6B 5£33615 8 T3 B R M ATaceks
RS AR -

Hr BB
REENEREEERETEEERORE
EBRRIRATEEPIRIFMERE N RE A
B hiRE -

FIHZESKEBARANKLERE BAX
BAREBHSBEETEFNHMH-

ARFCHEABRESFBASBDEZRAE
RIEE B BEHN A FRESSEL9H

mAREEAEZZHER
BE_Z-N\F+_A=T—HBILFEAR
ABRERARZ HIARHIIMT

Number of individuals

N
Remuneration Band: FrENAE Bl
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078702 1,000,000/ 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,000/%8 7T 1
More than HK$4,500,000 4,500,000/ 7T A £ 4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the date of this report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 291 of the annual
report.

AUDITORS

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).
The Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who filled
the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte with effect
from 16 January 2017. PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed
as the auditor of the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2017. The Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and for the year ended 31
December 2018 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. Save for the
above, there were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the
past three years.

For and on behalf of the Board
Chiho Environmental Group Limited
Qin Yongming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Corporate
Governance Report

EFREIBIRS

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group's business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
"CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company’s corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2018 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, with exceptions as explained below:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Qin Yongming currently holds the offices
of chairman of the Board (”“Chairman”) and chief executive officer
("CEQ") of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both Chairman and CEO in the same person provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether any
changes, including the separation of the roles of Chairman and CEO,
are necessary.
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DIRECTORS'" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Board comprised three executive Directors (including the Chairman)
and three independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical
details are set out in the “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
section on page 34 to 43 of this Annual Report, namely:

Corporate Governance Report
EREBHRS

EREITESFRS

RNABIE R _ETRAIK 8+ Frak 2 Ersg
TABBEITERFR S ZIZESTA) ([FESF
AINEREEETESFRS 21TATH &
RARARRESELFTENR 2528
EEOER REE-_Z-N\E+-_A=1+—
BIEFENY—EETRETRZHRE -

BEE

EEENAR
RAFRTIBANREERAI/THE EF2
REBR=ZBNTES (BEEE) R=ZF8BL
FEHITERMEN - HEZ BEF BN AT R
FIMTLB3E [EENENERAERBFE] —5
Mok BBE:

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director BREZEMA F-kESE
EEHE EEgzAH BARESEZHH
Executive Director HITES
Qin Yongming (Chairman) =B (EE) 30 June 2016 24 May 2017
S ANCS —E—tF
~A=1+8 HA-+MA
Tu Jianhua R 29 April 2015 12 June 2018
—E—RF —E-N\F
mA=-+hH NA+Z=H
Wong Wun Lam = IATR 11 October 2017 12 June 2018
—FE—tF —E-)N\F
+A+—8 ~A+=H
Independent Non-Executive Director BAFHITES
Loke Yu o g AR 23 June 2010 24 May 2017
—ET-FF T4 F
NAZ+=H AA-+MAE
Qian Liping BB 24 October 2016 24 May 2017
—T-RF —E—+F
+A=+MmH HFA=-+MH
Zhu Hongchao Kt 18 April 2018 12 June 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
MA+AH NA+TZH
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EFREBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition of the Board (continued)

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or chief executive.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results
and other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes
to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to
the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of policies and strategies decided by the Board to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues
relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior managers; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to all
relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary (“the
Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 11 Board meetings and
one general meeting of the Company were held. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and
general meetings held during the year:
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No. of meeting attend/ Eligible to attend
ZHRE/REREESERY

Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
EEpg Ezgesd BRRAE
Executive Director HTEE
Qin Yongming FokH 1111 1/1
Tu Jianhua REE 10/11 0/
Wong Wun Lam AR 11/11 11
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHTES
Loke Yu FE A 10/11 17
Qian Liping BEY 10/11 1/1
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) KR (RZE-N\ENATN\BEZE) 8/9 11
Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) n%kk(ﬁéji NERATZRER) 213 0N
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EFREBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at anytime.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors at
least three days before each Board meeting. The company secretary is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, Mr. Qin
Yongming, has taken up the role of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer simultaneously.

Mr. Qin Yongming is responsible for providing leadership of the Board
and ensuring that all Directors are properly informed on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings. In addition, he is responsible for ensuring
that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate, complete and
reliable information in relation to the Group’s affairs. The Chairman
also encourages Directors to actively participate in and to make a full
contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and
acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Qin Yongming is also responsible for the strategic planning,
administration and management of the business of the Group. He is
also responsible for the formulation and successful implementation
of Group policies and assuming full accountability to the Board for
all operations of the Group. Mr. Qin Yongming oversees the Group's
compliance and internal control matters and maintains an ongoing
dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully
informed of all major business developments and issues. He has also
been focusing on strategic planning and assessment of mergers and
acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for term of
three years. None of them hold any other offices in the Company or
any its subsidiaries or is interested in any Shares of the Company under
their respective letter of appointment. In the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings held during the year, constructive views and
comments are given by the independent non-executive Directors, who
have provided their independent judgment on the issues relating to the
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process of
the Group.
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EFREBRS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. Among the three independent non-executive
Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Director a written confirmation of his independence and the Board
considers all of them, namely Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping and Mr.
Zhu Hongchao, to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 3 July 2018, Mr. Koon Wai Hung (“Mr. Koon") resigned as the
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu") was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on the same day.

Ms. Yiu plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company Secretary
had received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to six Board committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:
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Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
BHE
E3pE UTEER ENZEEE REZEE FMzEE REZEE EEZEE
Executive Director YTES
Tu Jianhua REE M M
Qin Yongming Rk C C C C
Wong Wun Lam AR M M M
Independent BUHTES
Non-Executive Director
Loke Yu e K C M M
Qian Liping BEY M M M
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on Kk (A= —\F M M C
18 April 2018) MA+N\BEZHE)
Zhu Dajian (retired on FRER(RZZ-N\E M M M
12 June 2018) NATZERE)
* C - Chairman * C—xJ%
M — Member M—k B
# Other members of the pricing committee are certain senior management of the — * EEZEGHEMKERRAFTETEREEAR
Company.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in March 2011 with
written terms of reference, which is responsible for the management
and administration of the business of the Company and any matters
which are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under
the control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.
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EFREBRS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a comprehensive
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2018, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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PHREICRS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued) WITEREE (8)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development ESRIIREXERRE ()
(continued)
The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31 BEREBE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HIF
December 2018 is summarized as follows: E- ﬁﬂ%‘iziu aJHTE)EzzZZDT :
Directors Types of training
2= 138 Bl
Tu Jianhua R B
Qin Yongming Z= oK B B
Wong Wun Lam HIRTR A, B
Loke Yu e g A A, B
Qian Liping Y A, B
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) KEB(RZZE-N\FOA+N\AEZT) A, B
Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) FAR(RZZE—N\FRA+TZHERMT) -
A - attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business A -HERAEEEGRESRERB AN G B

of the Group or Director’s duties we /wmiE/mne,/ ITIEH
B - reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’ B -MERCEER BRNEERELEERERE
duties and responsibilities EEEZ Y

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEZEEg
The Audit Committee was established in June 2010 with written terms ~ AA R 2R LR R 8+ M S B XE

of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix JATRIR-ZE—TFEXARLEREZES:
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised ~ WFBAZHEBEHE - KRREN_T—RF
terms of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015, TZ-ATHABRRPN—EERZEGLETTH
which has included changes in line with the amendments to the Main Eﬂg%ﬁl EROBENECEERTAREESE
Board Listing Rules relating to the risk management and internal A& ARAEREE LA ET — &=
control section of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Wl:mfﬁ,ﬁ\'ﬁaﬂ—@(Z&@ﬂ'*ﬁ_ﬁﬂbuTEB’\_
Governance Report which has come into effect for accounting periods Z—7"F—A— Bz &Gz GtHBAE
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The written terms of reference 3 - B 1% % 8 & 1 = T B2 80 B 708 2 P8
of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website ~ S RARABU A HHE - EREZE2ER
and the Company’'s website. The Audit Committee has established a —Z—ZF+ZHAHIEAR R ERBE
whistleblowing policy of the Company in December 2012 and set out S0 FIEASR AR RN R MEE R AIRE T
the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial reporting 2 NMaE 1T REIEFF

matters of the Company.
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EFREBRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member BTEZZEEXEREKE 2 HEBRAT :
are as follows:

Role in Meetings Attended/
Name of Director Position Audit Committee Eligible to Attend

BiliEgE/

Ex=pg B EEREEEZH REREERE
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 3/3
B g At BUFRITES £
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
BEY BUFNTES &
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member i
KA#(RZ2-N\EEATN\REZE) BUFRTESR 8
Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member 212
#RE(RZZE-NEXATZREME) BUFNTES &

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim
results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to
the submission to the Board’'s approval; discussed with management
on significant judgments affecting Group's consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of auditor; reviewed and
discussed the internal control report; reviewed and assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’ internal control and risk
management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit
process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had engaged the
Group’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:

Corporate Governance Report

EREIBRS

it
N
haya
0
Iﬂl>

%@ﬁ%TMFFWM2%°ﬁ§Wﬁﬁ
Wﬁ#ﬂkﬁﬁﬁ& NIERE
—T-N\F
*Etﬁgziiiﬁﬁﬁé%
Bk EERBRFLEEREFRTH
BE BREGREAAEREMTERERE
Tl AW k2R EELTHNEBR
ERAIFERESLER 2 EXNTHAREE - Al sEfE
ARRFERLEZRNRINERNEH

—FEUH%HHN

‘\—ﬁt
N
HH O
‘DHU]@

o BB 35 BA

REBEE-_E—N\F+_A=+—HLFE"
M%lﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ LRUKBERTRISB (B E
Rk i8] ) A A S B HNEAZ BRRD - FTIR AR 75
RABERWOT:

2018
—N\F
HK$M
BHEET

Type of services PR #5 3 Bl
Audit services EE RS 29.2
Non-audit services S ET AR TS 23
Total st 31.5

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services and non-audit services to
certain subsidiaries of the Group and the aggregated fees charged were
HK$2.4 million and HK$0.4 million respectively.
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EFREBRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate
accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board and the management. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 106 of this

Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in June 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set
of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on
15 August 2013. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Qin Yongming,
Executive Director, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Qian Liping and Mr. Zhu
Hongchao, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by Mr.
Qin Yongming.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REELES (,\f‘é’f)
The Nomination Committee convened two meetings during the year 1HREZZEGREBE_Z—-N\F+_H=1—
ended 31 December 2018 with the attendance of each member as HIEFEHA Efﬁ://?@%' EXBHENOT
follows:
Role in Meetings
Nomination Attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
BHEEE/
EEpg B EREEEEZHE REREERE
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 2/2
FokH HTES TR
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
Fe g BUFRITER mE
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 212
HEY BUFNTES &
Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member "
FEE(RZE-N\FOATN\BEZE) BUFRITES 8
Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member 1/2
FRE(RZE-NFRATZREML) BUFRTER 8
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination REBZE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFEE
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and Exﬁﬂf'ﬁ'h%i FERNRARESTEMNAE

structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, re-election of Directors and appointment of Mr. Zhu
Hongchao as Independent Non-Executive Director.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 15 August 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in June 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the

Iﬂl>

T
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FBERF D AL R ER

HMEZ B EREARER BERIRBEMED
IR - REBNAFE ZTRARBER

individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees  fEARER - $1TE FE REBBRERFLINTE
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account ~ EARUEREYIETEAL
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.
The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of TREEHRTEFLSHERBNFNEE -
executive Directors and senior management.
Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
Fe B 40 BEFEE
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
EX%e REREBEAZTISEE BARSNR BFERMSBBIELRER
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
==Bh a5 RREEE i [REACP

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENE B RAREMEL®KER
RIAREREARIR B IR

BRI RE2R
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PEEISRS
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) HTMEEE (&)
The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’ TRIIFEFHE-ZT-NF+-_A=+—
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018: BIEFE &M BB :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BHRER
e HeRmEE RERL S 2B @3
(Note (a))
GEE)
Year Ended 31 December 2018: BE-E-\E+t-A=t-HLEE:
Executive Directors BiTES
M. Tu Jianhua REERE - 23 36 - - 59
Mr. Qin Yongming FABEE - 5.0 42 - 0.6 938
Mr. Wong Wun Lam BRRRE - 26 12 - - 38
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFYTES
Dr. Loke Yu BEnEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BESLT 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April FEREE(RZF-NF
2018) LA+N\BEZT) 02 - - - - 02
Mr. Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) FRERE (RZZ-NE
NBTZBEM) 0.1 - - - - 0.1

Note a:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company paid retirement benefits ~ fiita: HE-Z—-N\F+-A=+—HLFE ARA

to Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin Yongming and Mr. Wong Wun Lam with HK$18,000, DRIMREESE  RKAXERERREES

HK$18,000 and HK$18,000 respectively (2017:HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and - 3R UK 48 7 18,000/% 7T » 18,0007 7T 218,000/

HK$4,500 respectively) T (ZZ—+F:5H5/418,000% 7T * 18,0004 7T
4,500/ 7T )
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) FMEEE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration REZE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFEAN"
Committee held two meetings. The Remuneration Committee HBEESGHEBH - KEZ -FHEESET

determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, %ﬂﬂé%Z SNBCR  REEFWEEMES
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors ~ E{EHHEE R RATZHITESNRI - Hl
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of ZE&ZKEZERZKE HFRENT
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are

as follows:
Role in Meetings
Remuneration Attended/
Name of Director Position Committee  Eligible to Attend
EFEMEES BF:):3- V4
EEpng B A 11 RERLERE
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 18 April 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member "
KEBEE (RZE-N\FRATN\BEZE) BUFRITESR ma
Dr. Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
BEEmE L BUFNTES &
Ms. Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
BB AL BUFRITES 8
Mr. Zhu Dajian (retired on 12 June 2018) Independent non-executive Director Member 1/2
BAREE (RZZ-\EAAT-BEM) BUFRITESR 8
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration REE-ZT—NE+-F= Jr EI IEFEE
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval  ERHART - % @H?EQEJ ExeE

of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group R -—Z— )\¢$El%$& ”éﬁ/\/\ﬂ']
for the year of 2018, the service contract and remuneration for the 7B - é@ﬂ%mtﬁ‘ﬁiﬁhiilﬁﬂ TEEMR
appointment of Mr. Zhu Hongchao as Independent Non-executive HAXHRFHH MESLSAETEABTHH
Director, the bonus payments to the Directors and senior management, % REZAQNTRNTESLEELEN =
and the renewal of service contract of Mr. Tu Jianhua, an Executive Z— N\ERREEHK-

Director of the Company in 2018.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in December 2015. The written
terms of reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have
been subsequently adopted on 2 February 2016 and are available on
the Company's website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i) to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the

BEHREAREZEGAEAARRANAE
BIERRETDOMBEEETR —NESS
‘- EREBRIMOABRER BOLEE
RERBRSNNABER S RV AR ERET
EEeg®Et-

Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.

BB EEESRMHEKRELE B2
A B IRTR A RIEIRSE A R William
Thomas Bird5C M - RKBALERER -
William Thomas Bird%t £ = — \F /XA
TEREZAABREKREZEENE -

—T)\FEMEAKREZEEER

The Strategy and Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Qin
Yongming, Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Wong Wun Lam, Mr. Goh Kian Guan
and Mr. William Thomas Bird and is chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming. Mr.
William Thomas Bird was appointed as a member of the Strategy and
Investment Committee on 13 June 2018.

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2018 ZHEER

Role in

Strategy and Meetings

Investment Attended/

Name of Committee members Position Committee  Eligible to Attend

EEKERE B::4-¢ 74

ZERZEHE B ZEEZRE RERERERE

Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 0/0
ZkH HTES £

Wong Wun Lam Executive Director Member 0/0
EMAR HiTES &

Goh Kian Guan Chief Investment Officer Member 0/0
RER BRRET B8

Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member 0/0
REE HTES B

William Thomas Bird (appointed on 13 June 2018) Chief Operating Officer Member 0/0
William Thomas Bird (RZZ—\FRA+T=ZREZE) HREZER &
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PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee currently comprising Mr. Qin Yongming, Mr.
Wong Wun Lam, Mr. William Thomas Bird and Mr. Udo Langhans
and chaired by Mr. Qin Yongming with appropriate qualifications and
experiences has been established and delegated with the operations
of the Group’s policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts
(the “Policy”).
that the Group may enter into during the month. On a daily basis,

It determines the range of metal futures contracts

the Pricing Committee reviews the open positions of the Group and
determines (i) the offer and sell price of our physical stock and our
hedging requirements; (ii) the quantity and the price of the metal
futures contracts that the Group is going to buy or sell; (iii) enhance
the risk management of commaodity price fluctuations and to ensure an
effective risk monitoring system.

The Board receives a report from the Pricing Committee on the Group's
metal futures activities carried out. Should the Pricing Committee
determine that any positions are to be taken, it must inform the Board
and provide supporting reasons in its report. In addition, the Company’s
finance department assesses and reports to the Board on the open
positions of the Group based on the Group's cash position.

In the event the report from the Company's finance department
demonstrates that the Group is not in strict compliance with the
hedging limit and the daily limit, the Group will put in place and
implement a plan to decrease the open positions of the Group within a
reasonable time in order to comply with the limits.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in metal
futures contracts of the Group, on 7 March 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which the Board believes is more
suitable for the current operating conditions of the Group.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

The Pricing Committee convened eight meetings during the year ended RBZE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE F
31 December 2018 with the attendance of each member as follows: BZEgeHER/ R SHELFEUT:
Role in Meetings Attended/

Name of Committee members Position Pricing Committee  Eligible to Attend
KEBEES BHEER/

ZEEZENS B e BEREERE

Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 7/8

FKHA HITEZ £

Wong Wun Lam Executive Director Member 8/8

AR nTE=S &

William Thomas Bird (appointed on 4 January 2018) Chief Operating Officer Member 8/8

William Thomas Bird (R =Z—\F— AMBEEE) BERZER &

Udo Langhans (appointed on 4 January 2018) Member 8/8

Udo Langhans (R=ZE—NE—- AMNAEZE) &

Goh Kian Guan (resigned on 4 January 2018) Chief Investment Officer Member 0/0

RfER(R_T—\E—ANAET) BRIRET &

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Pricing Committee RBZE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HILLFE &

has reviewed the Group’s monthly physical stock price and commodities EBZEE@EEHASEEARGERLE®R

transactions. The Pricing Committee held review meetings with the XZ -R_ZT—\F FEZETHE=GH

Board of Directors in 2018 to review and discuss the Pricing Committee  TE= &% UWEHLIWEELZEGRE-

Report. In the review meetings, the Pricing Committee and the Board
of Directors reviewed and discussed the Group’s commodity future
contracts’ exposure level, the corresponding procurement and inventory
management strategy of each quarter in 2018, and reviewed the
Group's Policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems where management is
responsible for the design and implementation of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM")
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’s ERM
framework includes the following key elements:

(1) Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group's business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
Risk;

(2)  Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

(3)  Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and
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EFREBRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

(4)  Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place). Internal Audit
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans
are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group's operation is promptly identified and managed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group's Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group’s
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs
of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.
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EFREBRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the "Shareholders’” Communication Policy”) in March 2012 for
setting out the policies, communication strategies and practices
of the Company for communication with its shareholders. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy enables the Shareholders to obtain
comprehensive and plain information of the Company, to exercise their
powers on an informed basis and to strengthen their communication
with the Company.

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and
investors through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports); annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held;
and all the information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure,
as well as corporate communications and other publications which shall
be posted on the website of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders
and investors in a timely and effective manner at all times. If there are
any questions about the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, it shall be
delivered to the Company Secretary or the Head of Investor Relations
Department of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of
such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company's subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend
on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of
association, bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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EFREBRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to

the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: ComSec@chihogroup.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
“EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.

3. Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company's branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the
Requisition.

4. If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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EFREBRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings (continued)

5. Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i) notice of not less than 21 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, if a special resolution is to be
passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days, whichever is the longer, in all other cases, provided
that a EGM may be called by a shorter notice if it is so
agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having
the right to attend and vote at the EGM, being a majority
together holding not less than 95% in nominal value of the
issued shares of the Company giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice
is served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the
EGM is to be held.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose a resolution
to be resolved at that extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to
the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the

following procedures:

(a)

(b)

a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may requisition an extraordinary general meeting
to propose the Candidate to be elected as a Director in
the manner provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings”; or

Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(@)

a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and
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EFREBRS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

1.

(continued)

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified
in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the
last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576
of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend
the meetings. The process of the Company’s general meetings are
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes
will be made to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The
Company uses the annual general meeting as one of the principal
channels for communicating with the Shareholders. The Company
ensures that Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.

At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue has
been considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective Board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to communicate with and answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2017 annual
general meeting (the “2017 AGM") which was held at 23/F, Infinitus
Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 12 June
2018 at 11:00 a.m.

All resolutions put to Shareholders at the 2017 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EFREBRS

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS (continued)

Resolutions proposed at the 2017 AGM

Percentage of
votes in favor

REB-tFREBFAGRENRBR RERENBED L

1. To review and approve the audited consolidated financial statements, the report of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and the report of the independent auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. 100%
BERERRABE_T—tF T _A=T—HLFENLEEZGESYB®RE A2 7
ERE([EF)eRERBIZBENRE -

2. Tore-elect Mr. Tu Jianhua as an executive Director of the Company. 100%
BRRBESERADAPITES-

3. To re-elect Mr. Wong Wun Lam as an executive Director of the Company. 100%
BREBEBRREERATDAPITES-

4. To re-elect Mr. Zhu Hongchao as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. 99.947%
BRRAABEERTATELIFNITESE-

5. To authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration. 100%
REEEgETESHM-

6.  To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Board to fix its remuneration. 99.998%
BIEEEF KBETMERAARRAZEE URKEESSETHHMW-

7. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with any additional
shares in the Company which shall not in aggregate exceed 20% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 99.692%
RTEERE BOIRBEEARIMEAEIIMNEG 2 —RERE ERHEE & HTBBAZR
REBBEARRFEBEITROBE220% °

8.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company
to repurchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 100%
RTEETEARRFMBEEN BEARTRG 2 —REE ERHEBE THBBAZRE
BERARRAREBITROEE 210% °

9.  To approve the extension of the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot new
shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased, if any, pursuant to the share
repurchase mandate. 99.692%

HWEBARTESRBEBELRMOBEENBEERMOEE (WF) MA RN 2 —RIXE-
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and transparency
of the Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contact with
Shareholders and investors through various channels such as via
interviews, presentations, internet, telephone and email.

In addition, the Company has during the year ended 31 December
2018 organised numerous site visits to the Group’s facilities with several
fund managers and equity market analysts. Through the site visits,
the visitors managed to have a better understanding of the Group's
operations and an opportunity to know more about the Group's
development strategy.

We will continue to establish communication opportunities in order to
enhance investors’ understanding of and confidence in the Company.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate
practices, the Company adopted a whistleblowing policy in December
2012. This policy aims at encouraging and enabling employees of the
Group at all levels and others to report violations or suspected violations
and to raise serious concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters of the Group.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make rational and
informed decisions.
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Major Events of
C EG in 2018

SRR_Z—/\FAS:L

APRIL 48

Chiho Environmental Group Limited Obtained the Licence to Dispose of Waste
BeRREESHEVEERR

Our factory in Yuen Long, Hong Kong has
obtained the Licence to Dispose of Waste
from Hong Kong Environmental Protection
Department since April 9, 2018, making
it become the first company to obtain this
licence in the private operation market.

SEMEBETHIMMN2018F4 9B &S
HEBRBEREZEHENEREMREZ
BB EEMSEERERILERMD
LEE-

JUNE 68

Chiho Secured a Syndicated Term Loan Facility of Up to
US$300,000,000 for Future Development
ESRRENEE R SE300,000,0003% 7T 0 KRR A H

The Group entered into a facility agreement with certain independent
third party institutions for a syndicated term loan facility of up to
US$300,000,000 for a term of two years for the refinancing of existing
loans and working capital purposes.

REEBETRYE = HWEEI LRt E RS
([BeE ] ) - 1S &=E300,000,000% T
ZHRETHERRENREREERNBR
BR—ReBEES-

NOVEMBER 11H

Strategic Cooperation with Suzuki Shokai Co., Limited
ESBRREEERLADERAFTERASHERBK S

The Group entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU")
with Suzuki Shokai Co., Limited (“SZK"), one of our long-term business
partners, to form a Strategic Cooperation regarding the sales of
aluminum ingots and other businesses for the Japanese market.
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Major Events of CEG in 2018
SRR _"ZB—/\FASL

NOVEMBER 11H

Chiho Environmental Group Limited was Awarded “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises”
EERREBERARKB[EBHHLH | KE

Chiho Environmental Group Limited was invited to the 15th
“Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Parade”, organised by
Economic Digest. The award is a confirmation of CEG's strengths
and growth potential, demonstrating a high level of recognition
from the international capital market.

EARREBERARESLFER (KE—B) 8BRNF15E &
BREEERLR ] WABEARRER [HBGHDR| KBRS
AABRTEREATSHRARNENNKEEINEDRR

DECEMBER 128

Chiho Environmental Group Limited was Awarded “2018 Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Award”
ESRRRE[2018F B AR E RS MR

The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies e "é e BEELEMARAENKL
16th Anniversary Celebration and 2018 Hong  Fewiic fyiy E_,,... i M + XA T EE20184F
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards _y/wa;d-s.(-:-c;cmony ERBRNAIE RN
Gala Dinner were held at Grand Hyatt Hong ' REENEBEURIERE

BRI -BERREES
RARSEL A ARAIEE
R RIBAMITEE L
Ho 7 - B [2018F B R
RIEAEMEE] o

Kong on 12 December. Chiho Environmental
Group Limited was presented with “2018 Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Award”
in recognition of its excellent performance in
corporate governance and its leading position in
the industry.

DECEMBER 12H

CEG Won the “Most Valuable Medium-and-Small-Cap Stock” Award in the “2018
Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards Contest”
ESRRKE2018FSERBAEBEF MTERL T | K%

After a comprehensive review and fE2018% [ & /&% | KEE5T
_ screening by professional assessors, & ABEEFEEL
.| CEG has won the “"Most Valuable AZREKEREEHE EAIR
Medium-and-Small-cap Stock” Award REEEENELEEEN
in the “2018 Golden Hong Kong REIEHEMMRE: 8L
Stocks Awards Contest” based on its [2017F &8RS AEBET

.. outstanding results and internationalised /NTIEMRAF) | A
2018 BREENER

layout and positioning.
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Independent Auditor’s
Report

RV AT S

=
pwec

To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 114 to 290, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B F Rk ok 18

BHESBRREEERQAAKRR
(RESHEZMA ) FR A])

R

EMEETHRR
BEARREBERAR (A THEERF])
REKBRAR (ATHME[ERE])JIHRE
TMAE290E AR A MK - B

s RIF-NE+-_A=1+—BNHRE
ERER:

s HBEZRLFENGFABHER:

s HAUBWmMRME BRIEEHEX
HE

EMWER

BAIRG  ZEREMBHRREREE LS
fAgRMmM (BERMBREER) EEM
hEiRRT EERER-_F-NF+_A
=t BNEAMEIKAREBREZBLLF
EoERaMBRAMGERERE L2 BR
EE ARG MIRFEREZ SHHE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

HEL KA AT T A BOR PR
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Independent Auditor’s Report
VA 2 LTS
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Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMNESFNAEEBRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

BAERAERUEAFH ZBLEE ZRER

Refer to notes 2.11 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FE2HY B mERNE2.11%17

The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of the Group as at 31 December 2018
was HK$756.9 million and HK$188.3 million, respectively.
Majority of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group in
December 2016.

EEER T N\F+_A=+t—RAZEEKAERAF
REz B EERNREES BAR/T71E5,6908 8T K118
88308 B L - EF AN EELNAERAEAFHE
WEEHESIRER_ZE—R"ET-AKBIERRERE 2
5o

Management performed an assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives as
at 31 December 2018 to determine the recoverable amount
using value-in-use calculations. These calculations used
pre-tax cash flow forecast based on the financial budget
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period were extrapolated using an estimated long term
growth rate.
ERERAFEAEBEFER - —N\FE+_A=+—8BZ
EEREERACAFH s BEEEETRER G BT
B e -2 EERAARELFHRZ HBEELSER 2
BATIR @ MR - AF AR 2 RS MEA AT KRG R X
4o
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In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment
assessment performed by management, the following
audit procedures have been performed by us:
REHEE TR E 2 R N B R Al A F HY 2 B & R
EfffhzaEl HMBSETATERRERF:

Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management’s forecast;

HAFEERBEeREE FFEREMNETVAEITH
B A ERER A Y

Evaluating management’s financial budget and
discounted cash flow forecast by understanding the
process by which they were drawn up, and testing
mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculations;
FIZEREMBEERRRERETRN - T HEEH
HEIRF BB E 2 TR

Assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecast for the projected
5 years by comparing (i) projected sales volume to
available production capacity and historical sales volume,
(i) metal commodity price forecast to market research
and analyst reports, and (iii) projected gross profit
margin to historical profit margin. We also checked
these key assumptions against actual results in the
period subsequent to the year end;

FREROFAEELEAIBBERMATHES : (2B
7 mm (B8 TR BR T35 A 58 R D AT AR 2+ K (i) FBORI £ A1
REFLEFNE FERREFRRBE 2 RETEAR I
RArzEXERFzza@tE BATHREEEE AR 2

EREE REZFIEZRR:
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRETEE A B F IR IR B R vt B

The assessment required the use of significant Evaluating the discount rate by assessing the cost of

management’s judgements and estimates about future capital of the Group and referencing the cost of capital

business performance including revenue growth (sales  of other comparable companies in the industry; and

volume and metal commodity price forecast), gross profit BE@EEH BEEBZEAKA R2ETAEMAHL

margin and discount rate and accordingly, this was an area B QA R Z BARKA - fPAZARIE R &

of our audit focus.

ZAETEEEEB AR ESRBIEREAHE NG5t Evaluating the sensitivity of the Group's discounted cash

BIERAEEE (HERSBREMERTEA) EFZEKEEIR  flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against

- -EHitEARMEZELEBEZ —- reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ERFTEBRZCABEAREEDH 2 TTER iz BS
ERIFRIR SR ETEN 2 BRE

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the judgements and estimates made by management
in respect of the goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives impairment assessment were
supportable by available evidence.

BEFMEETER BRMARREEEERERAER
R AF B 2 BT 8 EE R ERT kR AT 2 2B S k5t R
CBES Pt EsE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

110 cChiho Environmental Group Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss

Bm%

ﬁ'i‘ A
mwh O 12

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-ZT— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Pt 5 HBEBT AEBTT
Revenue U == 5 20,912.8 18,491.0
Cost of sales 5 & A AR 8 (19,228.7) (16,162.0)
Gross profit EH 1,684.1 2,329.0
Other income H A A 6 99.2 113.9
Other gains, net H b U a5 58 7 232.6 237.1
Net reversal of impairment SR EERERRLFE
on financial assets 7 36.4 -
Distribution and selling expenses DI RHERE 8 (49.0) (562.3)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (1,283.3) (1,303.0)
720.0 814.7
Finance income A 10 36.6 38.8
Finance costs B 7% AR A 10 (412.7) (416.1)
Finance costs, net B 75 Bk ANV 58 (376.1) (377.3)
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of an FE(RE & DB BRFL R
associate (E#8) a7 18 0.7) 0.2
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures f&E{5 & & (> 2 R Fi 1% )i 71 18 126.2 108.6
Profit before income tax B P15 54 AL A 469.4 546.2
Income tax expense FriSfim X 11 (70.4) (110.6)
Profit for the year F 175 A 399.0 4356
Profit attributable to: LA & 75 FEAE &
Shareholders of the Company RRFRE 401.2 426.8
Non-controlling interests FETE AR RE 2 (2.2) 8.8
399.0 435.6
Earnings per share attributable to ZAN/NE Y (RN
shareholders of the Company for the SR E A (A=
year (expressed in HK$ per share) BILHIR)
Basic earnings per share FREARBH 13 0.25 0.26
Diluted earnings per share FREE AR 13 0.25 0.26

The notes on pages 122 to 290 are an integral part of these Z122E290BE WM AZSHAMEHRERN
consolidated financial statements. —&me
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

MO RE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—\E+-A=+—HILEfE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
B BEAT AEBT
Profit for the year F RE F 399.0 435.6
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hfth 2 (E1E) U
Items that may be reclassified to AJEEF R E B 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences PE X =58 (302.2) 609.5
Items that will not be reclassified to ~ TEBE# 7 HEEm 2 EHE -
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of post- EFrEEEERRBERZ
employment benefit obligations BHREE 1.6 0.4
Income tax relating to these items BZEIEE B EH 0.4 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FANEMEE (E18) K
for the year, net of tax BRI (300.2) 609.9
Total comprehensive income FRNEENREBE
for the year 98.8 1,045.5
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for A N& A EEEANEE
the year attributable to: Wz, (E18) 5
Shareholders of the Company ZAN/NE 13 102.2 1,033.3
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (3.4) 12.2
98.8 1,045.5

The notes on pages 122 to 290 are an integral part of these £Z5122E290E KMt AZS4RA MEHRERN
consolidated financial statements. — & oo
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Consolidated
Balance Sheet

mOEEBEE

As at 31 December 2018 R-_Z—N\F+_-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEBT BEBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R E 14 3,603.5 3,559.3
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 3 % + {5 FA A 15 387.9 412.9
Investment properties wEYHE 16 3.2 3.5
Intangible assets mEE 17 1,183.9 1,207.7
Investments accounted for using FREREARZIEE
the equity method 18 613.2 591.2
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZRAFEFAEBZE 2
profit or loss TREE 20 0.8 -
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEFFAEMEE
other comprehensive income Wiz & MEE 21 111.0 =
Other non-current assets HiIERSEE 22 5.8 128.8
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS T E = 33 148.7 168.1
6,058.0 6,071.5
Current assets RENEE
Inventories rE 24 2,105.7 2,338.5
Trade, bills and other receivables 25 EEREMEWKIE 25 1,882.1 1,992.4
Fixed return investment & & B ®mI%E 26 211.3 339.0
Amounts due from related parties JE UK BABSE 75 SRR 39 68.2 205.6
Derivative financial instruments TESHMTE 27 36.1 6.1
Tax recoverable Al R B £ 18 15.4 25.8
Pledged bank deposits EERRITIFR 28 313.6 95.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEFEIER 28 697.1 976.4
5,329.5 5,978.8
Assets classified as held for sale PEAREHENEE 23 - 43.4
Total assets EEH#E 11,387.5 12,093.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkAE
Equity attributable to shareholders Zs 2 5] I8 3R FE (L fE &
of the Company
Share capital [ 29 16.1 16.1
Other reserves H b f# 34 6,720.2 7,018.9
Accumulated losses AEtEE (1,561.0) (1,961.9)
5,175.3 5,073.1
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR 2 32 (29.4) (26.0)
Total equity RS 5,145.9 5,047.1
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e EEBEX
As at 31 December 2018 HW=Z—\F+=—A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEER BEBTT

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B 31 2,429.1 1,133.0
Retirement benefit obligations RIRBEANEE 37 23.4 26.7
Other payables H B3R 30 110.7 105.2
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSTHE R 33 380.4 416.5
2,943.6 1,681.4

Current liabilities REEE

Trade, bills and other payables B 5 B8R E MR RIE 30 1,732.2 2,092.0
Current income tax liabilities BERAT ST B R 120.5 113.2
Borrowings B 31 1,358.5 3,022.2
Amounts due to related parties J& {~F B Bk 75 5K IE 39 66.3 110.9
Derivative financial instruments MESBMTA 27 20.5 26.9
3,298.0 5,365.2
Total liabilities EEHEE 6,241.6 7,046.6
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEER 11,387.5 12,093.7

The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to 290 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: i WHTIIEEREEE:

Mr. Tu Jianhua
REBEERE
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 122 to 290
consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Qin Yongming
EXBEE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
|||7.|'\ 'T‘E fm kﬂm E]] E

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RRARIRRER
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 34) losses Total interests equity
H it
BA (M34) EGa @it kR B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEEET AERT BEER  AERAT  BEERT BEER

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—F—H 16.2 6,485.9 (2,384.9) 4,117.2 (32.8) 4,084.4
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year ERR - - 4268 4268 8.8 4356

Other comprehensive income ~ Eft 2 R

Currency translation differences & i =& - 606.1 - 606.1 3.4 609.5
Remeasurement of post- ENGEEELR
employment benefit Rk zBHRE
obligations - 04 - 04 - 04
Total other comprehensive ERNEMEENGEESE:
income for the year, net of tax B HiE - 606.5 - 606.5 34 609.9

Total comprehensive income ENEENELE
for the year, net of tax MeHE - 606.5 426.8 1,0333 122 1,045.5

Transactions with shareholders in  E[R R (LARE S 1)
their capacity as shareholders #1725

Transfer of reserves ERGE - 3.7 (3.7) = = =
Transactions with non-controlling EIEERREZETR S
interest = (11.9) = (11.9) (5.4) (17.3)
Subscription shares repurchased B 813 7% $5 ) 2 88 i 19
and cancelled (0.1 (65.3) (0.1 (65.5) - (65.5)
Total transactions with HRRE (URES17)
shareholders in their capacity as  #1{TR 5%
shareholders 0.1) (73.5) (3.8) (77.4) (5.4) (82.8)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t4%
+ZRA=1— 16.1 7,018.9 (1,961.9) 5,073.1 (26.0) 5,047.1
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mOEREEE

FortheYearEnded31 December 2018 HE—ZT—/\F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARRBRRIER
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 34) losses Total interests equity
HitfkB
B (HaE34) A EE A FERER Y 5
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEEBRT HEEnT HEERR EEER AEER  HEER

At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-\F—F—H 16.1 7,018.9 (1,961.9) 5,073.1 (26.0) 5,047.1
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FRER - - 401.2 401.2 (2.2) 399.0

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Efti 2 & (E518) /A

Currency translation differences & i =& - (301.0) - (301.0) (1.2) (302.2)
Remeasurement of post- ENEEELR
employment benefit k& BHNEE:
obligations, net of tax Mk HIE - 2.0 - 2.0 - 2.0
Total other comprehensive loss ~ FREM 2 EEEAR
for the year, net of tax MBRHIE - (299.0) - (299.0) (1.2) (300.2)
Total comprehensive income ENEANGEE
for the year, net of tax MERHE - (299.0) 401.2 102.2 (3.4) 98.8
Transactions with shareholders in E2R% & (AR S 17)
their capacity as shareholders  #17% 5
Transfer of reserves ER GG - 03 (0.3) - - -
Total transactions with HRE (LERRF7)
shareholders in their capacity as #1758
shareholders - 0.3 0.3) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\%F
+-A=+—-H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9

The notes on pages 122 to 290 are an integral part of these 5122E290H KM AZEHA M ERED
consolidated financial statements. — &b
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

mir\ iqgﬂllgﬁ

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z—N\F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ==t
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Bt BEAR AEBT
Cash flows from operating activities & & Z B fr 3R &R
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 42 627.6 850.3
Interest paid [EEREIES (242.4) (373.3)
Tax paid BT HEIE (67.9) (34.2)
Net cash generated from RETHMEBHRLFRE
operating activities 317.3 442.8
Cash flows from investing activities # & ;ZE 3R ER
Purchases of property, BEWE BWERXE
plant and equipment (281.1) (290.1)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFAE (2.5) (1.0)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BER&EZ
property, plant and equipment FriS 508 42 103.1 126.4
Deposit for property, plant and L/EB ﬁ%& Rz RE
equipment - (22.3)
Placement of pledged bank deposits ~ F A B EFRITER (534.7) (513.5)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits E L2 KB IR 1T 1F 3K 303.5 876.5
Decrease in fixed return investment & BE[E E B H{I&E 150.0 =
Purchase of financial assets through ~ BB ABRZ S REE
profit or loss - (12.2)
Proceeds from disposals of financial ~H & ABZZTREE
assets through profit or loss Ffr {5 k18 24.5 10.5
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESERBELEEE
classified as held for sale Z TS RR 42 152.6 72.0
Proceeds from disposal of o & AT ﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬂﬁéz
available-for-sale financial assets Fr 15338 22 - 10.9
Proceeds from disposal of é%ﬁ%ZFﬁ@i’&
a joint venture - 7.9
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYE 2 TSHRIE
investment properties 42 195.2 102.0
Dividend received from joint ventures WERA &> %% S 81.0 22.9
Other dividend received B E AR B 3.5 6.1
Acquisition of business/subsidiaries,  UWEEZET T A F)
net of cash acquired HMBREEERS 41 (8.1) 475
Interest received B 2 8.8 16.6
Net cash generated from REZFZHME
investing activities REFH 195.8 460.2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-Z

Illm

SHEREE

—N\F+-A=t—HLEE

2018 2017
—2-N\F T tF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
Bt 5 BEER BEBTT
Cash flows from financing activities @EEEFfIEBRER
Repurchase of subscription shares e lil BEREE & EHEA
repurchased and cancelled W s B A7) 29 - (65.5)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R Z T 1538 1,015.1 2,549.7
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITIER (1,264.9) (4,447 .8)
Proceeds of other borrowings HAth {8 5K 2 T 15 308 1,691.5 703.9
Repayments of other borrowings Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁf?ﬂ&ﬁ%\ﬁﬁﬂi
and note payable (2,115.1) (45.6)
Repayments of convertible bonds EEARRES - (67.6)
Repayment of finance lease liabilites EERMEEESE (92.6) (47.7)
Loans from the immediate REEEERATZER
holding company - 12.7
Repayment to the immediate A B AR A RIE & IR
holding company - (209.8)
Repayment to an intermediate A P R AR 2 RE & 58
holding company - (10.1)
Transactions with non-controlling HOFEIRERETR S
interests - (17.3)
Net cash used in financing activities FA & E B T AR & F (766.0) (1,645.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzBEekREEFEIER
beginning of the year 976.4 1,656.7
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESFEBARDFE
cash equivalents (252.9) (742.1)
Exchange differences on cash and ReRBESFEERZ
cash equivalents BE 5 =8 (26.4) 61.8
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2BEEGRESEEER
at end of the year 28 697.1 976.4
The notes on pages 122 to 290 are an integral part of these £Z5122E290E KMt AZS4HRA MEHRERN

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

im o Bl FR IR R B 5E

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of metal recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal
scrap into copper scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap
and other metal scrap in Asia, Europe and North America. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company's ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group"), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited ("USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu"), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@) New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
The following new and amended standards
and interpretations have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

Annual Improvements Project
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

R MBI EERNE 15 KR
BB ERIFE 285k
FEBCERE (BFIR)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BN ImEERNF25R

CEHEN)
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

BRI EEANFEAR

SEHEN)

HKFRS 9

BB B E LR
HKFRS 15

B %R 4R 1558

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

BB 5 E ERIZE 1558
(7T A)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

BB ERIZFE405 (BFTA)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

55 (BARVBRE2RE
ZE®) —REBFE2%
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EASFHTHERBE (&)
21 REEE(E)

(@) FEEFEANGFTETR
ACIEETER R 2 FE
AEBER=-Z—N
F—A—RA %R
16 B B R AR S B R ER
ERNE R BT
ERI R

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
R NMEE T ANERPFENE

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions
INRHBAERNX MR SN DB RTE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

FRABBNBEREERNFESRRBRE LT —HEABTENG
MEERESREMIA

Financial Instruments

PRI TE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

KERFLE 2 W=

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

BB E LRI SE 1558 80 EF

Transfers of Investment Property

REMEER

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
SNERR 5 R FA B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

The following explains the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the
Group's financial statements.

The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 without restating comparatives.
The reclassifications and the adjustments are
therefore not reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the opening consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2018 as appropriate.

2 EBASHBEME (&)

21 REEE(E)

(a)

EaRREBERAH

K IR FTET K
AAEETER R 2 FE
(#&)
TXEERANE B
15 3R & 2 A1 895K I
BRI BHREERE
15557 ¥ AN 5% (8 9 75
R E -

AEBEELEET L
RERNBERTEE
ROBEEMBHRE
RIS K& B W
B E LR L1555
FE it - BH 2R
BIRNR T —+F
TZA=+—H&KE
REEREBERAR
BoER =T —N\F
—H—HOEGRS
BEAER (HER)

—=—)\FFHK 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

2 EBASHBEME(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEXE(E)
New and amended standards and (a) AEEFRARIFET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZER R 72 7
(continued) (%)
The following tables show the adjustments TRINRE D EER
recognised for each individual line item. Line M ETEEL
items that were not affected by the changes EXZEEHTEN
have not been included. The adjustments are HE % HENE
explained in more detail by standard below. ZEBE RN AR
5
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) maEEBRER
(FE)
2017 Effect of Effect of 2018
31 December HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 1 January
—E-tF FHMERE FRRERE
+=A A EBIFISE =—B-NF
Eqr=[ 0} Ea —A—H
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET EX-Yiu BEET BEET
Non-current assets FnBEE
Other non-current assets Hi kg E
- available-for-sale financial assets —-AEHESREE 1214 (121.4) = =
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEABEZEREE
profit or loss (“FVPL") (MMEATEFALER]) - 5.3 - 5.3
Financial assets at fair value through X AFEFAZMEZEKE 2
other comprehensive income SREE (IEAFEFA
(“Fvoc1”) Hip2mKz]) - 116.1 - 116.1
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade, bills and other payables B9 FREREMENKE
— other payables and accruals —HithENFIEREER 539.4 - (17.9) 521.5
Trade, bills and other payables B9 FHRREMENTRE
— contract liabilities —AHERE - - 17.9 17.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAHBERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEZE (F])

(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEEFRARIFET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZER R 72 7
(continued) (%)

(i)  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (i) BEHBRE
AR5 [&
BT A]
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of BERMIBE®RE
HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition, AR 95 AR
classification and measurement of BB gt EA|
financial assets and financial liabilities, 53957 A A i
derecognition of financial instruments, R DB KA
impairment of financial assets and hedge EEREER
accounting. ERAEE R
IFHERERT
B eREE
WA RS e
FTHYIE o
The adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial HREZZE
Instruments” from 1 January 2018 —NEFE—A—
resulted in changes in accounting HERAEE
policies and adjustments to the amounts B 755 3R 5 2E Bl
recognised in the financial statements. FoSR (£ T
The new accounting policies are set out Al -#tes
in Note 2.13 below. [I5Q Rt e
&R e
ERREeESR
A& e
STBEHN T
SBfEE2.13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (continued)

(1)  Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9),
the Group’s management has
assessed which business models
apply to the financial assets held
by the Group and has classified
its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
The main effects resulting from this
reclassification are set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBEBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(F)
(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEERAIFTET R
interpretations adopted by the Group AENEETZERI R 72 7
(continued) (%)
(i)  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” iy ABHMBR
(continued) £ AE B ZE95R
(€@ T A
(&)
(1) Classification and measurement () HER
(continued) 5=
(#&)
Reclassification from available-for- WAL EE
sale to FVPL o YN
FlEFA Bz
Certain equity investment were aTRAEKE
reclassified from available-for- HAIHEHES
sale to financial assets at FVPL FoBREERA
(HK$5.3 million as at 1 January FEFTAB R
2018). These equity investments ZEREE
are classified as at fair value (RZZE—N\F
through profit or loss under HKFRS —H—H&530
9, unless they are eligible for and BABTL) o %E
designated at fair value through i& AR 4% & B JE
other comprehensive income by the EEBIERRK
Group. BEASEIETE
AR N FEE
A E Ath 2 E U

= BARE
BEMBHRE
ERIESR DR
RN FEE

AEzs e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(1)  Classification and measurement
(continued)

Reclassification from available-for-
sale to FVPL (continued)

For the year ended 31 December
2018, net disposal gain of
HK$20.0 million relating to these
investments were recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BRETHEME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEZE (F])
(@)  New and amended standards and (a) AEEZRAEFETR
interpretations adopted by the Group ARNEETER R 2 FE
(continued) (%)
()  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” iy BAEUBER
(continued) H AR ZE 957
[£FTA]
(%)

)

Classification and measurement

) 28R

(continued) ETE
(&)
Reclassification from available-for- WAL EE
sale to FVOCI o Y N
FlEFAE M
FEW
The Group elected to present EAAREHE%
in other comprehensive income Al 9 8 5 A
changes in the fair value of certain & HE T
equity investments previously A’ E T
classified as available-for-sale, FF 1E & B SR B
because these investments are held ®E - HBE
as long-term strategic investments REHATE

that are not expected to be sold
in the short to medium term. As
a result, these investments were
reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets to financial assets
at FVOCI (HK$116.1 million as at 1
January 2018).

EaRREBERAH

HE ZER
BZAFEE
B EENE
2 T U 2=
£ 5 o it
ZEREER
A HE SR
BESEHHHE
E2RAFE
AH th 2w Uk
mLEREE
(BR=ZZE—N
F—HA—B5
1181,6108 /8
JC) °

—=—)\F£$K 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(1)  Classification and measurement
(continued)

Reclassification from available-for-
sale to FVOCI (continued)

Other than that, there were no
changes to the classification
and measurement of financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and

interpretations adopted by the Group

(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(2)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group's trade, bills and
other receivables, fixed return
investments, balances with related
parties and pledged bank deposits
are subject to HKFRS 9's new
expected credit loss model.

The Group was required to revise
its impairment methodology under
HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. The new impairment
model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses (“ECL")
rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. The impact from the
adoption of the new impairment
methodology is immaterial to the
financial position of the Group
as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)  New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

(continued)
(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from a Group's
contracts with customers. The standard
replaces HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS
11 Construction contracts and related
interpretations. Revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control of a
good or service and thus has the ability
to direct the use and obtain the benefits
from the good or service. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note
2.27 below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BRETHEME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEZE (F])
(a)  New and amended standards and (a) AEBEAEIFTETR
interpretations adopted by the Group ARIEET2EAI R iz FE
(continued) (%)
(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (i) BBEMBER

Customers” (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group
recognises revenue from sales of goods.

Outbound freight expenses have been
reclassified in the consolidated statement

SAEANE15
AR
B#H W]
(%)
RmE BB
FEAFE15
S5 3 7K & B i
RIHET MK
B EEBKRY

@,
2

& B M

HFEAIFE15

of profit or loss due to the more detailed 5% B0 B 5F 4B AR
requirements under HKFRS 15 whereby EHEES
freight expenses directly associated with ERFEEER
fulfilling performance obligations are XANEHH
classified in cost of sales. During the BBk B
year ended 31 December 2018, cost of FEHEBITEL
outbound freight of HK$620.6 million BEEEEME
were reclassified from “distribution and BERYSBEZE
selling expenses” to “cost of sales”, as BHE KA B
follows: 2T -)N\F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 EBASHBEME(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEZE (F])

(@)  New and amended standards and (a) AEBRAEFETR
interpretations adopted by the Group ARNSETER R 2 FE
(continued) (%)

(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (i) BBEMBER
Customers” (continued) HHERIE15
5 REEP
=X opal &
(&)
Before 31 December
adoption Effect of 2018
of HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
BB BE T BB ZZ-N\F
WEER $4%£8 +-A=1-H
FI5%5  FISHHYE mER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BERT
Cost of sales HERA (18,608.1) (620.6) (19,228.7)
Gross profit A 2,304.7 (620.6) 1,684.1
Distribution and selling expenses 788 RIHEF 2 (669.6) 620.6 (49.0)
Contract liabilities (HK$17.9 million as at JEATET A E At
1 January 2018) which were previously JE 15 5/ 18 % FE
included in other payables and accruals FEANED
are now presented separately in Note 30 BBE(RZ=Z
to the consolidated financial statements —NFE—A—

to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERSEHBEHE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBIEZE (F])
(b)  The following new and amended standards, (b) T EET RATISETE

new interpretations and framework have been
issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
new interpretations and framework are not
effective for financial year beginning on 1
January 2018, and have not been applied
in preparing these consolidated financial

statements:

I - #T AT 2 FERHEZE
RZF-NF—H—
H 16 B 8B F ) E
PR IER LR - AR
EREEFIEEIRY
AT ETE] RIS R] 2
Bl el RAEZR
RZF—NEFE—H—
BB R EREE R
£ B RERARR
RZERA W% R
=

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTBEHE 2%
RRmest BEEN

Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FEBEER (BFIA)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

EB G R 195
(B3TK)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BER G ERE285%
(fB3TK)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BB RS R EN
(B3TAK)

HKFRS 16

BERMBRERIE165

HKFRS 17

BRMBRERIETH

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Bk (BERMBRERE
ZE8) -REE3%

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

“E-\FHBREN
BRESR

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

EREHENEIRR
BRI

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

BRI HREER B3R
(BETA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
BRMBRERE10% R
BB ERE28%
(B3TK)

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
—IFEE-_Z—+ERRERYE

P\an Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

ATEIERT  HIR S

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HERFNAECRNREER

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

ABAMENER BT

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

Riga 4

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

P15 T3t B 12 ) ISR 14
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
ABRENEETHERER

Definition of Matenal

BAMRTE
Definition of a Business
$BHER

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

PEEEHBENTRA SR Y ERALE

EaRREBERAH

1 January 2019

“Z-n%-R—H
1 January 2019
“Z2-NF¥—-R—H
1 January 2019
“Z-nE-F—-H
1 January 2019
“2-NF-R—H
1 January 2019
—Z-n%-HA—-H
1 January 2021
“Z-—-%-F-H
1 January 2019
“Z-N¥-A-H
1 January 2020
“Z-Z5-R—H
1 January 2020
—Z_TF-R-H
1 January 2020
“Z-T5—-H—H
Not yet determined by
HKICPA
BEGHMATHARE

—=—)\FFHK 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)  The following new and amended standards,
new interpretations and framework have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

The above new and amended standards, new
interpretation and framework are not expected
to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except that
set out below:

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will

result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards,
new interpretations and framework have

been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Impact
Based on management’s initial assessment, the

initial adoption of HKFRS 16 in the future will
result in an increase in the right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities, which is expected to
result in an increase in both assets and liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet. The adoption
will also front-load the expense recognition
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period of the leases, as a result of the
combination of the interest expenses arising
from the lease liabilities and the amortisation
of the right-of-use assets as compared to the
rental expenses under existing standard.

2

EXSHBERBE (8)

2.1

EaRREBERAH

mREE (&)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)  The following new and amended standards,
new interpretations and framework have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate

comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption. Right-of-use assets for property
leases will be measured on transition as if the
new rules had always been applied.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries

are consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

EaRREBERAH

ima TS IR &M GE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued,)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group's accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)
Where businesses are acquired and fair values
of the net assets of the acquired business are
finalised within 12 months of the acquisition
date, all fair value adjustments are recorded
with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of
previously reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

2.4 Joint arrangements

The Group’s joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

2.5

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group's investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint
venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-amounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.12.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEFEEREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 26 NEER (&)

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average

REEBE A ERBNER
HI2HEES R
¥ (AR A A
BRERENKEEBRNE
¥ BB BN
BRIATHERBRBERE
HE

() BHEEEBBRWE
ERBEHRRBZE
EBEREEHNK

MEXFERERE

98

(i) BEEHEHRAA
S R AR A

exchange rates (unless this average is not a HEREWER (B
reasonable approximation of the cumulative Bt FHIERREES
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction BMREERHE 2

dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

EXSHBERHE (8)

26 SEER ()

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant
and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

2.7

YRS EBELNEER
N FE R BERBZEIN
ERNEERAE LRK
T KRR - P EE A HOFE L
ZRREEMBEERATE

e

iiﬁ&@%\:—f%‘é BERE REA
= o W% BB R RERE LA
A&Tﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ JEE 52 AN B W B
B HEEEIERRS KA TRA
NBIE RSB ERINEEE
ME HELRRBEHEERRS
mEE A2 ks /FETE"

BERANESERERAB R
REGEF S BRAIGEGRMASE
E mAEE X EEEZ
BERAZERT HE€EE
AABEREESER S EB
VEE-BEEHH» 2EEMER
RIEER - FTBHMBEERESR

REEL M BHRRARGEE
HARP
FEDRBERETE UER

B AERFER (HERERE
ijE S MR B RIAERE A )
DECACAS - BRI

Buildings 15-50 years or the relevant lease term, whichever is shorter
5 15E50F S ABBTRER - LR & A%
Plant and machinery 5 — 20 years
B B K2 = 5ZE20%4F
Office furniture and equipment 3 - 13 years
WA E R R 3E134F
Leasehold improvements 2 — 10 years, or the relevant lease term, whichever is shorter
HEEE Z10F S HBEEM  AREE /L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights are located in the PRC and they are
classified as operating leases. All land use rights are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is provided to write
off cost of land use rights on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease period.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for
as investment properties when the rest of the definition of
an investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAREHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets 211 BREE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

Computer software acquired are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of certain brand names,
patents and licenses over their estimated useful lives
of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names have indefinite
useful life and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment assessment is
undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment.

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

Non-competiton agreement is recognised at fair value
at the agreement date. Non-competition agreement
has a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the agreement term of 2 years.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEITHERHBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets 213 RERHMSHMEE

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEFEEREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

213 RERHMEREE (K)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in “other gains, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEFEEREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

213 RERHMEREE (K)

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach in accordance with HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss,
. loans and receivables,
° held-to-maturity investments, and
3 available-for-sale financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified
as held-to-maturity, re-evaluated this designation at
the end of each reporting period. See Note 38 for
details about each type of financial asset.

(i) Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify a non-
derivative trading financial asset out of the
held for trading category if the financial asset
was no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets other
than loans and receivables were permitted
to be reclassified out of the held for trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from
a single event that was unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group could choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans
and receivables out of the held for trading or
available-for-sale categories if the Group had
the intention and ability to hold these financial
assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

0]

(1)

Reclassification (continued)

Reclassifications were made at fair value as
of the reclassification date. Fair value became
the new cost or amortised cost as applicable,
and no reversals of fair value gains or losses
recorded before reclassification date were
subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories
were determined at the reclassification date.
Further increases in estimates of cash flows
adjusted effective interest rates prospectively.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments
were subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at FVPL were subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value are recognised as follows:

o for financial assets at FVPL' — in profit or
loss within “other gains, net”

o for available-for-sale financial assets that
are monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency — translation differences
related to changes in the amortised
cost of the security were recognised in
profit or loss and other changes in the
carrying amount were recognised in other
comprehensive income

o for other monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-
sale were sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive
income were reclassified to profit or loss
as gains and other losses from investment
securities.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each
reporting period whether there was objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets was impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets was impaired
and impairment losses were incurred only if
there was objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets
that could be reliably estimated. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost was
considered an indicator that the assets are
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the
loss was measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that had not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset was reduced and the amount of the
loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan
or held-to-maturity investment had a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss was the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group could measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there was objective evidence of impairment
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — was removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that
were recognised in profit or loss were not
reversed through profit or loss in a subsequent
period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increased in a subsequent
period and the increase could be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss was reversed through
profit or loss.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value
of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other
gains, net’. The Group does not have any derivative that is
designated as a hedging instrument.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment (Note 2.13.4).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade, bills and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within cash and cash
equivalents in current assets.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.20 Trade and bills payables

2.21

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of finance lease and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
The exchange gains and losses that are an adjustment
to interest costs include the interest rate differential
between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the
entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and
the borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on interest
rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s functional
currency.

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEFEEREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.23 ENHARIEFEFTSH (&)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BAEITHERHBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 223 ENEREEFTS B (M)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled
to claim special tax deductions for investments
in qualifying assets or in relation to qualifying
expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that
the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is
recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEREHBEBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits 224 EEER

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including for defined benefit plan in
Germany and defined contribution pension plans in
the PRC and Hong Kong, namely the state-managed
retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) respectively.

(@)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
and share premium.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAREHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition 227 QTR

In adopting HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
or as the control of the goods is transferred to the
customers in accordance with relevant shipping
terms. A receivable is recognised when control of the
goods is transferred to the customers as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Services income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale securities,
held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables)
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.29 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI (2017: from financial assets at FVPL
and available-for-sale financial assets). Dividends are
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right to receive payment is established. This applies even
if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment
measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may need to
be tested for impairment as a consequence.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BRETHEME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
2.30 Leases 230 #HE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful
life of the asset and the lease term.

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment, or series of payments, the
right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the
asset is included in the balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.32 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, fixed return investment, derivative
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial
liabilities and borrowings, etc. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in Note 38.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
amounts due from related parties which expose
the Group to market risk arising from changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group currently
does not have a specific foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
closely monitors its foreign currency risk
exposure and considers any foreign currency
forward contracts should the need arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk of payments for borrowings which were
denominated in United States dollars (“US$").
The derivatives were not accounted for under
hedge accounting. The Group was required to
estimate the fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts at the end of the reporting
period, which therefore also exposed the Group
to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2018, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2017:
5%) against the HK$ or the US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$25.0 million lower/
higher (2017: HK$55.4 million lower/higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of RMB/US$ denominated
trade, bills and other payables, borrowings,
derivative financial instruments and cash and

bank deposits.
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ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 =REABRRR (B
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNEESE (E)

At 31 December 2018, if Euro (“EUR") had RZE-NE+=

weakened/strengthened by 9% (2017: 9%) A=+ —8 "k

against the HK$ or US$ with all other variables JC ([BRIT)) AT

held constant, pre-tax profit for the year RETRMEFE

would have been HK$20.9 million higher/lower 9% (ZZT—+F:

(2017: HK$17.4 million lower/higher), mainly 9% ) mFTE HAM

as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses DHREDE  AIF

(2017: losses/gains) on translation of EUR/US$ A B 54 A A 75 28 0

denominated trade, bills and other receivables /B 42,0908 7 T

and payables, borrowings, derivative financial (Z2—tF 7P/

instruments, amounts due from related parties #01,7408 8 T) -

and cash and bank deposits. FEHRBRE AT
SETEZES
SR H fth pE R IE
K e RRIB - B
Ecrm T E B
R RIERR e K
R AT 17 30 2 B
w/BR(ZE—t
F BB ) -

The directors considered the foreign exchange BRI T R S T B 6

risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$ EEZRBBTEET

has been linked to US$. 2 A 8 51 B [ B 1
o

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FUEE

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Based on the simulations performed, with a
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre-
tax profit would have a maximum decrease by

ima TS IR &M GE

3 SRERER(8)
3 e@EREZE (F)

(i)  FEEE (E)
R IRFTHEAT R4S 4R -
= ) R Z B)1001E F
2h B AR B A &

the following magnitude: RNBEDIEENAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEART AEBT
Impact on profit HERFTEH AR AT 2
before income tax 13.3 11.2

Price risk

Commodity price risks

At 31 December 2018, the Group was exposed
to commodity price risks through its metal
commodities future contracts.

(iii)  1B1& 2
2 oo (B 4% [ B
R=ZZE—N\F+=A
=+—H8 ZXxEEHA
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ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 wRtERER(8)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 =REABRRR (B
(iii)  Price risk (continued) (i) EEE L (&)

Sensitivity analysis BRE D

The sensitivity analysis below is determined TONGURE DT THE
based on the exposure to commodity price RZE—-N\F+H
risk of metal commodities future contracts at =+—HeEmmH
31 December 2018. If the commodity price of EAXEEHNEmME
metal commodities future contracts had been & BB 1 7E e fiel & 8B
21% (2017: 19%) higher/lower, the Group's AmHPESNNE
pre-tax profit for the year would increase/ mE® LT’
decrease by the following magnitude: 21% (ZZE— 5

19% ) @ Bl A &£ & F
I BR T B 2 38 o0,

AR E T -
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEATT
Impact on profit RS H AR A &2
before income tax 73.4 12.2
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRERER(8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 £REREZ ()

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments,
amounts due from related parties, fixed return
investment, trade, bills and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on trade, bills and
other receivables on an on-going basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments, fixed
return investment and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, the Group only transacts with
reputable and creditworthy commercial financial
institutions and investment counterparties. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions and investment counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms ranging
from 30 to 90 days to customers upon the approval
of management according to the credit quality of
individual customers. The Group measures expected
credit losses and applies lifetime expected loss
allowances for all trade receivables. Details on the
quantification in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk on trade receivables are set out in Note 25.

Balances with related parties, bills and other
receivables are considered to have low credit risk.
These balances are continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 20% and 58% (2017: 16% and
53%) of its total trade receivables was due from
its largest trade debtors and the five largest trade
debtors respectively. The five largest trade debtors
have good repayment history and credit quality with
reference to the track records of these customers
under internal assessment by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities (Note 31) at all
times so that the Group does not breach borrowing
limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of
its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans
covenant compliance, compliance with interna
balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements — for example,
currency restrictions.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 wRtERER(8)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 =REABRRR (B
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRAMTAEE RA QR
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and TECRBERFHESE
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant WITESRARE  hRR
maturity groupings based on the remaining period R EIEAA R - BRI A
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity HEEARH B BRI
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the FHETT AT - MATES B A
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for ERE AR BB RE T R
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The SRR EESE Al
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual ADHTH o £ R AR
undiscounted cash flows. SEABHNARBBENRER
=,
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
REXH
SR-B -Z=fF Z@ARE-E -Zi% BENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEER BEER BEER BEAT BEAT

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N%
+=A=1-A
Non-derivative FELRER

financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance &3 (TR ERE

lease liabilties) HERE) 216 3455 6749 2,1429 121
Finance lease liabilities BEREER 121 2.2 108.8 3196 20
Trade, bills and other payables &5 ZERE BN B 986.4 1232 82.6 126 -
Amounts due to related parties  JEAERE 7 2R 479 2 59 103 -

1,288.0 495.1 872.2 2,485.4 14.1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

ima TS IR &M GE

3 ZRERER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 SREREZE (&)
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
SR-{EA -2=ff =@RE-% -Z1E RENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AEETR AEETR BEETR BEER BEER
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t%
t=h=t-H
Non-derivative FTESRER
financial liabilities
Borrowings (excluding finance &3 (TR ERE
lease liabilites) HERA) 2853 1112 2,586.2 1,0904 5.1
Finance lease liabilities BERERS 7.2 144 649 160.3 -
Trade, bills and other payables B 5 EEREMENFE 1,435.1 73.1 68.7 402 28
Amounts due to related parties  JEEEE T FE 88.5 03 2.1 - -
1816.1 199.0 2,7141.9 1,290.9 79
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$233.8 million (2017: Nil). Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid within one year after the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows of HK$234.6 million (2017: Nil) will be
repaid within one year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the
end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings disclosed in Note 31,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising capital, various
reserves and accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share repurchases as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Fair value estimation

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Chief Financial Officer and
his senior executives work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 wRtERER(8)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEME (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments TROMAEER-_Z—N\F
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2018 by level of the TZA=+—BARATEIERZ
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. SHIE BRFEATFEMA
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair ZEFHEZ B ABEERE
value hierarchy as follows: Do BHBABBERTERER

N BAT =45

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . EEETS FHEREER AR

identical assets or liabilities (level 1). RFRE (REAE) (F—
&) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level . BRE—ARFTERIERIIREIN -
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either EESIBBEOHR AR (A
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived B1%) sk (IR EBRE
from prices) (level 2). H)EBRFASEAB(F=

&) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . I FEAR HR AT B 22 T 0% R
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ETMEEBERAE
(level 3). (ArAERGAE) (F

=8
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

TRERER (8)
33 AFEMH (H)
APEHBREERF (H)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial assets/(financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)

cREE/ (£RAR) RATRSNHATE ATEER  HERMREESAZE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—I-N\E “T-tE
+-A=t-B +=A=1+-AH
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT

1) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 29 0.9 Level 1 Quoted bid commodity futures prices on
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet - (1.8) ER the London Metal Exchange.
RERBERERTARATECRIAZ e BRREE RALBRIFFTHRZERAEEAE.
L

2) Metal commodities options classified as derivate financial - 03 Level 1 Quoted bid commodities options prices
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet -] on the London Metal Exchange.
RERAERERTHRATECRIAZ Bl iE RALBR PR B SEEAR

3)  Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative 318 44 Level 2 Par method, taking actively traded future
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (19.9) (9.9) E-H forward rates into account.
RERBERERTARATECRIAZeBHREE AEE 2ERRERNHERAER
L

4) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative 1.4 05 Level 2 Present value of the future cash flows
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (0.6) (10.5) E-R estimated based on forward exchange
REABAERERTARATESRIAZNEEREN rates (from observable forward exchange

rates at the end of the reporting period)
and contracted forward rates.
ERNEHER (RREHATBERNES
B ) RE AR B L E M EHARE
ERNRE-

5) Interest rate swap contracts classified as derivatives - 4.7) Level 2 Present value of the estimated future
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet E-1 cash flows based on observed yield
RERBAERERTARATECRIAZMREREN curves.

EARRR S RNAE (REFBRHE
Rihig) -
BeREEEERLAT —Z—N\FER
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ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

TREREE (8)
33 AVEMEH (H)
AP EHBREERF (H)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

Financial assets/(financial liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
¢REE/ (2BER) RATEHNATE ATEER  HERGREZGEAZE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—T\f —F1f%
TZA=+-B +ZA=t-H
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
6) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 08 - Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
BRATEFABG SREE E=H the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities.
IEEMREERFHRRR SRS
R
7) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 11.0 - Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
income E=R the estimated future cash flows of the
BRATEFALMEZARGE SREE investee entities.
IEEMREERFHARR SRS
RE-
8) Other non-current assets - available for sale financial assets - 1214 Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
HhFREEE-THEESREE F=H the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities.
FTEEMREERFHRRR SRS
RE-
9) Contingent consideration payable 1829 (186.5) Level 3 Primarily based on the present value of
RFIARE FZH the estimated future cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRERER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEME (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated FeiERBERERN A TER
balance sheet: 2:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£F—& et ] E=R BEr
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

HERET BHBET HEBRT HEBER

As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=-A=+—H
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RATEFABRZ EREE

profit or loss - - 0.8 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFAHMEEKE 2

other comprehensive income SREE - - 11.0 11.0
Derivative financial instruments TESRMIA 2.9 33.2 - 36.1
Liabilities =0
Derivative financial instruments fTESMTA - (20.5) - (20.5)
Other payables and accruals Hit R FA R EAER

- contingent consideration payable —ENHAKE - - (182.9) (182.9)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—t&+ZA=1—H
Assets BE
Other non-current assets — available-for- H it JEREEE— A HE

sale financial assets SREE - - 1214 1214
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 12 49 - 6.1
Liabilities 8f
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIA (1.8) (25.1) = (26.9)
Other payables and accruals HiEAHRIEREER

~ contingent consideration payable —EREARE = = (186.5) (186.5)
There were no transfers between the three levels during BE_Z-N\FH=FT—tF
either of the years ended 31 December 2018 or 2017. TZA=ZT—RLEFER =R

&z I EaE -

The management considers that the carrying amounts ERERR NEEMBHRERA
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁk$.ﬁrzﬁ’]% Eﬁﬁ&%
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BMABEMERREREAFEHE
approximate their fair values. B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The following financial assets are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements:

3 ZRERER (&)
34 EHERAERSBMAR

AT &R EE S o8
HEITR O FEEE LR
BB EARR

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount ~ Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  RRGREESERIRY
amounts of liabilities ~ presented HELE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGREE
BERNBN  RGREE
ERE  EERER  ARREIN EHE
RZB-NEtZA=t-A CHEESE BESE SHEERR $RIE  REEAR E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BERT BERT BEER BERR BERR BEAR
Pledged bank deposits BEREIRH 3136 - 3136 (34.0) (248.1) 315
Derivative financial instruments 744 &I &
- Foreign currency forward ~— —SMEREIAY)
contracts 08 - 0.8 - - 08
~ Foreign currency swap —INBEHEN
contracts 24 (24) - - - -
- Metal commodities future ~ — 4 BHRE
contracts af 370 (1 353 (03) - 35,0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRiRRERE (&)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHERMEERESHEME (H)

liabilities (continued)

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  ARNGARBERERNRH
amounts of liabilities presented RELE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Finandial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2017 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
BERIRN  REsEE
ERA ERIEE BEREIN B
R=E-t&+ZA=1-H SREELR BEZE SRARTE SRMIE REHERR e
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BERT BEET  AERR BEAT BEAT BEAT

Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 95.0 = 95.0 (204) = 74.6
Derivative financial ITE¢RMIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 05 - 05 (0.4) - 01
— Metal commodities future  —% B 7 ik 2
contracts &l 6.2 (09 53 (44) - 09
- Metal commodities ~tBERGE
options 03 - 03 - - 03

ESBREEERAR —E-NE£1] 197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 wRtERER(8)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (continued)

The following financial liabilities are subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements:

34 EHERMAERSMERE (K)

AT &R B EXEE A8
HEITR O FEEE LR
BB EARR

Related amounts not net off in

Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount  of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities ~ RRGAEESERNBY
Gross amounts financial assets  presented RELE
of recognised net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2018 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
RGEEEE
BERNRN  REREEE
BEA  CRILR BRRIIN 2HE
RZB-NE+=A=t-H tREREE EEAE SREETE SRIAE REHEAR #E
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AEAR BEER BERR AERR AEER AEER
Borrowings &R 3,787.6 - 3,781.6 (34.0) (248.1) 3,505.5
Derivative financial ITEERMIA
instruments
— Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 03 - 03 - - 03
- Metal commodities future —% B REH
contracts CE) 219 (W)} 202 (03) - 19.9
~Foreign currency swap ~~ —SNEREA Y
contracts 24 (2.4) - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

ima TS IR &M GE

3 ZRERER (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHERMEERESHEME (H)
liabilities (continued)
Related amounts not net off in
Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount ~ of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities ~ RREGEEEB BRI
Gross amounts ~ financial assets presented RELE
of recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2017 liabilities  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REEEE
BERIRN  REsEE
BEZ DBEISE ABREIN BHER
R=ZE-t&+ZA=1-H SRARLE BEER SRARTAE SRMIE REHERR it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEAT BBAT BEAT
Borrowings B3 4,155.2 4,1552 (204) - 41348
Derivative financial fTEd@IA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEREA 4
contracts 10.5 10.5 0.1) - 104
~ Metal commodities future — & BH Rz
contracts GE 126 (09) 117 - - 1.7
- Interest rate swap —flEEHEH
contracts 47 4.7 @.7) - -
The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets REBGEEEEBERANZET W
and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's ERRTREERRIABHNE
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been B (HEHER LR RAFER
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair go
value.
The disclosures set out in the tables above include ERMMFEEBREERELAR
commodities futures contracts and options traded SO MEES A R AR K
through brokers, and foreign currency contracts and RITRT XV INEE & 49 B 1) 2 45 R
interest rate swap contracts contracted with banks. G MEBRENEH(BER
If a default event (included but not limited to default TR HERAST N JE 8 ~ IR 2= ok
payment, liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency) TMEE) @ L2 ARRITAI T4
occurs, the brokers and the banks are able to exercise P SHERB RS L & IE#
the right to offset against any favourable contracts am ©
and/or the collaterals placed.
BeREEEERLAT —Z—N\FER
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ima TS IR T

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

by definition,

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and
other assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered
any impairment (Note 17). Other assets that are subject to
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset or a cash-
generating unit have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of disposal,
whichever is higher. These calculations require the use of
estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash
flow projections. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations, which requires the Group to record
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair values on
the date of acquisition. Significant judgement and estimate
are used to determine the completion date and fair value
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The valuation
involves estimating future cash flows from the acquired
business, determining appropriate discount rates, asset lives
and other assumptions.

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operated as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESEE *&#'leﬁ (#58&)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, such as
deductibility of compensation payments to customers.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
are to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate. Periodic review could result in a change in
useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation

expense in the future periods.

The Group has periodically reassessed useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.
Based on such assessment, the Group has applied a change
in accounting estimate prospectively from 1 January
2018 arising from the reassessed useful lives of plant and
machinery. As a result of the change in this accounting
estimate, depreciation charge for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the net book value of property,
plant and equipment as at 31 December 2018 has been
decreased and increased by approximately HK$46.0 million,

respectively.

204 cChiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018

4

B2

%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ()

AEEERE2EAEERE T
RZEEEELERKEEN RN
Bt EREEENE BE R
REEARETLEEMN MG A RE
RERRERFEREHER-
A E AR LUEE RIhaEm
X WEERBEARETLEES
ENERAERFHAEE-T
BERERAZRNERFEH E
Hiigm el Al B SR AT A B3R
e AMELRKRARNTE
N RS o

BREEBME BENMRENBE
RERRE BEGEERRER
A BEEEREERR 1TXIE

FIARRRERFE AEEE

EMETHEEZTEENARE

REH - RIFA MG AKED

B—F-N\F—A—BREEHE

FAE T RS R 5 B e 25 B R (2 A

FHELENSHAFTEZS AR

ZEF A EE BE_T N\

Fr-A=t—RILFENIFE

ERARYE BEEEKEBER_F

—\F+ZA=1+—HHKEF

BEE D B MIE 44,6008

=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes,
during the year. The Group derives revenue from transfer of these
goods at a point in time.

There are differences in the basis of operating and reportable
segments from the last annual consolidated financial statements.

After the acquisition of Scholz Holding GmbH (“Scholz Holding”
and together with its subsidiaries “Scholz Group”) in 2016, the
management organised the Group and reviewed the Group's
financial performance and allocated resources on a geographic
basis, and hence, the operating and reportable segments were
identified based on the location of the main operation of the
legacy Group ("“Greater China” region) and Scholz Group (Europe
and North America, collectively known as “Non-Greater China”
region).

From 2018 onwards, to better evaluate the Group’s performance
in each economic environment, management further divides the
Non-Greater China region into the Europe region and the North
America region. Also, in view of the plans for future business
expansions in other Asian countries, the Greater China region
has been renamed as Asia region. As a result, the operating and
reportable segments of the Group now include Asia, Europe and
North America regions.

In the current year, the Group’s CODM assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on the measure of segment
profit. This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-
operating gains/(losses), such as gain on bargain purchase
on acquisition of subsidiaries, gain/(loss) on fair value change
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
measure also excludes centralised costs such as the Group’s key
managements’ remunerations and other central administrative
expenses. Finance income, finance costs, income tax expenses
and those unallocated income and expenses are not included in
the result for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
Group’s CODM.

The comparative segment information for the year ended 31
December 2017 and as at 31 December 2017 has been restated
to align with the presentation of the current year’'s segment
information disclosure.

*  For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets,
fixed return investment, tax recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and cash and cash equivalents which are managed
centrally. Information relating to segment liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments

are the same as the Group's accounting policies. Inter-segment
sales are charged at prevailing market price.
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table present revenue and segment profit

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

5 NEER(E)
TRANBIERAEBRE-"F— N\

information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the FRZF—+tF+=ZA=1+— EIJJ:$F
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively: A 25 B a5 #00m A B B K
For the year ended
BENTRYLER
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (restated)
“R-N\EtZAZ1-H *f —tEFZ A= (5]
North North
Asia  Europe  America Unallocated Total Asia  Europe  America Unallocated Total
)] B LEN A9E a3t il Bt #EN KRR foh)
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE%n FERr FE%r BEMn EBERR AEMn EEEn REAT  EBEET  BEERD
Revenue Wi
Total seqment revenue HHlELE 37514 151665  2,386.7 - 03046 48136 120616 21990 - 19,0742
Inter-segment sales AHEHE - (834 (1084) - (3918 - (@352 (1480) - (832
xternal sales e 37514 148831 22783 - 209128 48136 116264 20510 - 184910
Segment profit A 752 s 84 184 8455 2959 4603 25 1698 035
Finance income BB 356 388
Finance costs BHmA (#12.7) (16.1)
Profit before income tax WG RAIRA 469.4 546
Income tax expense FERAR (104) (11056)
Profit for the year ER g 3990 4356
Depreciation and amortisation expenses & k& HFX (653) (314 (22 (64 (813 (77 (165 (647) (402 (3%9.1)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets ~ RATEHABELZ
atfair value through profit or loss SHEAEATH
Wi/ (ER) - - - s s - - N 1) B )
Gain on disposals of financial assets ~ HERAFEFABEL
atfair value through profit or loss PREE MG - - - 200 200 - - - - -
(ain on bargain purchase on WETFRA ERRENE
acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 9%.8 9%.8
(Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HENE BRERKEMR
equipment and investment properties & %2 4i& - - - 256 26 - - -5 s
Gain on disposal of assets cassified ~ HEDEARIELE
s held for sale AENE - - - 095 1095 - - - 385 85
Provision for impairment of property, plant 91+ i Ri b Rl &
and equipment and leasehold land and TR LHFREL
land use rights R - - - (12) (12) - = - (1067)  (1067)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEEFR (&)
Segment assets DEEE .
Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31 RZTE—-NF+ZA=+—HBE=F
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are provided as follows: —tF+ZA=T—HoHEEREE
BENHERNT :
As at
R
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 (restated)
Z2-NE+ZA=t-R ZEHEFZAS TR (8E3)
North North
Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total

L3 Bl LEM @it By B tEM &t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M
BEEn BEEL BEBn BEBr ASET BEET ASET ABEL

Segment assets PHEE 2,712.6 6,563.5 1,0028  10,278.9 3,036.5 6,593.5 9483 10,5783
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 148.7 168.1
Fixed return investment BB HiE 113 339.0
Tax recoverable MREHRE 15.4 2538
Derivative financial instruments  fT£&BIA 36.1 6.1
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAESEER 697.1 976.4
Total assets EERE 11,3815 12,0937
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
tax assets (there are no employee benefit assets and rights arise
contracts), and analysed by geographic regions as follows:

ima TS IR &M GE

D EEFR (F)

HEE R
FRBEETRELRTARELHS
BAE (HEREANELRBEENE
ERER)  RBEAHOT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=FB-NF R-FT—LF
t=A=+—-RA tZA=t—H

HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEATT
Asia EED) 1,037.1 1,127.3
Europe B 4,077.9 4,068.0
North America 16 =M 680.6 586.7
Total BEr 5,795.6 5,782.0

Analysis of revenue by category REBER B2 WED T

For the year ended
BEUTHHILEE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
t=A=+t—-A +t=A=+—H
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBTT
Metal recycling Eal ] EE

— Ferrous metal 2B 11,533.8 9,616.0
— Non-ferrous metal - BB 8,482.6 7,792.3
Forging and foundry RiE RS 153.6 259.8
Others HAib 742.8 822.9
Total FE 20,912.8 18,491.0
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEEFR (&)
Information about major customers FEEFHES .
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's REBEZE_Z-NFR-_ZF—tF+=A
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. =+—HLEFE TESE-XFERAN

LB E10%3 A F o

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HakA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKSM HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Rental income THE WA 22.0 21.2
Rental income from investment properties & &MEMA U A (HizE16)

(Note 16) 3.7 3.6
Government grants I 478 BN 0.9 0.3
Dividend income (Note 21) & B (HFEE21) 3.5 6.1
Other income from related parties R B B8 7 B9 E A A

(Note 39(a)) (Kt5E39(a) ) 3.7 2.6
Service income AR 75 U A 6.3 13.4
Compensation from insurance coverage RE2fEE 16.3 19.0
Others HAth 42.8 47.7

99.2 113.9
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=\
wh O

BFs IR Bl 5

OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HilhasF5
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEABT AEBTT
Gains/(losses) on fair value change of: NFEES WS (FEE)
— derivatives financial instruments TSI A 31.5 (15.5)
— financial assets at fair value through —BATFEFAERZ
profit or loss EREE - (1.7)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net [N (BB) K FHE (1.4) 1.3
Provision for impairment of trade, bills and & 5 - Z & & £ b & U
other receivables, net (Note (i)) PRI RERE
R (MFEG)) - (49.3)
Net reversal of impairment on B Rl E ERER R R
financial assets (Note (i) (PRFEEG)) 36.4 -
Provision for impairment of property, VI HE R 2
plant and equipment (Note 14) B (MaE14) (1.2) (14.3)
Provision for impairment of leasehold land 78 & = b J2 £ 3 (i FH # 2
and land use rights (Note 23(a)) RER A (5E23()) - (92.4)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BER&EEZ
equipment e 29.6 16.0
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R E Y 2 Wk - 254.5
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held HEDEAFIEHEEE
for sale (Note 23(a)) Z Wz (Mtet23(a)) 109.5 38.5
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of WEFAFZHEEE
subsidiaries (Note 41(b)) Wz (HaE41(b)) - 96.8
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HEZEAFEFABEZ
value through profit or loss (Note 20) SREE 2 W
(Kt7E20) 20.0 -
Compensation income mEW A 45.3 -
Others H A 0.7) 32
269.0 237.1
Note: B 5E -

(i) With effect from 1 January 2018, the presentation of net reversal of
impairment on financial assets is shown separately on the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

(0] B-Z - \F— A HEEBAR £/
BERERDFENZEFN GBS

RINRe

ESRREBERAT —E-N\FER
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ima TS IR T

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 ®BMEIHZHAX

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEEBT BEBIT

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress £ 24 i & Uk fr 17 & 2 & &)

and finished goods (234.8) (107.9)
Raw materials and consumables used BT A R B K8 FE i 16,782.3 14,784.7
Provision for inventories, net (Note 24) GFEREFRE (WHiE24) 18.5 5.4
Employee benefit expense (Note 9) EERAMZ (M:E9) 1,272.8 1,135.3
Depreciation and amortisation expenses EREHERAS 381.3 399.1
Legal and professional expenses (Note (i) &7 & ZHF X (HEG)) 66.8 133.6
Auditors’ remuneration % 25 Bl = B

— Audit services —ZER 31.6 22.6

— Non-audit services — IEZE R 2.7 1.0
Other expenses HimE 2,239.8 1,653.5

Total cost of sales, distribution and selling #5875 84 & 4 &5 %

expenses and administrative expenses A RITHE A 2 42 58 20,561.0 18,027.3
Note: B 5
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017, legal and professional expenses (i) BE-_T—+tH+-A=1+—H1t
included non-audit service fees to auditors of HK$19.3 million. FE EERBERI B EZEED

B FE X BRI B 1,9308 8 T
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 EERAMMEX
Employee benefit expense during the year are as follows: FANESENFAAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT
Wages and salaries TERN = 1,078.0 972.9
Other termination benefits H i BB 4@ A 3.7 2.1
Social security costs FEARG AR 5.5 6.6
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRE A — R e H KRS
plans (Note (a)) (Ki&E@)) 6.1 6.2
Pension costs — defined benefit BN KA — R ERBFIES
plans (Note 37) (Pft5E37) 1.0 0.9
Other employee benefits H b {E 8 t&8 A 178.5 146.6
Total employee benefit expense & 813 H 2 48 1,272.8 1,135.3
Notes: P E -
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) EBRE-REEKTE
Contributions totalling HK$0.3 million (2017: HK$0.4 million) were payable to HREH0BBT (=T —+F:408%
the fund as at 31 December 2018. TL)ARZE—N\FE+_A=+—RHEE=E
/\%iﬁ
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AEUBEHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the FAREEZRUERTHATRENE

IR M 40RO 2 MU EE (= F
—tF M) FRABNTFHRT =M (=
E—tF )AL ZBEMT

year include two (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2017: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—B-N\F T —tfF
HK$SM HK$M
BEER ER--
Salaries, bonus and other allowances ;< ~ 7E4L & £ fth 2 85 17.6 12.5
Pension costs-defined

contribution plans RIKNE KA — FE G 8 - =
17.6 12.5

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BENFIATEHE:
Number of Number of
individual individual
A A
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000  3,500,0015% 7E 4,000,000 7t - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000  4,000,0013% 7T Z4,500,0005% 7T - 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T 25,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7t & 5,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T 6,000,000/ 7T 2 =

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

6,000,0017% 7T 26,500,000/ 7T

ERREEERAH
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 HIFSRANFER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT AEBT
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFE R Z A E WA 10.5 14.7
Interest income from related parties KB RS 2 F EHA
(Note 39(a)) (Kt7£39(a) ) 3.8 1.9
Interest income from fixed return & € B 3% & 2 K B A
investment 223 22.2
Finance income A 36.6 38.8
Interest expense on loan from the REEEERATRNERZ
immediate holding company 2R (FFE39())
(Note 39 (a)) - (0.2)
Interest expense on loan from an REFPEZEBRARNERZ
intermediate holding company FMEREZ (MEE39@))
(Note 39 (a)) - (1.4)
Interest expense on loan from KRB BT BRI B
related parties (Note 39(a)) (FF5E39(a) ) (0.6) (1.5)
Interest expense on bank loans, RITER BIREFEREZ
overdrafts and bills payable =N (114.8) (168.5)
Interest expense on note payable ERRNREZNERE (130.0) (218.3)
Interest expense on early redemption of REBRSBREMNTKIEZ
note payable (Note 31(b)) FEFZ (FFE31(0)) (36.6) =
Interest expense on early repayment of REEEHEMERZAERAL
other borrowings (14.2) -
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities @B & EE T 2 B 5% (13.5) (10.5)
Effective interest expense on HitnfE R ERF SR
other borrowings (103.0) (13.7)
Effective interest expense on AR ES < BER AN S RHXE
convertible bond - (2.0)
Finance costs B 75 B AR @27 (416.1)
Finance costs, net B TS B AN VR 2R (376.1) (377.3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT")
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Germany and USA income taxes have been provided at the
rate of approximately 30% (2017:30%) and 26% (2017: 39%)
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates. Income tax expense
is recognised based on management’s estimate of the weighted
average annual income tax rate expected for the full financial
year.

11

ima TS IR &M GE

FRiSti X

EBFERIREFE NG ERRUE R
BB %Z16.5% (ZE—+4F :16.5% ) &t
RS

BEPBECEMSH ([DEMEH])
ERAREEMSHE RGNS P E
AR IR B FE NG ERBUE Fli
FHE25% (ZF —tF:25% )T e
e

BE R EBEMSHR D BIRFEARGETE
REURFIET R H30% (ZF— L5
30% ) }%26% (—ZZF—+t%F :39% ) 7Tl
B o

BINE R 2 RIRTH IR A R B & FrEE
KRBT K EF ARG ERBE
o BT S 15 FA S T AR 15 ' 22 I 4 B B
I E TR AR I T A S R PSR K
B fEFTHERR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—tF
HKSM HK$M
HBEBT AEBTT

Current income tax (expense)/credit: BIEAFR S RiE (M) %
Germany 2 E (104.1) (85.5)
PRC EIT PR EPIEH (0.5) (6.5)
Hong Kong profits tax BB NFH (2.7) (3.1)
USA ESe (2.2) (12.9)
Other jurisdictions B el kR 1.0 1.7
(108.5) (106.3)

Over/(under) provision in prior years: RBEFEBEREE
(BETR)

Germany = 17.1 (20.2)
Hong Kong profits tax BBNFH 4.3 =
Other jurisdictions H R AR R 6.2 =
27.6 (20.2)
Deferred income tax credit (Note 33) FEIEFTISRIR & (Mi5E33) 10.5 15.9
Income tax expense FTiS i (70.4) (110.6)

EaRREBERAH
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

PRiSTiia s (&)

AR B T8 B A1 I 0 B B B PR
IR B R R I T BUE T

average tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as EMEmE B ERT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 %50 Al /& A 469.4 546.2
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 1238 F 7S AR A B 2R 4 1 B
applicable to profits in the respective 7N H F 2R =+ B A I8
countries 153.3 166.0
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] FOF% 5 5% B9 5 745 57 22
tax purpose 97.0 185.3
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERMBANHEZE
tax purpose (40.9) (122.2)
Tax effect of temporary differences RIERNE R ZZED
not recognised i 2 (11.4) 20.6
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIBEEN SR 12.4 81.8
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses {5 A 2 Bl R fE R B 18 /5 18 /O
previously not recognised M E (77.3) (208.5)
Tax impact on share of results from HELBERARREGERE
an associate and joint ventures HEIRBE (35.1) (32.6)
(Over)/under provision in respect of BAEFE (BEEE)
prior years BB R (27.6) 20.2
Income tax expense for the year FRMEHAX 70.4 110.6

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 32.7% (2017:
30.4%). The slight increase is caused by a change in the

distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in

respective countries.
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12 DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2018 and 2017, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

12

13

ima TS IR &M GE

I% B

ARRRZZE—NFER T —tFHE
KNS ERRATARE AHET
—N\ER—_T—+F+-_A=+—HIt
F 2 R3S B R IR s R N AT AR

B o
o

BREH
(@ E&X

FREABNIIZA R R RE
IEARFE MR AR 1T E AR
MEFIHEE FER/L -

the year.
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HKSM HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Profit il
Profit for the year attributable to PN/NGS Y 2 )
shareholders of the Company NG i A 401.2 426.8
Number of shares KRG &R
Weighted average number of B 817 @R
ordinary shares in issues FEHHE (FR)
(thousands) 1,605,153 1,611,427
Basic earnings per share FRERZF
(expressed in HK$) (LA T35, ) 0.25 0.26

(b) Diluted

The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(b) #58
REBEE-_Z—\FER-_ZT—tF
+—A=1t—BLtFEAEEY
EEBITEBEEEERD -
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i B mIRR RNz :

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BB MRE

Office
Plant furniture
Buildings and and and Leasehold  Construction
freehold land machinery equipment  improvements in progress Total
BFRKA BREEA
XELH  RRRER Rk HEMERE IR a5t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$SM HK$M HK$M
BEATL BEAT REAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+£-A-R
Cost R 2,069.8 806.5 795 517 528 3,060.3
Accumulated depreciation 258 (15.2) (105.7) (17.8) (48.2) - (186.9)
Net book amount REE 2,054.6 700.8 617 35 528 28734
Year ended 31 December 2017~ HZE-Z—+#
TZAZT-HIEEE
Opening net book amount ENZRBTE 2,054.6 700.8 617 35 528 28734
Acquisition of subsidiaries e 28 (MaFa1(0)

(Note 41(b)) 3115 70.9 2.0 - 1.7 386.1
Additions AE 51.0 169.8 38.7 18.2 151.6 4293
Transfer upon completion e 40.1 623 48 36 (1108) -
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZRENZ (MF16)

(Note 16) 0.1) - - - - (0.1)
Impairment loss (Note 7) REEE (f5E7) - (143) - - = (143)
Disposals e (42.2) (75.5) (3.8) (13) - (122.8)
Depreciation charge hERR (133.6) (196.4) (36.5) (3.0) - (369.5)
Currency translation differences ~ EXZE 292.7 731 8.7 - 27 3772
Closing net book amount ERZEETE 2,574.0 7907 756 210 98.0 35593
At 31 December 2017 RIZ2—tE+-A=1-H
Cost e 2,709.6 943.7 109.2 319 98.0 3,892.4
Accumulated depreciation and LA NERAEER

impairment loss (135.6) (153.0) (33.6) (10.9) - (333.1)
Net book amount REFE 25740 790.7 756 210 9.0 35593
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 %% /& K& (&)

Office
Plant furniture
Buildings and and and Leasehold  Construction
freehold land machinery equipment  improvements in progress Total
BERAA HARE
¥Rt HERHE kR BENREE EREIR &t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

AE#R AEkT BERT BERT BEET AERT

At 1 January 2018 R=E-\E-A-R
Cost A 2,709.6 943.7 109.2 319 9.0 3,892.4
Accumulated depreciation and ZEERBESR

impairment loss (135.6) (153.0) (33.6) (10,9 - (333.9)
Net book amount FREFE 25740 79.7 756 210 9.0 35593
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-F-\§+tZf=1-H

HEE

Opening net book amount ENREFE 25740 790.7 756 210 98.0 35593
Acquisition of business (Note 41(a)) Wi £ 75 (R3E41(0)) - - 05 - - 05
Additions HE ni 264.9 1342 8.6 1227 602.1
Transfer upon completion REREEE 1.1 796 156 38 (110.1) -
Transfer from assets classified as ERARARELEN

held for sale (Note 23(0)) BE (KE30) 5.1 - - - - 51
Impairment loss (Note 7) REEE (M) (1.0) - (02) - - (12)
Disposals & (33.) (327) 9 (0.1) (@.1) (135)
Depreciation charge TERX (1173) (168.6) (45.6) (45) - (336.0)
Currency translation differences ERER (110.9) (33.2) (5.8) - (29 (1528)
Closing net hook amount ERCEEEE 23990 9007 4 288 103.6 3,603.5
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\ETZR=+-H
Cost A 2,655.3 11815 1.7 439 103.6 4,226.0
Accumulated depreciation and ZIERBERR

impairment loss (256.3) (280.8) (703) (15.1) - (622.5)
Net book amount HESE 2,399.0 900.7 1714 2.8 103.6 3,6035
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14

Notes:

Depreciation expense of HK$237.9 million (2017: HK$250.3 million) has been charged
in cost of sales, HK$4.8 million (2017: HK$4.8 million) in distribution and selling
expenses and HK$93.3 million (2017: HK$114.4 million) in administrative expenses.

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2018 mainly comprises new metal scrap
processing plants and equipments being constructed in Asia and Europe.

Buildings and plants with a net book value of HK$2,072.4 million (2017: HK$2,054.5
million) were pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 35).

Plant and machinery includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee
under a finance lease:

ME BB MR ()

GEES

R 2183,7908 8 T (=T — 4 : 285,030
EET)NEERAME 48088 T (=T —+
4808 7T ) R 9 88 K 88 & 5 S 0Bk 29,3308
BT (ZZT—+F : 1{81,44087870) RITEB 30
B{%o

REE-N\F+-A=+—HBNERIRIESE
FBEDNEBMNRRTOFBESEINT TRK R

B F (E A20187,2408 8t (=2 — £ 4 : 2018
54508 BT ) MEF REE BHEM T IRIT  EAK
SEBRRITRVEMER (H5E35) ©

BEIERBEATSRE AEERET —ARE
THAE AN

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+5F

HK$M HK$M

HEBRT BEAT

Cost — capitalised finance leases RA-BERERLD 584.4 166.3
Accumulated depreciation R E (269.1) (61.5)
Net book amount BREFE 315.3 104.8

The Group leases various plant and machinery under non-cancellable finance lease
agreements. The leases are between 1 and 6 years, ownerships of the assets lie within
the Group.
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15 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed

as follows:

ima TS IR &M GE

15 MELH R iERE
AREER L R R S
BENKRARMFES AT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$M HK$M

AEBT BEET

At 1 January R—H—H 412.9 529.3

Amortisation charge BiHR (10.3) (13.2)

Impairment (Note 23(a)) B (MFE23(a)) - (92.4)
Transfer to assets classified as ERESEARIEFLEEE

held for sale (Note 23(a)) (FfF5E23(a)) - (38.3)

Currency translation differences P& & =8 (14.7) 27.5

At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 387.9 412.9

The Group has pledged certain land use rights with a net book
value of HK$316.4 million (2017: HK$333.9 million) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).

AEEEEFREFEA3E,64085
TL (=T —+F :3183,3908 %8 ) A
T fE A - (ERNSEEERMIRTT
B R (FEE35) o

ESBREEERAR —E-NE£1]R 221
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 KEWZH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 3.5 81.8
Transfer from property, plant and EREAVE BERZE
equipment (Note 14) (PfsE14) - 0.1
Depreciation charge TERX 0.2) (4.9)
Disposal & - (76.2)
Currency translation differences PEH =% (0.1) 2.7
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8© 3.2 3.5
Notes: B &
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2017: the 0] ERRdE (2 —tF:hE)NREY

PRC) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2018 was
HK$59.7 million (2017: HK$52.3 million).

(iii) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$3.7 million (2017: HK$3.6 million) (Note 6).

(iv) Depreciation expense has been charged to administrative expenses.

222 chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ERBTEAFHAEREERE

AEEREMER=-_Z—/\F+=A
=+ —HHAFEASI0EBT (=T
—+t4&:52308%7T) °

REBE_Z—N\E+_A=+—RHLFE
R BERNERNREZERENE
HeWAR3708H8TT (ZF—+5F:3608
) (HizEe) e

PFrEMX RIS FMER o
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ima TS IR &M GE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREEE
Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and
Computer  patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses  relationship Total
w25 EPBRER
EES BE LEE HERBR @it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT EX- Yoo BEBT BEBT
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t5—H—H
Cost AR 690.6 54 238.9 73.4 1,008.3
Accumulated amortisation EGe ] - - - - -
Net book amount REFE 690.6 5.4 2389 73.4 1,008.3
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-Z—+%F
+ZA=+—HLLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFEE 690.6 5.4 2389 734 1,008.3
Additions NE - 1.0 = = 1.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEg T 27 (HEE41(0))

(Note 41(b)) - 1.2 39.6 17.4 58.2
Amortisation charges BEAY = (2.6) 4.9) (4.0) (11.5)
Currency translation differences & % Z %8 101.1 0.9 37.9 118 151.7
Closing net book amount FRREFE 791.7 59 3115 98.6 1,207.7
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F

+=-A=+-8
Cost AR 791.7 8.5 316.4 102.6 1,219.2
Accumulated amortisation RETEH - (2.6) (4.9) (4.0) (11.5)
Net book amount REFE 791.7 59 3115 98.6 1,207.7

EaRREBERAH
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

17 BEEE (&)

Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer patentsand  suppliers’ competition
Goodwill software licenses relationship  agreement Total
mE-BF EFEER RERS
BE  EEgK kiEE HEFERE G @zt
HK$M HKSM HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET BEET HEET BEETL BEETRL BEETL
Year ended HEZT-N\&

31 December 2018 TZRA=+—-RLLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 791.7 5.9 3115 98.6 - 1,207.7
Additions e - 2.5 - - 453 478
Acquisition of business WiE %%

(Note 41(a) (Fizta1(a)) - - - 16.0 - 16.0
Amortisation charges BHRY - (3.5) (11.2) (8.8) (11.3) (34.8)
Currency translation differences [ 5 2% (34.8) (0.4) (13.3) (4.1) 0.2) (52.8)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\¥

+-A=1+-A
Cost R 756.9 103 302.9 114.3 45.0 1,229.4
Accumulated amortisation B § - (5.8) (15.9) (12.6) (11.2) (45.5)
Net book amount BEFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 33.8 1,183.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd* (& & 37 &7 IR (R %}
AR AR]) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding in 2016 with
carrying amount of HK$14.1 million and HK$742.8 million (2017:
HK$14.7 million and HK$777.0 million) respectively as at 31
December 2018.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented brand
names with carrying amount of HK$188.3 million (2017:
HK$196.9 million) as at 31 December 2018.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and North
America as the main regions. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Yantai Liheng is allocated to Asia region and that
arising from the acquisition of the Scholz Holding is allocated to
Asia, Europe and North America regions. Brand names have been
allocated to Europe and North America regions.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the metal recycling business in which the CGU
operates.

*  For identification purpose only

17

ima TS IR &M GE

B EE (&)
BERAERUEHTFH2EBTLEE
Z R BRI
BEDNEAR T —~"FREES T
BREMEAERAT ([EELfE]) &
IERR R IERMER R N\F+=
A=+—H8 BREE R A1,41085
T( T —+HF:1,470887T) k718
428088 L (=T —+F:7187,7008
PEIT) °

EERAGAFHZETLEERN -
Z-\F+-_A=t+—HERHERIE
8,8308 L (—Z T —+t 4 : 1189,6908
FBTT) K M hE A o

EEERBMIBMERMEBRIR -H
ERAIEM  BUNRIEEMERT 21
BE-REWBEEIENHBERIREE
oMb I 2 2R B W B R A 4 R
WHFZE M - BUM RAL M S - am
MR E D B2 BUM RSN HE o

ReELBUARESRIREERER
AHEREE MAERTENERERE
32 EHE ) I F R TR E HORR T AT IR
SRR - BERFHORSRAER
IXFrate et R EE R XA
SHABLCEREL (REELEML
ERENEB)NRATFIERR-
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives (continued)

For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are

17 BEEE (&)
BERASRICEAFH BT EE
ZREAR (#)

MR AEBA (S AE B EE
ZRERS, B A g E AN E
ERE ERRERRFBRBEEAT

disclosed below: Xt
North
Asia Europe America
=M BUM =M
2018 —E-N\f§
Long term growth rate REE R X 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i) BRELATHTIR R (FIEEG)) 17.7%-19.1% 14.2% 13.9%

Gross profit margin

%

5.6%-7.2% 8.7%-9.1% 9.3%-9.6%

Revenue growth rate Wi R =R 1.2%-39.8% 0.4%-2.9% 2%-17.7%
North
Asia Europe America
CED) BUM JEEM
2017 —E—+F
Long term growth rate RHEE R K 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i) BrELATHTIR R (KIFE()) 13.7% 12.8% 12.6%
Gross profit margin E R 9.1t109.9% 13.4% to 13.5%
9.129.9% 13.4%%13.5% 16.5%
Revenue growth rate Uy 7 48 & X 9% 4% 4%
Note: B 5

(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast.

The recoverable amounts for Asia, Europe and North America
CGUs would still exceed their carrying amounts if the assumptions

were changed as follows:

(i) FERMNBRBRTIR IR IR R BRI T IR K o

i RREB T - oM - BOMN R AL =M
3R & 7= A B v 9 AT U B FOR 6 AR 3B 1R
FErRRE(E :

. lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point; o S RAEREEEIER S
0 raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or o AEBRF AT ITIR IR AR D&
B
e lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected . U R 1 R R PR E TR R IE R R
growth rate. 20% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

(a)

Interest in an associate

ima TS IR &M GE

18 (EMEDEIIRNIRE

() RBEQRzER

2018 2017
—B-N\F  —T—tf
HKS$M HK$M
BEAET BEBTT

Cost of unlisted investment in REEE QR 2 IE ETIRE KA
an associate (Note) (PfaE) 2.3 2.3

Share of post-acquisition FEAE WS (B51R) m A

(losses)/profits (0.3) 0.4
2.0 2.7

Notes:

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

B aE -

REERRERROEE QR AFHEMOT

Proportion of

Place of ownership interest
Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
AEEFEF
EREE FTEEEMB HmEERESLH FEEWR
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
ERHcBBERAR ([E/]) B BESBRS

Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available
for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interest in an associate.

Set out below is the summarised financial information
for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity
method.

BRE)AILARR RERD I EASHOTES

WEBBANSERE L RE 2%
mZEAREE

TXINHER M HEERRE
H e AEES R

ESRREBERAT —E-N\FER
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imO RS IR R 51

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@) Interest in an associate (continued)

18 {FREREIIRNKRE (B)

(@) REEATZED (H)

Summarised balance sheet EEEERUE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBIT
Total current assets MBEEEE 29.3 25.4
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 0.7 0.7
Total current liabilities mBBEERE (27.8) (20.5)
Total non-current liabilities JERE A FEREE - =
Summarised statement of comprehensive income EHEHKERYPE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
Revenue & 117.5 229.3
(Loss)/profit and (E18) & A &
total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (BE) R85 (3.4) 0.8
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=\
wh O

BFs IR Bl 5

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 EAEREIRNKRE (8)

EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(@) Interest in an associate (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly

() RBEQR &R (H)

Eil BB E R R B By s

ZBRmEfE (7

MR N E

Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R) 2RI
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
HEERT BEAET
Net assets of Poly Metals as at EBR+=—A=1+—8H
31 December BEEFE 2.2 5.6
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7<% B/ 2 B 2 ¥ 5 &
interest in Poly Metals 7 % LE 171 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals ELREBEEFE 0.5 1.2
Goodwill GES 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FARKREE 2.0 2.7

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the associate.

EAUE R [ BR A S B B B
AR EABREREFHBERR
ZBERRZHBHRERENN 2E

e

EaRREBERAH
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 £

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

EH:
=)
=
=T
Mo
i}

(b) Interests in joint ventures (b) REELEZER
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FESERELFBHINMOT
below:
Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal ~ Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
Ry,
ERER TEEEWY BEEESAML TEER FHEEE REE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\§ —E—tfF “E-N\§ It 3
HKSM HK$M
BEAETR BEET
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 115.7 114.9
M. Kaatsch GmbH 2H M=) s
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 211.8 2011
B ()] B
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (i) Equity 126.2 135.0
2 iga(0)] Es
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (iv) Equity 157.5 137.5
fERFEAEERE (0} Ea
611.2 588.5
Notes: B 5
(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market prices for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHA—fEFLA AR R E
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. IR T 5 R E - Z R RIREE
REBE MIREEBLESE-
(i) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (i) Scholz Austria GmbHA — LA 2
market prices for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in A S EL R D 3 £ T 35 R AB o 52 A A)
Austria. REMFEEFE SRR -
(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.A—

no quoted market prices for its shares. It is engaged in collection,
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the

Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

ima TS IR &M GE

18 EREDEIIRNITE (&)

(b) REELEZES (H)
i ()
V) BEXERBZRAEC¥ZME

S AEBE TR B R EREERE
BEEHEERS WEAERDEA

2018 2017
e S —F—tf
HK$M HK$M
BEER ER-9-

Aggregate carrying amount of individually RAEBIFEEAA L X
immaterial joint ventures BRE B4R 157.5 137.5

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: Z£5 [ 1 2 4848 :

Profit for the year F A4 Al 51.6 435
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 EEE - (7.0)
Total comprehensive income 2EW AT 51.6 36.5

The Group provided guarantees of approximately HK$35.9
million (2017: HK$140.2 million) for bank borrowings,
rental obligations and finance leases to certain joint

ventures as at 31 December 2018.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interest in the joint venture.

AEBR-_ZE—N\NF+ A8
=t+—HAETALECERBIT
ER HEETERRERERE
#3590 BT (ZE—LF: 18
4,0208 87T ) Z &R

VWEBBASERSELE 2 E
mZEREE

EaRREBERAH
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 fEf#ER

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

SHFIBRMIRE ()

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) REBL%EERE(H)
Set out below is the summarised financial information T X% & Schrott und
for Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz Metallhandel M. Kaatsch
Austria GmbH and Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. which GmbH * Scholz Austria GmbH
are accounted for using the equity method. In the opinion Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.Z
of the directors, these joint ventures are material to the AR E - iR AR -
Group. EERE ZEAELEHAE
EmEBEK-
Schrott und

Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,

M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH S.deR.L. de C.V.

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“E-\f CZT—+Ff ZE-Nf ZTtF ZE-Nf ZTtF%

HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M

HEER BEBT BEER BEBT AEER BEBT

Revenue Wz 1,122.7 1,132.6 2,865.8 2,881.4 744.6 620.2
Profit/(loss) for the year FERiafl/ (E8) 20 13 96.1 639 (5.6) 172
Other comprehensive loss £t2EEE - - - = - (9.4)
Dividends BRE 10.7 - 40.0 8.8 - -
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised balance sheet

18 fEM#Es

Schrott und
Metallhandel
M. Kaatsch GmbH

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

EIIRRE ()

(b) REELHEZER (&)
a =

EEEEREE
Scholz Kalischatarra,
Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V.

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“®-\F ZEtF Z®-\F “E-tF Z¥-N\F 2 tf
+ZA +=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
=t-8 =t-B =t-B =t-R =t-B  =t-H
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M
BEEAT BEBT BBRT BE#T BERT BEBT
Current e
Total current assets TOEESE 155.8 1483 529.7 288.8 315.2 190.6
Total current liabilities RYRELE (80.5) (146.9) (419.9) (394.2) (243.2) @11.7)
Total net current assets/ BRBEE/ ()
(liabilities) ag 753 14 109.8 (105.4) 72.0 @1.1)
Non-current E ik |
Total non-current assets FrRBEELE 170.2 158.5 267.5 4545 1783 284.2
Total non-current liabilities FnBaELesE (104.0) (20.1) (115.5) (107.5) (30.6) (274)
Net assets BEFE 1415 139.8 261.8 2416 219.7 235.7
Group's share in % AEEREBAL 75% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50%
Group's share in HK$M AEEREBEET 106.1 1049 165.8 153.0 109.9 1179
Goodwil HE 9.6 10.0 46.0 481 16.3 17.1
Closing carrying value EXRKEE 115.7 1149 211.8 201.1 126.2 135.0

The information above reflects the amounts presented in

the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint ventures.

FREHRRIAKEEZES
BEEZEFBRERFARR
RZERELEZEAMBRE
EINZEH-
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ima TS IR T

19 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 19 BERIFRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired REE_FT—tF+-A=F+—HILF
certain property, plant and equipment of HK$59.5 million from a [E » 7N B35 B 0 BR B M a7 ZRIB R
related party by netting off amount due from that related party. RAHE 5 U A E5,9508 B L2 B TY

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20 BAVEFABRZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for BRAFEFABR 2 @MEELFES
trading and include the following: = BENAT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEABRT BEAT
Unlisted equity securities I ERRARE S
At 1 January (Note 2.1.1) ®n—A—8 (M&F2.1.1) 5.3 -
Disposals = (4.5) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 0.8 =
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or HERAFEFABRZ CREEMS
loss of HK$20.0 million are recorded in “other gains, net” in the W5 732,0008 87T - ik ASRE Bamk
consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7). [EfpdezsFaE ] (BIEE7) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
are all held as long-term strategic investments that are not
expected to be sold in the short to medium term and include the

ima TS IR &M GE

5 D TR AR R T2
SRAE
BAFEFARMEEKE 2 ©REE
B ERFFEHER A GHE 2K
HARmMIRE  BFEUTEIA:

following:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEETT

Unlisted equity securities I £ RAE S
At 1 January (Note 2.1.1) R—A—8 (f&E2.1.1) 116.1 =
Currency exchange differences E X =5 (5.1) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 111.0 =

Dividend income of HK$3.5 million from these unlisted equity
securities are recognised in “other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (Note 6).

% HIF LT RN E S AT RS A350
BETNGEABRR [HMBAl hiE
@ (Kfsze) -
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ima TS IR T

22 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22 HiIERBBE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+tF
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBTT
Deposits and prepayments R& RIERIE 5.8 7.4
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note (a)) A ftHEL @ EE (@) - 121.4
5.8 128.8
Note: B 5

(@)  Movement on available-for-sale financial assets (a) AHEESHMEEZED
2018 2017
e —T—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEBTT
At 1 January (Note 2.1.1) R—A—H8 (KiF2.1.1) - 46.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41(b)) W g AR (HEE41(b)) - 72.2
Disposal e - (10.9)
Currency exchange differences BN EE - 14.1
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A - 121.4
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ima TS IR &M GE

23 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 23 DEAFBIELEEE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEBT
Land use rights (Note (a)) + b A RE (HaE@)) - 38.3
Property, plant and equipment (Note (b)) %1% - = K& (KizE(b)) - 5.1
- 43.4
Notes: P 3 -
(a) Pursuant to the state-owned construction land use right transfer contract, a (a) RIREAZRAMERELERAR - —8f
land located in Shandong Province, the PRC, had to be surrendered to the RABELREN T AR -N\ERTF
local government in 2018. Accordingly, the land use right was reclassified as BB o ik - L BT R A B
asset classified as held for sale in the consolidated financial statement and BERPEFDOBERFIELEEE  WRE
an impairment loss of HK$92.4 million was recognised in the consolidated E_T—tF+- A=+ BLFENEK
statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Note Az kP ERREEE,2408 %8 T (M
7). The transaction was completed in June 2018 and a discretionary 7)) ZRGERZZE—N\FRATK I
compensation of RMB124.1 million (approximately HK$152.6 million) was EEMBAEREEIREEES AR
received after the negotiation with the local government. 1182,4108 7T (K91185,2608 %8 7T) ©
(b) A parcel of land located in the USA with carrying amount of US$0.7 million (b) REEN —REREEARKIOERET (K
(approximately HK$5.1 million), which was classified as asset held for sale as S1088 )Mt (R=E—tF+=A
at 31 December 2017, was reclassified to property, plant and equipment as at =T —HOBEARRELERE)R=2—N\
31 December 2018 (Note 14). FTAZ+—HEEHIBENME K
R (14)
EABRREBARAT —B-NFFR 237




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

24 INVENTORIES 24 78
2018 ' 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Raw materials JR A1 # 1,036.4 1,290.3
Work-in-progress &M 23.8 29.8
Finished goods BUPK o 1,045.5 1,018.4
2,105.7 2,338.5

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$16,566.0 million (2017: HK$14,682.2
million), which included net provision for inventory of HK$18.5
million (2017: HK$5.4 million) (Note 8).

As 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged inventories with a
net book value of HK$809.7 million to secure bank borrowings to
the Group (2017: HK$873.5 million) (Note 35).

R AR WA AHEKANFERA
{E18165186,6008 8 T (= —tF:
146188,2208 B L) ' BRETF EEE
¥H1,8508 B (Z T — £ F : 5408 %
ot) (KizE8) o

RZF—NF+=ZA=+—0 4&H
AR EFE A8EI708 B Tz B K
FE UERASEEZNRTER
—E— 44 :8(87,350887) (M
35) °

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 BH EENMEMEWFIE
2018 2017
—®8-NF —T+f
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
Trade receivables B 5 e WGIE 1,426.4 1,434.5
Less: Provision for impairment R E A (62.8) (127.8)
Trade receivables, net E 5 W RIE F 58 1,363.6 1,306.7
Bills receivables FEREWFIE 3.9 0.6
Deposits and prepayments Ee R IEMRIA 189.9 191.8
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials % 2 R # ¥ 2 2 iz & 40.5 55.1
VAT recoverable AR [EE AR 160.6 130.1
Other receivables (Note) H b fE U R IE (BT 5E) 123.6 308.1
1,882.1 1,992.4
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 B EEREEMERFIE

(continued) (%)

Note: As at 31 December 2018, the balance includes a receivable of HK$65.5 Wi RZT—N\F+_A=1+—8 &&%e1E
million (2017: HK$265.8 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a REFBEBRAEREMEEZ S RKGRIE
government authority in the PRC. 6,550 BT (=2 — L : 2{86,5808 8

T °

At 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged trade receivables RZZF—NF+=ZA=+—08 F&5H

with a net book value of HK$1,030.3 million (2017: HK$987.7 BEMFEAI0E3B30EBL(=ZF

million) to secure bank and other borrowings to the Group (Note — L :9(88,7708 B L) 2 EHEE

35). SEBGRIE  LERASEERRIRTT

R E AR (HERE35) ©

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the aging analysis of the trade RZZE-—NFRZZE—+tF+=A
receivables based on invoice date were as follows: =+—H - BESRWEIEREZE AN
BRI DT T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEBT
0 — 90 days 0£90H 1,323.5 1,335.7
91 — 180 days 912 180H 45.7 37.8
Over 180 days HiE180H 57.2 61.0
1,426.4 1,434.5
(a) Fair values of trade receivables () EZEWREATE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, AR B FE R IR R R EA 1
their carrying amount is considered to approximate their HEEHEERERREEAFEE
fair values. Ho

ESBREEERAR —E-NE£1] 239



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure

The Group measures the expected credit losses on the
trade receivables by grouping them based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
loss rates are estimated based on the historical credit
losses experienced, adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of forward looking economic conditions. On
that basis, the loss allowances as at 31 December 2018 are
determined as follows:

25 &

N

i

(b)

=
=]
=

2 BiR M B A IR

)
1B B R B AR
AEBERBAREERREER
BRI E 5 I WA Y TA HA
EEBRETHETE -TAHE
BREBEEEBBRLRMT
N7 4% 58 B DA B BR Ui 55 7 52 B R
fEl 2 48R~ BB AR R R AN &=
EREEEERRABRZER -
BREBEREE RZE-NF+=
A=t—RArBEEEEET N
T~

Gross carrying

Expected amount
credit loss rate — trade receivables Loss allowances
B S EWRRE
BHEEEFRE BEMEE EBERE
HK$M HK$M
AEATT BEATT
Active accounts
E AR P
Current 0.2% - 5.0% 969.4 5.0
BVER
Past due 1 — 30 days 0.1% — 25.0% 371.5 20.9
BER1E30KR
Past due 31 — 90 days 0.4% — 85.0% 53.1 8.9
#1HA31 290K
Past due over 90 days 1.9% — 100% 16.3 11.9
B0 HAHE 890K
Terminated accounts 100% 16.1 16.1
RIERRF
Total 1,426.4 62.8
#aEt
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of

25 BF ERENMEMEWFIE

N

=]
=)

nmE

(b) FEREBREE (&)
AEEE S RWFR ZBERE

trade receivables are as follows: ZEBEERMT

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—tF

HK$M HK$M

HEBT AEBTT

At 1 January R—A—H 127.8 17.6

Provision for impairment BER B - 109.2

Increase in loss allowance recognised & & 52 K 518 B #5128 AN 12.1 =
Receivables written off during FRMEEEN R YE 2

the year as uncollectable FE W kA - (1.5)
Reversal of impairment of H 5 EWGIE R E R D

trade receivables (74.6) (4.0)

Currency translation differences &5 =% (2.5) 6.5

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 62.8 127.8
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25 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 H5 - ZEKEMEWRFIE
(continued) (%)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) BEREREREE (H#)
As at 31 December 2018, provision for impairment of other RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8"
receivables amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million H b, 18 W % I8 R (B B 5 R 4980
(2017: HK$86.3 million). BET(ZT—L5:863088
JT) °
The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do 25 R REMERREBEAE
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any R A BEEEREERE K
collateral as security. SEYEBEEMERDEE
fRe
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, net REEZE 5 EWEIE (HkR B
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies: ) 2 EREE AT EEEEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
HEABT AEBTT
RMB AR 36.0 10.9
HK$ BT 30.9 46.1
EUR BT 829.8 883.4
us$ XL 329.2 2229
Other currencies HiE® 137.7 143.4
1,363.6 1,306.7
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables are AN ER B E At fE IR IE 2 BREE &
mainly denominated in RMB and EUR (2017: RMB and ZPUAREBERBT (ZF—+F:
EUR). AR REITT)FHE
26 FIXED RETURN INVESTMENT 26 [EFEEFHREE
As at 31 December 2018, the fixed return investment of RZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—H EB&H
HK$211.3 million (2017: HK$339.0 million) represented WITE2BINB0BB T (ZF—H5F:
investment carries fixed interest at 7% per annum (2017: 7% per 3183,900@8 B 7T ) IR FNZET% (ZF
annum) and will mature on 14 June 2019. The principal amount —+F  FHET% ) 2 EENEGFTE R
and fixed return are guaranteed by a private equity firm and the BR=ZZF—NFATMHEE R
director of the private equity firm. & Ae REFEBREBZLERER
AR HEEEER
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group enters into copper and other metal

future contracts and options in order to manage its exposure to the price risk

of inventories. These contracts are actively traded in an active market and are

measured at fair values based on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain
or loss recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities

future contracts and options were approximately HK$1,600.2 million (2017:
HK$429.8 million) and nil (2017: HK$136.1 million) respectively.

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 PTAESRTHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Derivative financial assets TTEEMEE
Metal commodities future contracts cEBERHBHESLN
(Note (i)) (PRFEEG) ) 34.7 5.3
Metal commodities options © B 7 HA
(Note (i) (HEEEG)) - 0.3
Foreign currency forward contracts INEE R BB S 4Y
(Note (ii) (PR EGi) ) 1.4 0.5
36.1 6.1
Derivative financial liabilities TTEESHEasE
Metal commodities future contracts cBRMHBEEY
(Note (i)) (PH=EG)) (19.9) (11.7)
Foreign currency forward contracts INEER BB S 4
(Note (i) (P =EG)) (0.6) (10.5)
Interest swap contracts (Note (iii)) =t HA A 49 (B 5 i) ) - (4.7)
(20.5) (26.9)
Notes: P& -
(i) Metal commodities future contracts and option (i) cEERBEAN R

RZZ2—\F+ZA=+—8 AEETL
MkEMEBREAHORME NEEE
FENERER ZFAOREREMERI
BROERYRBENHE A2 REEATFE
8 HEREERNGERERER

AEETBAMPERORAENRESL

SEH R ALN16E208B T (ZT—t4F:
4E2,9808 B LI RE(ZT—LEF: 18

3,6108%87T) °
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27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28

(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(i) Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$456.9 million (2017: HK$677.5 million).

(iii) Interest swap contracts

The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts in order to mitigate its
exposure to the interest risk. These contracts were measured at fair value
using observed yield curves at the end of the reporting period, with gain or
loss recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts
was approximately HK$187.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Pledge bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$313.6 million (2017: HK$95.0 million) have
been pledged to secure short-term bank borrowings, and are
therefore classified as current assets (Note 35).
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27 PTHEE®IA (&)

FieE - (&)

(ii)

(iii)

SEEREHN

AREE BT MK R I A K LARIESNE R -
ZER NN RERRERZHRERE X
ATFEFE HEBRSERERGRBERAR
TR -

REEINERBENNBBRSELORIE
56908 L (=T — £t F:6(87,7508 %

JT) °
FREHEH

AEBMBRT A EEHA L LURER =
R -ZEENRBESHREREEME
ZR R ATEFE HEBRREERN
FEIERRER -

HE-_T—tF+-_A=1+—HILEE"
FREHENNEBEARSEAL11E8,760
AT

28 BEEMETERNRE MRS
Z£EER
BRI IRITIE SRR T R A A E
BRI — AR T B ERRMTE R -
3181,3608 8 7t (—ZF— £ 4 :9,500
EST)MERE AR EEHRTHER
HER BB EARBHEE (M

35) °
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28 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 28
CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

EEMRTFANRE LIRS

FEEA (8)

A MREFERBERIHEH=1E
HEATHIRE R RRITHER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$M HK$M

AEBT BEASTT

Cash at bank and on hands RITRFERE 696.5 976.4
Security deposit (Note) RES (M) 0.6 =
Total cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEHERBRFE 697.1 976.4

Note: The balance represents a deposit placed with a financial institution as security
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposit is non-
interest bearing.

Mz : SREFASRABEEARGESBR®
HEANERNERE RESRTFE -

EaRREBERAH

—E-\FEFR 245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

29 SHARE CAPITAL

iEEN

Authorised share capital SEE R A
Numbers
of shares Share capital
RO HE N
(Thousands) HK$M
(F8&) BEATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at RZE—+F—-—H—1"
1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, —E—+tF+=A
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 =+t—HB —ZE—N\#F
—A—BR-ZT—NE
+ZA=+—RH~2
BREE0.01E T 2 Tl 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid ERTRERE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 1,619,739 16.2
Repurchase of shares (Note (a)) BEED (K@) (14,586) (0.1)
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and R —ZE—tF+ = A
31 December 2018 =t+t—H ZZF—N\F
—A—BR-ZT—NEFE
+=ZA=+—8 1,605,153 16.1

Note:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased
14,586,000 of its own shares on the Stock Exchange, which were cancelled
and deducted from shareholders’ equity at the end of the current reporting
period, at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$65.5 million. The
highest and lowest prices paid were HK$5.27 and HK$3.34, respectively.
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(a)

BE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—AHALFE XK
A F AR B 46,5508 74 TT iBE R BT S
14,586,000/% EL 78 & Z IR 15 © s Z AR B AR
s BRI AR AR SR AR s R 0 RR o BN R
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30 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 B5 ZEEKEMENFIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEAR AEBT
Trade payables Z 5 IR 1,042.9 1,192.8
Contract liabilities (Note (i) A8 E (M) 25.4 =
Other taxes payable H e HiE 70.9 180.3
Accrued salaries and employee benefits EatE e REERT 159.3 132.0
Provision for claims and contingencies RERIAFIEEE 20.5 19.6
Accrued professional expenses st BEEMX 28.9 47.7
Asset retirement obligations BEMESE 84.8 85.4

Other payables and accruals (Note (ii) H M e RIE K EET B A
(B E (i) ) 410.2 539.4
1,842.9 2,197.2

Less: non-current portion A IEMBNER S

Asset retirement obligations BERBEEMT (84.8) (85.4)
Other payables H M fE < RRIB (25.9) (19.8)
1,732.2 2,092.0

BESBREBERAR —E-NEER 247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR T

30 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30
(continued)

Note:
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

B 5 R MEMENFAR
(&)

B 5
(0] RENEERR M S

TRITIRAHE BHABRNEEES

reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. 48 EAR R A gk o
2018 2017
—®-N% —T—t%
HK$M HK$M
HEBT BEAT
Revenue recognised that was included in BEEEVEHNEBELRNA
the contract liabilities balance at the #) B R M
beginning of the year 17.9 -

See Note 2.1.1 for details about changes in accounting policies.

(i) The balance includes the contingent consideration payable with respect to the
acquisition of Scholz Group and its debt restructuring programme in 2016.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date
was as follows:

FHRSHBRED 2 HE B2HME
2.1.1°

(i) HHREFR_F—AFRRBIREAREE
REBEBEABABOENKAKE -

S RNFBRBEER A REDIT
L

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$M HK$M

BEART AEBTT

0 — 90 days 0£90H 1,007.9 1,133.5
91 — 180 days 91£180H 14.9 17.5
Over 180 days HiE180H 20.1 41.8
1,042.9 1,192.8

The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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BORROWINGS 31 f&X
2018 2017
=t Y-S —
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEEIT
Non-current IR E
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITE K (KizE@)) 388.7 572.0
Other borrowings (Note (a)) HAth fg 7% (i 7E(a) ) 1,738.1 418.9
Finance lease liabilities (Note (c)) ERE ST (MEC) 302.3 1421
., 2429.1 NEENIE
Current B
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) IRITIER (MIEE@)) 971.5 1,083.0
Other borrowings (Note (a)) Eanfg s (MisE@)) 250.5 379.1
Note payable (Note b) A ZEE (HaEb)) - 1,476.6
Finance lease liabilities (Note (c)) FEREEE T (M) 136.5 83.5
., 1,358.5 I
Total borrowings B 3,787.6 4,155.2
Notes: B 5

(a) Bank and other borrowings

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2025 (2017: 2024) and bear
average coupons ranging from 1.2% to 8.0% per annum (2017: 0.75% to

5.66% per annum).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's bank and other borrowings

() RITREMERR

%Eﬁf‘éﬂﬁmrﬂ OEEE EE -2 —f

RUE(Z2—tF:
iﬂ% F1.2%%8.

—E-MF) - FHY
0% (ZT—+F:F

FlZo0. 75%§5.66%) o

RF-—NEFR_F—

.

were repayable as follows: 8l Zli'i B SR 1T I E At fE 3R 2 B B8 3R
AT :
Bank borrowings Other borrowings Total
RITER HitfER #st
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\F =Tt ZB-NF ZB—+tF —T-N\f =—B-—tF
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
HE#ER BBET BE#ER BEATL BHEER BEAET
Within 1 year —FR 971.5 1,083.0 250.5 379.1 1,222.0 1,462.1
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 125.4 193.9 1,738.1 418.9 1,863.5 612.8
Between 2 and 5 years MEREF 252.5 3732 - = 252.5 3732
Over 5 years AENRE 10.8 4.9 - - 10.8 4.9
388.7 572.0 1,738.1 418.9 2,126.8 990.9
1,360.2 1,655.0 1,988.6 798.0 3,348.8 2,453.0
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

31 BER(E)
sk : (48)

(@)

AT R A A K ()

RITREAMERZREETIA T E &
a:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HKSM HK$M

HEBR ER--v

EUR BT 525.3 801.0
us$ E 2,315.2 1,020.3
RMB AR 371.7 481.3
Czech Koruna ("CZK") R (R 61.8 67.2
Danish Krone (“DKK") FAERA (2] 62.8 =
Polish Zloty (“PLN") R ER ([ZER]) 12.0 83.2
3,348.8 2,453.0

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had aggregate facilities of approximately
HK$6,614.2 million (2017: HK$6,370.2 million) for loans, factoring and bank
guarantees. Unused facilities as at the same date amounted to approximately
HK$2,341.4 million (2017: HK$1,430.4 million) of which HK$1,714.9 million
(2017: HK$1,156.9 million) represented committed facilities that could be
drawn down at the discretion of the Group and HK$626.5 million (2017:
HK$273.5 million) represented uncommitted facilities. These facilities are
secured/guaranteed by certain leasehold land use rights, properties, plant
and equipment, inventories, trade receivables and bank deposits with an
aggregate amount of HK$4,542.4 million (2017: HK$4,344.6 million) (Note
35).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has drawn down from
a new syndicated term loan of approximately US$220.0 million (approximately
HK$1,691.5 million) to early repay certain other borrowings and note payable
(Note (b)). The loan was guaranteed by USUMHK and Mr. Tu. The Group has
pledged the shares of certain subsidiaries to secure the loan.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values.
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BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

Note payable

On 20 December 2016, the Company issued a 8% note with a principal
amount of US$200 million to an independent third party (the “Subscriber”).
The note matured in 2 years from the issue date and can be extended for one
year subject to agreement of both parties.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, Mr. Tu and USUMHK shall also
provide a personal guarantee and a corporate guarantee, respectively, in
favour of the Subscriber to secure, among others, the due and punctual
observance and performance by the Company under the subscription
agreement and other documents.

The Company was subject to certain restrictive financial and non-financial
covenants. In addition, there were undertakings on ownership including
(i) USUMHK shall at all times beneficially own (directly or indirectly) a
shareholding in the Company, representing the single largest shareholding in
the Company, and (i) USUMHK shall at all times be controlled by Mr. Tu and
Mr. Tu shall be the single largest shareholder of USUMHK.

The Group has redeemed the note in full during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Finance lease liabilities
The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of

plant and machinery. The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the lessor
in the event of default of the lease liabilities by the Group.

ima TS IR &M GE

B (&)
B (40

(b)

(o)

ENEE

RZZE—RE+=-ZA=+H KQARM—
EBUE=H (RBABETRSER2
BETH8%RE - RIFMN 1T H HE M
FRNEH WEEFRE AIER—F-

RIERBBEHH REERABBEBITAR
RBADRREEAZEREARER &
BRERRARRZZRERETRATRE
1hh 7 R LA S o

A B S T SR 6B 75 K SR B 75 22
#)ouboh - B BN R R A B1E>)
AREBANIEREERER (EEXHE
B)ARBRE  RAARE—RARR:
K (i) EBAR A R R lR e A
BREESNBEENE —RAKRR

FEERBE_F-N\Ft+-_A=t+—8
I FEEABERRE-
MEEERE

AEERZERERHEAEEEREM
BErEBEAH - WARBERBEARE A
HREEENEFRELEA -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—+F
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT ABEETT
Gross finance lease liabilities REHESEEAE - -BEHEAK
— minimum lease payments
No later than 1 year TBR—F 145.1 86.5
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years BR—FETERASE 319.6 160.3
Later than 5 years EBREF 2.0 -
466.7 246.8
Future finance charges on finance leases MEMSHARREEST H (27.9) (21.2)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEHEEENRE 438.8 225.6
The present value of finance lease liabilities BMEHESEMNRENT :
is as follows:
No later than 1 year TEBR—F 136.5 83.5
Later than 1 year BR—F 302.3 1421
438.8 225.6
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32 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32 FEIERRREZ
Share of net liabilities of
subsidiaries
it FRARAEFEHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H (26.0) (32.8)
Transaction with non-controlling interests B2 IEIERRERETTR 5 - (5.4)
Share of (loss)/profit for the year FRNATE (B18) EH (2.2) 8.8
Share of foreign currency translation reserve Fff{h4NESFE 5, (&5 (1.2) 3.4
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8H (29.4) (26.0)
33 DEFERRED TAXATION 33 EIEFIE
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BIEMGHEERELEMEHAEZD
tax liabilities is as follows: HIEUENE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEETT
Deferred income tax assets: BEMSMREE:
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 11218 A & W= 7
after 12 months FIERIE & 2 97.8 150.0
Deferred tax assets to be recovered #5521 21E B R = /Y
within 12 months BEMRIEE E 50.9 18.1
148.7 168.1
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSHBE:
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BR1I2EAZREERN
after 12 months FEEMIEE & (340.0) (343.1)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled B 1218 A AEE A
within 12 months RERIBEE (40.4) (73.4)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (3804) (4165
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEMEHAETHE (231.7) (248.4)
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33 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 33 EAERIE (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FAELEMESHEERBEZEE (K
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of St A — B RERE R N e A R 8 )
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: U
Change in
fair value of
Accelerated derivative
Deferred income tax financial
tax liabilities depreciation instruments Others Total
i fTEEMIA
BEFEHAR BEHRE ZAVELE Hity @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEAT
At 1 January 2017 R=E—t&—F—H 324.8 1.1 315 357.4
Credited to the consolidated RiZEBHERFA

statement of profit or loss (14.3) (1.1) (16.2) (31.6)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WekEF AR (HiE41()

(Note 41(b)) 28.5 - 7.8 36.3
Currency translation differences [ =% 52.9 - 15 54.4
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t4

+-A=+-A 391.9 - 246 416.5
(Credited)/charged to the REEABREER (GTA)/

consolidated statement B3

of profit or loss (20.5) - 43
Currency translation differences [ ¥ =% (22.4) - 2.5
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—\§

+-A=+-A 349.0 - 314 380.4
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GHOnmRENE
33 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 33 RIEHIE ()
Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
HE RER
BEMEHEE REGE  HENE B’E  HEEA Hitr @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK§M
BEAT BEAT ABAT BEAT  BEART BB
At 1 January 2017 W-F—+F-f—H ©3.1) (273) (174) 06) (47.0) (155.4)
Charged/(credited) to the RiEABERNE/
consolidated statement (3t A)
of profit or loss 12.7 10.8 (6.3) (1.8) 03 15.7
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEF AR
(Note 41(b)) (Fi41(0)) = (1.0 = = = (1.0
Currency translation differences  EXZ% (15.2) 2.9 2.1) - (7.2) (27.4)
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—15
+-A=1-H (65.6) (20.4) (25.8) (2.4) (53.9) (168.1)
(Credited)/charged to the REABEE (GIN)/
consolidated statement B[S
of profit or loss (1.4) 438 1.1 0.9 2.1 5.7
Credited to the consolidated RMsa Et 2 ERERT A
statement of other
comprehensive income - - - - (0.4) (0.4)
Currency translation differences B X 2% 18 5.0 2.1 - 5.2 14.1
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\F
+=A=t+-H (65.2) (10.6) (22.6) (33) (47.0 (148.7)
The Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained BEEEEHRE T FRAMRB AT &
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax i# AR BLEZ B F A A K K BE & A EA
liabilities of HK$117.6 million (2017: HK$105.6 million) have AN TR F0 A N EL A A IR T 52 R AE PR S
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes MEE1E1,760B8 BT (ZT—+F:
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these 1145601%/%71:) RZE—NF+=A
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$604.0 million =+ R REHEF S A64008
(2017: HK$449.7 million) as at 31 December 2018. BT (ZE—+F: 48497088 7T)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried ARREREE 2 BIEEBRAER
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax FTiST & ZE \ﬁ@%ﬁfﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁlﬂ—f
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did FRARZERTRMNEREBR - ZJS
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$1,360.7 million & B0 BB IH B 1848187,6 708 8 7T
(2017: HK$1,421.3 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to (=% — ti 501%9,390%& /& 7t ) i 2
HK$4,876.7 million (2017: HK$5,093.9 million). Unrecognised EIEFTS B & E13186,0708 8 T (=
tax losses of HK$4,197.0 million (2017: HK$4,236.9 million) have g t¢ 141821308 8 7T) ° KR
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expiry at various %RIEEEETEMW 9, 7008 BT (—F —+
dates up to and including 2038 (2017: 2022). F 1 42183,600% 78 7T ) I A i i B 43

Tt TRIBBEER -E=\F (=2
—tF T %) (BRZE) R
A1 Z R B 8w
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-/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

imO RIS IR R 51

OTHER RESERVES 34 HumHHE
Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund plans reserve Total
EifitR
REEE  BRAREHE RAfE  E-REE  LEEREL EREiHH  NMERRE @it
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE#T BEAT BEAL BEAL BEAT BEAT BERL BERL
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(H30) (M) GE{)
At 1 January 2017 R=F-t§-H-A 59713 02 28 105.1 1051 - 754 6,485.9
Currency translation differences ERZ8
~ from joint ventures -REGELE - - - - - - (1.7 (n
- from group companies -REKEAR - - - - - - 6178 6178
Remeasurement of post-employment B EREERRB G BIER
benefit obligations - - - - - 04 - 04
Total comprehensive income Eh2ENEEE
for the year - - - - - 04 606.1 606.5
Transfer of reserves REER - - - 19 18 - - 37
Subscription shares repurchased and cancelled BORHEERD (654) 0.1 - - - - - (653)
Transactions with non-controlling interests HERRERETRS - = (119 = = = = (19
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tETZA=1-8 59119 03 2109 107.0 106.9 04 681.5 70189
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\§-H-H 59119 03 2109 107.0 106.9 04 681.5 70189
Currency translation differences EXZE
- from group companies -REEEAR - - - - - - (301.0) (301.0)
Remezsurement of post-employment BT ERRERBHERHRE
benefit obligations, net of tax NERE - - - - - 20 - 20
Total comprehensive income FRRERELE NRHA
for the year, net of tax - - - - - 20 (301.0) (299.0)
Transfer of reserves ffEEE - - - 0.1 02 - - 03
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE+ZA=+-A 59119 03 2109 107.1 107.1 24 3805 67202
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34 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

35

Notes:

@)

(ii)

Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.

Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the
appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

PLEDGES OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged
the following assets to secure certain borrowings and general

34

(i)

(ii)

35

H it (%

GEES

il

)

/

BAFEEQARRR-ET \FEES
ERFTREFRRRARRD BEEEL
EE AR R R R REFMEITIRD 2 HE
MERRDO T ZFERMEBRRERZ
o

AARFEFARNAKSIZARNRE
ARE T BIAAR & SR A RO MR EE 155
BEEN10% BN OETE — RIFR RBHEHE
RES -WEAE - REBREEERES
MREET B F A REMEARH50% - AlF]
RiIEBE - AT REBREEERRES
AT A TR 4 B 1 A B IR S AR AS

B E B

RBERR  AEEESERATEE
NERE TAKE 2 ETERE—RIR

banking facilities granted to the Group: TEE:
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEER BEBTT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)  #1% = M & (H:E14) 2,072.4 2,054.5

Leasehold land and land use rights THE 40 ]2+ Hb (5 A4

(Note 15) (HF&E15) 316.4 333.9
Inventories (Note 24) F& (kisE24) 809.7 873.5
Trade receivables (Note 25) B 2 W R IE (KizE25) 1,030.3 987.7
Pledged bank deposits (Note 28) B IRIRIT I (FMIEE28) 313.6 95.0
4,542.4 4,344.6
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36 COMMITMENTS ' 36 R
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, capital expenditure RZZE—NFRZZF—tF+=
contracted for but not yet incurred is as follows: A=+—8 BilHERELZ
BRI :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEETT
Capital expenditure contracted for BRI AERRERE B S HE
but not provided in the BENERMAY
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and ~ — W% B LR E
equipment 95.9 128.3
— additions in construction in —AREERIRE
progress 16.6 47.0
— set-up of a joint venture ——EAERE 4.1 -
116.6 175.3
Authorised but not contracted for: B &E R E R4
— additions in construction —ABEERIR
in progress 0.8 3.1
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the BE_Z—tF+=-A=1+—H
Group ceased one of its investment in the construction and IEBEE  AEEKIERER
operation of renewable resources recycling projects in Hebei HR A B A 7] B 4 B REIR
Province, the PRC. FATEE NERRES -
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36 COMMITMENTS (continued) 36 AIE(E)

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee (b) EEEERE-FEREBA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BT AR EHE 2 KR
cancellable operating leases are as follows: EEERNFEENT

2018 2017
—®-\F T tF
HK$M HK$M
BEART AEBTT
Land and buildings T REF

— No later than 1 year —TER—F 26.3 34.3

— Later than 1 year and no later —BR—FERIERASF
than 5 years 39.9 47.3
— Later than 5 years —BRAF 49.9 77.1
116.1 158.7
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEBRT BESTT

Property, plant and equipment VI WE R

— No later than 1 year —TER—F 25.8 11.6

— Later than 1 year and no later —BR—FERIERAESF
than 5 years 39.2 24.6
— Later than 5 years —BRAF 0.3 0.8
65.3 37.0
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36 COMMITMENTS (continued)
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36

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AHE (%)

(0 RKEHESEAE-FER/HAA
REBETABELERE Z KKK
EHEMFEEMNT :

2018 2017
—®-\F T tF
HK$M HK$M
BEABRT BEAT
Land and building T REF

— No later than 1 year —TER—F 11.9 25.0

— Later than 1 year and no later —BR—FERNERASF
than 5 years 41.0 26.9
— Later than 5 years —BRAF 31.6 16.1
84.5 68.0

37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 37 BRIKEFIETE

The table below outlines where the Group’s post-employment
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial

statements.

TERBARNEEF ARV HEREZE
BERBRBRZBREE -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$M HK$M
HEAT AEBTT
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: #r& B EBERMUA T FIE
ZEIME:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERA A (b)) 23.4 26.7
Consolidated statement of profit or loss REBEmREUATEETA
charges included in operating profit for: RN 221
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) FEMERE S (HizE@)) 6.1 6.2
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERME S (MFEDb)) 1.0 0.9
71 7.1
Remeasurements for: AT TIEZENT=
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERAGTE (HEE(b)) 1.6 0.4
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37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.
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37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans

The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans
for selected former and active employees of the Group's
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group’s internal
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in
the form of reinsurance policies.

The Group’s major plans are valued by qualified actuaries
annually using the projected unit credit method. The
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are
determined as follows:

ima TS IR &M GE

37 RIREREE (48)

(b)

RERBAGE
AEERAEBEREENETF
REIMEEEREMREEREE
tEE T REBAEMKTE -ZF
IR RREKFIRE R MEMNE
AR ERIREEA - % F5 8
RO BAREALEREE -
&% &5t 813050 B IABRER R E
ARG BB ERE -

AEEZEBEHEEERRKE
RifE AR B EREME R
HABEERBRRAERZERTY
BATHAEE :

2018 2017

=E-N\F —T—+F

HK$M HK$M

HEBT BEBTT

Present value of funded obligations BB E T HIRE 11.8 13.2

Present value of unfunded obligations £ B) & T #YIRE 17.3 19.0

Fair value of plan assets AEIEEMATE (5.7) (5.5)
Liabilities in the consolidated HEEAEARKRNARE

balance sheet 234 26.7
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37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 37 RKENEE (&)

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) FERME (&)
The movement in the present values of defined benefit FARERNEERIREEGE
liabilities and fair value of plan assets over the year is as BEMATEZHAT
follows:
2018
—E-N\F
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liability assets Total
RERF FEEE
EENARE HAFE @t
HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEER BEER
At 1 January R—A—H 322 (5.5) 26.7
Current service cost EHRBAA 0.6 - 0.6
Interest expense FIEHAZ 0.5 - 0.5
Interest income FISHA - (0.1) (0.1)
333 (5.6) 21.7
Remeasurements: EHE:
Effects from change in financal ~ B EBRESHF E
assumptions (1.5) - (1.5)

Return on plan assets, excluding B BER LR
amounts included in interest TR AMBRAR &5

income - (0.1) (0.1)
(1.5) (0.1) (1.6)

Currency translation EREH

differences (1.4) 0.4 (1.0)
Contributions it
~ Employers —Ex (1.3) (0.4) (1.7)
— Plan participants —irE2EE - - -
Payments from plans: SRR
— Benefit payments LU - - -
— Settlements -8 - - -
As at 31 December R+=A=+-H 29.1 (5.7) 23.4
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37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 37 RIKEFIFE (E)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) HREBAFE (&)
2017
—T—tF
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
liability assets Total
REBM SEEE
BEEMEE #RTE @&
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEBT BEAT
At 1 January R—A—HR 28.6 (4.5) 24.1
Current service cost EHRBAA 05 - 05
Interest expense FIEHZ 05 = 05
Interest income FISHA - 0.1) 0.1)
29.6 (4.6) 25.0
Remeasurements: EHE:
Effects from change in financial ~ BB ERREHNTE
assumptions (0.3) - (0.3)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ #E|BER LR
amounts included in interest TEEFAFERAR©E
income - (0.1) (0.1)
0.3) (0.1) (0.4)
Currency translation differences [ % %% 4.0 (0.6) 3.4
Contributions 3
— Employers -E=x (1.1) (0.4) (1.5)
— Plan participants —it g2 EE = = =
Payments from plans: SR
~ Benefit payments S LES - 0.2 0.2
— Settlements —#5 - - -
As at 31 December R+=A=t+—H 322 (5.5) 267
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37 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

37

(b)

RKEMEE (8)

RERAE (8)
BRI T BRERRNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$M HK$M

BEABRT BEAT

Discount rate AL IR =X 1.8% 1.5%
Future salary increase rate 2R HnFr e = 0% - 3% 0% - 3%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in
the weighted principal assumptions is:

RERBNTEE MEEERRE
BZHREMNT

Impact on defined benefit liabilities

HAEBNERANTE
2018 2017
—E-N\f —tF

Change in Increase in Decreasein ~ Changein  Increasein  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
BREH  BREM  BEREL  BEREY  RREN BKZED
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEERT HEER BEET RAEAT
Discount rate AR & 0.50% decrease 1.6 increase 2.0 0.50% decrease 2.0 increase 2.2
HA1.6 #£1m2.0 m42.0 #102.2
Pension increase rate iR 3 0L & 0.25% increase 0.9 decrease 0.7 0.25% increase 0.9 decrease 0.9

1 110.9

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38 EREDzemIE

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through comprehensive
cost  profit or loss income Total
BATEE
BEHEREA RAFEFTA Hitt2H
FIRZEE BRvEE BWAZEE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
31 December 2018 —E2-N\E+=-A=t-H
Assets as per consolidated REEESBRZEE
balance sheet (Note) (Htaz)
Trade, bills and other receivables &5 Z#E K
excluding prepayments H fih e IR -
NEERMTIA 1,484.1 - - 1,484.1
Fixed return investment EE B REE 2113 - - 211.3
Amount due from related parties & U B 75 2B 68.2 - - 68.2
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T£¢@T A - 36.1 - 36.1
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 313.6 - - 313.6
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEER 697.1 - - 697.1
Financial assets at fair value BRATEHABRL
through profit or loss SREE - 0.8 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value RATEFA
through other comprehensive Hit2EKE 2
income THEE - - 111.0 111.0
Other non-current assets, HERBEE -
excluding prepayments TEEENTE 1.9 - - 1.9
Total st 2,776.2 36.9 111.0 2,924.1
31 December 2017 “E-tF+=-A=+-H
Assets as per consolidated REEESBRVEE
balance sheet
Trade, bills and other receivables & 5 21 K& E k3t
excluding prepayments B NEERAZKE 1,642.0 - - 1,642.0
Fixed return investment Bl m R E 339.0 = = 339.0
Amount due from related parties  JEURBAEE /5 7B 205.6 - - 205.6
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£$@T A - 6.1 - 6.1
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER 95.0 = = 95.0
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 976.4 - - 976.4
Other non-current assets, HbERBEE -
excluding prepayments TEEENRIE - - 121.4 1214
Total Foh 3,258.0 6.1 1214 3,385.5
Note: See Note 2.2.1 for details about the impact from changes in accounting W AHCHBEEHELN TSNS

policies. 20MiFE2.2.1 ¢
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

38 mEMEDZERIA (&)

Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
BB RAE
SRz EHM  RAFERA
CRIBE BRvEE @t
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEATT BEAT
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
t=A=t+-H
Liabilities as per consolidated REEEAERZAR
balance sheet
Borrowings EEN 3,787.6 - 3,787.6
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA - 20.5 20.5
Trade, bills and other payables B85 EER
excluding non-financial liabilities Hfth FET 318
TBEFCRAE 1,204.8 182.9 1,387.7
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ R B 5 3R I8 66.3 - 66.3
Total #et 5,058.7 203.4 5,262.1
31 December 2017 —B—tF
+=A=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated GEEESBERZEE
balance sheet
Borrowings B 4,155.2 - 4,155.2
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA - 26.9 26.9
Trade, bills and other 25 ZER
payables excluding H A 308
non-financial liabilities TEEFEREE 1,622.6 186.5 1,809.1
Amounts due to related parties & {F R E: 73 R IE 110.9 - 110.9
Total #at 5,888.7 213.4 6,102.1

266 Chiho Environmental Group Limited  Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

En e MHFS IR ZEM5E
39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 39 BEARS
The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 62.85% of NEBEAEEBEG ARESHEE
the Company's shares. The remaining 37.15% of the shares are RA A)62.85%M% 17 o B #737.15% A% 17
widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Loncin HEZRAARFE ASERKERA
Group Co., Ltd (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate controlling AREESEEAR AR (R M
party of the Group is Mr. Tu. ) o REBBKREHT RREE
(a) Transactions (@ =%
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated R ERERE B 5 3R H Ath 20 B2
financial statements, the Group had the following BN REBRBEZZT—/\F
transactions with its related parties during the years ended EZE—+tF+ZA=+—H1k
31 December 2018 and 2017. FELEHERBEAETATR
5o
All of the transactions were carried out in the normal FIBRZHRAEER XK R
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed TR 58 75 BT i 7E B 1530
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as T FERmmT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$M HK$M
BEART AEBT
Sales of goods to MUATEHEEER
— Joint ventures — AR 97.7 152.2
— Related parties — B s 608.1 649.8
Purchases of goods from BUATEFREE D
— An associate /NG - (73.7)
— Joint ventures */\Mﬁ;\i (279.3) (316.5)
— Related parties — s (150.2) (146.1)
Interest income from RERTEIHFEHA
— Joint ventures —aE b 1.1 1.9
— Related parties — A B 2.7 =
Purchase of property, plant and BUTEREEMSE
equipment from B K 5% 1
— Related parties — [Ea - (59.5)
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 ML S (&)

(a) Transactions (continued) (@ x5 (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEAT
Interest expense to MUATEFEZAOFEFRS
— The immediate holding company —BEEERAR - (0.2)
— An intermediate holding company — —H EZER A ] - (1.4)
— Related parties — B (0.6) (1.5)
Other income from (Note (i)) REUATEHE MU A
(P REG) )
— Joint ventures —aEhHE 1.2 1.1
— Related parties — @A 2.5 1.5
Administrative expenses to (Note (i) [A1JA R &5 2 )
B X (BIEEG))
— Joint ventures —EEDHE 0.1) (14.9)
— Related parties — B (2.2) (8.1)
Notes: B 5
(i) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HWATERFEEEBKRA A

income, service income and commission income.

(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease
expense and service fee.
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39

(b) Key management compensation

(c)

Key management includes all directors, chief executive

officer, chief financial officer, chief operation officer, chief
investment officer and chairman of the Company. The
compensations paid or payable to key management for

employee services are shown below:

(b)

T RS (&)

TEEEEFH

IEEHEERRARFLRE
=2 TRER ERVBEE BRF
LER BHRREENRERE -FR
HEERBMENKENEIRE
BRENZGIRAT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Wages and salaries, including IB8RF® BEEEKAR
restructuring costs and other HoAth 4% -1 (12 7
termination benefits 29.6 22.3
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R K& Bk 28 — 7 FE R ET 2]
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits HAith (& 2184 1.6 0.6
Total st 31.3 23.0
Year-end balances () F##EH
2018 2017
—E-N\F =T — 4
HKS$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT
Receivables from: FEULLA T & 5 5/78 ¢
— Joint ventures (Note (i) — & & (W) 38.3 64.8
— Related parties (Note (i) —BAEE 7 (FTEG)) 29.9 140.8
68.2 205.6
Payables to: FEAT LA TS % 5 5008 -
— Joint ventures (Note (ii) — & &3 (MEEdG)) (29.6) (30.6
— Related parties (Note (ii)) — a5 (B L)) (36.7) (80.3)
(66.3) (110.9)
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39 BMARS (&)
(c) Year-end balances (continued) (0 FREH(E)
Note: Bt 5 -
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) EEERERB T RIERESE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable ZIEWRIA R K W R IH - B 5
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both FEU TR IB A HN60 A B IR - T H A
of them are unsecured and non-interest bearing. JEMGRIARIZBIR Z R EE - Z M EE
REH AEERRTHE -
(i) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) BREECERBB T RBRESE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 SRENREREMENRIE-EH
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both of them are FEAT FRIBARG0R AEE - T H b
unsecured and non-interest bearing. JERFRIARIBIR Z R ER - Z WA
REH AEERRTHE -
40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 ESHwEMNEEE
(a) Directors’ emoluments () E=HEE
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 BEZZ—NFER=ZFT—tF
December 2018 and 2017 is set out below: TZA=+T—RHILEFEREZESH
B D40 T
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus contributions benefits Total
RIRER
e FeRE RERAL HERE HipEA @zt
HK$M HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM
ABAT AEATL BEAT ABAT BEBT BEAT
(Note (b))
(Bt b))
Year ended 31 December 2018: HE-E-)\E
TZAST-ALEE:
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") (Note (i) ARERE (DALE])
(HI3EG)) - 23 36 - - 59
Mr. Qin Yongming (" Mr. Qin") FAKREE([REE])
(Note (i) Ed0)) - 5.0 42 - 0.6 9.8
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Note (ii)) BT (M) - 26 12 - = 38
Non-executive directors: FHTES!
Dr. Loke Yu BEHEL 03 - - - - 03
Ms. Qian Liping BESLT 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Zhu Dajian (Note (iv) EARLE (M) 0.1 = = = = 0.1
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (v)) KA (H3EY) 0.2 - - - - 0.2
0.9 9.9 9.0 - 0.6 20.4
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

40 EEEEANER

=\
wh O

(%)

BFs IR Bl 5

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @) E=B< (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus contributions benefits Total
BRER
#e HEREE RAAL AR 2t RA @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Note (b))
(Fi3E(b))
Year ended 31 December 2017: BE-E-+%
TZAST-ALEE:
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu")(Note (i)) BRRERE ([REE])
(BizE()) - 20 23 - - 43
Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin") (Note (i) KBB4 ([HEE])
(B (i)) - 44 28 - 03 75
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Note (i) BRREE (ki) - 0.6 05 - - 11
Mr. Liu Huaiyu (Note (vi) AEFEE (Hakwvi) - 05 - - 02 0.7
Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong (Note (vil)  “RFIBRZE A& (Fif&E(vii)) - 12 - - 04 16
Non-executive directors: FHUTES:
Dr. Loke Yu ESMEL 02 - - - - 02
Ms. Qian Liping BEYLL 02 - - - = 02
Mr. Zhu Dajian (Note (iv)) FAREE (H3ky)) 02 - - - - 02
0.6 8.7 5.6 - 0.9 158
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(i)  Mr. Tu was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 15 February 2016 and resigned on
17 July 2017, but remained as executive director.

(i) Mr. Qin is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 17 July 2017 and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as Chief Executive Officer.

(i) Mr. Wong Wun Lam was appointed as executive
director on 11 October 2017. Mr. Wong Wun Lam is
also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
10 August 2017 and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as Chief
Financial Officer.

(iv)  Mr. Zhu Dajian retired as independent non-executive
director on 12 June 2018.

(v)  Mr. Zhu HongChao was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 18 April 2018.

(vi)  Mr. Liu Huaiyu resigned on 7 April 2017.

(vii)  Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong resigned on 11 October
2017.

(viii) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors waived any emoluments during both
years.
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
paid retirement benefits to Mr. Tu, Mr. Qin, Mr. Wong
Wun Lam, Mr. Liu Huaiyu and Mr. Zhu Patrick Xiangdong
with HK$18,000, HK$18,000, HK$18,000, Nil and Nil
respectively (2017: HK$18,000 HK$18,000, HK$4,500,
HK$6,000 and HK$10,500 respectively).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
does not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2017: Nil).

ima TS IR &M GE

40 EFEREN Mgz (8)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

E/\

SRREEERAH

FEERNREF
REBEZZT—NFE+ZA=+—
BIEFE ARARRTLE F
EE-BHRFRELE FBEFEE
RARRR LD BT RIREF
18,0007 7T ~ 18,0008 7T * 18,000
BT ZERE(ZE—EF:H
7l /18,0007 7T + 18,0007 7T
4,500/ 7T * 6,00078 7T % 10,5005
JT)

RRAEESHREMEE=FREMH
Z &
RBE-Z-N\F+-_A=1+—
BIEFE ARRLEHRIEHE
ERBMEAERME=TZNRE
(Z2—tF:8\)-

FRERES HAEFEESEG
HWEEARREFTRESHER
FINEENENR BLUERRA
b3 5 K& ¥
RZBE-N\FRZZE—tF+=
A=1t—B BENEE 6
EEEGINERARREFRE
EHFRZEFNEBASIEANE
FBUEREEMZHZHE-

ESRXRE RPSENPZE
Rz

2NN B A BT 37 o] B R AR [ 25
BEEMARREERNETES
EX#ERE (TwERSLRE) A
A R B B [E A ] B ) 75
BBERRS RHEAH (ZF
—LEF &)
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41 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

41 EBEGH

(@) Acquisition of business of BNC Recycling Inc. (@) BUABBNC Recycling Inc.
(“BNC") (IBNC]) #7&
In 2018, the Group acquired substantially all assets and RZE-N\F -ANEEB2108
operations of BNC, which was principally engaged in %t (#91,6508 7 7o) W BEBNC
recycling of ferrous and non-ferrous metals in northeast (EEREEFIL R BB
area of USA, for US$2.1 million (approximately HK$16.5 RENEERRB) 2BRRBHEE
million). KR -
As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected W B 52 A% 12 - 2N 55 (B 78 HR A% AT 4
to enhance the Group’s processing coverage and sales AAREB Z MTRIBEE K HE
channels especially in the northeast area of USA. R LENEBERIL I -
The following table summarises the consideration paid NRBMBEEBNCEB BT 2 R
for acquisition of business of BNC, the fair value of assets B RIKEBESHEWEEERT
acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date: BEZERZATE:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$M
BEBR

Consideration: RAE:

— Cash consideration —BERE 8.1
— Consideration payable —ENRE 8.4
Total consideration BmRE 16.5

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

BRBRIBNEERMARZERELZ

acquired and liabilities assumed: EREH:
Property, plant and equipment M WE MR 0.5
Intangible assets mAE 16.0
Total identifiable net assets ARkl 4R A E R E 16.5
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41 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 41 EBEH(B)
(@) Acquisition of business of BNC Recycling Inc. (@) UXEEBNC Recycling Inc.
(“BNC") (continued) ([BNC ) %% (%)
Cash flows involved in the acquisition of business of BNC is W RUEEBNCETS 2 IR & i 2
summarised as follows: A
2018
t Y3
HK$'M
BEER
Cash consideration paid ERNBEeRE (8.1)
Add: balances acquired I PTUCEE A5 B
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEHER -
Net cash outflows of cash REMLFE—REES
— investing activities (8.1)

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.6 million
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Since the acquisition, the business operation and financial
reporting of BNC has been fully integrated within the North
American segment. Revenue and profit of BNC since the
acquisition date, and had it been acquired on 1 January
2018, were insignificant to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

EaRREBERAH

WHRE MR R K R Q608 B TTE T A
BE_ZT—-/\F+-A=t—8
LTFEEZHEBRRRTNITRA
o

BUEE AR BNCHO IS & B B
BHEEAEENS F2mE
A°BNCEHWE R KWK =
T—N\F— A —HEHKEHYK
HEEIREBEE_T—\F+=
A=+t—RHIEFEHAERMS
RIZES= N
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of DINOS d.d. (“DINOS")

On 29 November 2017, the Group and the joint venture
partner of C.1.0.S.d.o.o (“CIOS") entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in which the Group agreed to dispose
its entire interest in CIOS as part of the consideration in
exchange for 80% of DINOS.

Dinos is a metal recycler in Slovenia with 20% of its interest
was directly held by one of the Group’s subsidiaries,
while 80% of its interest was held by CIOS prior to the
transaction mentioned below.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Group
agreed to acquire the remaining 80% interest of DINOS
held by CIOS, in return, the Group transferred its entire
51.43% interest in CIOS to the joint venture partner.
Furthermore, several other assets, including cash, other
equity investments and receivables were transferred
between both parties.

Subsequent to the transaction, DINOS became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. The transaction is
accounted for as a business combination achieved in stages.
The Group remeasured its previously interest in DINOS
on the date of acquisition which approximate its restated
carrying value included in assets classified as held for sale.

The non-cash assets/liabilities transferred in return of the
80% interest of DINOS, including 51.43% interest in CIOS
(without DINOS), certain amount due from/to related
parties, other non-current assets, etc. were accounted for
as the consideration transferred and remeasured at fair
value at the date of acquisition. A gain on bargain purchase
of HK$96.8 million was recognised in the consolidated
statement profit or loss.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
streamline its group structure in the Balkans and enhance
its control over its metal recycling business in Slovenia.

276 Chiho Environmental Group Limited Annual Report 2018

41

XA 6 (&)

(b)

Yz EEDINOS d.d. ([ DINOS |)

RZE—+ttFE+—A=+Ah
H A"&EEECI1.0.5d.o.o
(TClOS ) MEEREER AL
BEEWZ ERASERELE
HRCIOSH) & Bt 2= - E R IER
DINOS 80%#E s 2 B (B °

Dinos/A 7% X fE 28 #) & B [ Ut
R TR ZA HAE
SE—HMTFRAREERFF20%H
%5 0 T EL80% HY # 2 AR CIOSHE
ﬁo

RIEBEE W NEEREWE
CIOSFf £ A DINOSHY £4 T80% 1
m ERRE AEEMELED
XEB AERANCIOSH 2 &
51.43%#Em oty BIEHE -

H Ath BRI B K USRI TE A Y
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of DINOS d.d. (“DINOS")

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41 EBFEH(8)

(b) UYrEEDINOS d.d. ([DINOS ])

(continued) (&)
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'M
HEBT
Consideration: RAE:
— Interest in CIOS and other equity investments — A CIOS B £ b iR AN 1% & 2 #E %5 187.9
— Assignment of loan payable to a subsidiary ~ —#EER F A RIE R 22.6
— Receivables transferred — R E W IR 5.9
— Cash received —B2 R (43.9)
Total consideration transferred, net peEEREFE 172.5
Fair value of shares previously held AEBBTFEHRD
by the Group OS] 269.4
Total consideration BRE 441.9
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets FRFTUCE A] B Bl & E
acquired and liabilities assumed: FiAEaENSE:
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB M 386.1
Intangible assets (Note 17) mEE (MisE17) 58.2
Other non-current assets HM3Eme&E 72.2
Deferred income tax assets BIEFRBREE 1.0
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHBHER 3.6
Inventories FE 63.3
Amounts due from group companies, net FEW S B A R FRIBFEE 28.3
Trade, bills and other receivables B EREREMEWRIKIE 230.3
Trade, bills and other payables B 5 B8R EMENRIE (144.7)
Borrowings & (118.0)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFBRAE (36.3)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT1S T B (& (5.3)
Total identifiable net assets 48] 3 B ﬁ%%ﬁ - 5387
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 7) HEEREE WS (MsE7) (96.8)
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41 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) Acquisition of DINOS d.d. (“DINOS")

41 EBEH(8)
(b) UYrEEDINOS d.d. ([ DINOS ])

(continued) (&)
Cash flows involved in the acquisition of DINOS is % MU EEDINOSZ 38 & m = it it
summarised as follows: UNNE
2017
—E—+F
HK$'M
BEER
Cash consideration received BWRESRE 43.9
Add: Balances acquired In: PTUCHS A5 B
— Cash and cash equivalents - ReRkBEEFHEIER 3.6
Net cash inflows of cash W& MmN EHE
— investing activities — R EE 47.5

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$0.4 million
have been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended

31 December 2017.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between
the consideration and the net asset value acquired
after commercial negotiation with the vendor. The gain
is included in “other gains, net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2017. The bargain purchase gain on acquisition of DINOS
is mainly attributable to the fact that other joint venture

WEEHERK A L4088 B LE T ARZE
E—HF+-_A=+—RIFEZES
BERPHITHAX

HEEERSAAREETETEER
g REEMKREEEFEZEZE
W ABE—_T—tF+_A=+—
AItFENGABRRAN [Hiblkzs
SREE | o IWBEDINOSE A H B B W ES
TEHREMALSEEABAREER
DINOSHI80 % A% #E °

partner was anxious to disposal to the 80% interest in

DINOS.

The fair value and gross contractual amount for acquired
trade receivables was HK$221.0 million.

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$79.2
million and net loss of approximately HK$9.5 million to
the Group for the period from 29 November 2017 to 31

December 2017.

Had DINOS been consolidated from 1 January 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss would show pro-
forma revenue of HK$19,509.4 million and net profit of
approximately HK$437.5 million for the year ended 31

December 2017.
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Reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash generated

from operations:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2 KEMRBHEE
BRATSTATR R EEE SRS Bk -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKSM HK$M
HEBT AEBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMERENE
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 75 AT U 2 469.4 546.2
Adjustments for: AT FIEHFE:
Finance costs (Note 10) ESAR A (HizE10) 412.7 416.1
Finance income (Note 10) BRI (KEE10) (36.6) (38.8)
Dividend income (Note 6) A BN (K 5E6) (3.5) (6.1)
(Gain)/loss on fair value change of BAFEFABRZ
financial assets at fair value through CREEZAFEE L
profit or loss (Note 7) (Yezs) /E1E (FEE7) (31.5) 1.7
Depreciation of investment properties BEYETE
(Note 16) (BTEE16) 0.2 4.9
Depreciation of property, plant and VI B REEITE
equipment (Note 14) (HMfEE14) 336.0 369.5
Amortisation of leasehold land and A& £ #h e 4 b {50 A AR 48 6H
land use rights (Note 15) (Fft5E15) 10.3 13.2
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) #EZ & E#8S (Hf&E17) 34.8 11.5
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BERZEZ
plant and equipment (Note 7) Yeas (ME5E7) (29.6) (16.0)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE 2 W
properties (Note 7) (FIE7) - (254.5)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESHEARELEEEY
as held for sales (Note 7) Wz (MEE7) (109.5) (38.5)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair ~ H&ZRAFEFABHZ
value through profit or loss (Note 7) SREEZ WS (HE7) (20.0) =
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 K E M W RIEZ
other receivables, net (Note 7) WE B FEE (FFE7) - 49.3
Net reversal of impairment on DEEEREREFE
financial assets (Note 7) (HIE7) (36.4) =
Provision for inventories (Note 8) TFERHE (MEEs) 18.5 5.4
Provision for impairment of property, NN & L
plant, and equipment (Note 7) WEEE (ME7) 1.2 14.3
Provision for impairment of leasehold HE TR RE L
land and land use rights (Note7) AR (MEE7) - 92.4
Gain on bargain purchase on MUEFRAIZ
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 7) HEBERE (HE7) - (96.8)
Compensation income (Note 7) RERA (MEE7) (45.3) -
Share of profit of an associate JE (Bt = A & A 0.7 (0.2)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(RE &R A (126.2) (108.6)
Non-cash post-employment benefit HFRCERELERRE R
expenses & FIF = (0.6) (0.4)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) SNEESIE  (Mas) F5E 2.4 (9.7)
847.0 954.9
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42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 LKEFBFIRE (
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEABT BEBTT
Changes in working capital EEEeH
Decrease/(increase) in inventories HFERL,(3Em) 121.2 (320.5)
(Increase)/decrease in trade, bills and other & 5 + 22 & H it fE I
receivables I (), (41.6) 21.7
Change in derivative financial instruments ~ $T4& & @l T A& &) 1.5 (3.0
(Decrease)/increase in trade, bills and B 5 B8R EMERIE
other payables CR ) /18 (300.5) 197.2
627.6 850.3
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RmeReneErx LEWE BE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: MR 2 FTS RIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HKSM HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Net book amount (Note 14) BREFE (ME14) 73.5 122.8
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&EZ
plant and equipment Wz 29.6 16.0
Proceeds receivables e U T 15 58 - (12.4)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BERREZ
plant and equipment R ;IR 103.1 126.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 REMBRE (8)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REZGERERER LEDBASE
disposal of assets classified as held for sale comprise: HEBEZFSHIARTE:
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$M HK$M
BEERT BEBT
Net book amount (Note 23) BREDFE (KE5E23) 38.3 33.5
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HESHEABELEEEZ
held for sale Wz 109.5 38.5
Currency exchange difference fEH =% 4.8 =
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESEARBELHEEER
classified as held for sale Fri8 ;IR 152.6 72.0
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from Rz RERER LEKEYEZ
disposal of investment properties comprise: FTisRIBBIE
2018 2017
—g-N\F —T—tF
HK$M HK$M
BHEETT BEBTT
Net book amount (Note 16) BREFE (Mizt1e) - 76.2
Gain on disposal of investment properties  H &R & ¥ ¥ 2 Wi - 254.5
Proceeds receivables (Note (i) FEARFr 5 58 (B =EG)) - (228.7)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREWEZFBRE
investment properties - 102.0
Note (i): During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received HK$195.2 @) : BEZT—NF+_A=+—BILFE"
million for investment properties which was sold in 2017. AEEFR T —tFEHENREY

F U E1189,5208 & Tt °
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ima TS IR T

42 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 42 gEmEHE (8)

(continued)
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements RETEIERFFRE T RATZ25) & HRH
in net debt for each of the years presented. BT REEE) o
Liabilities from financing activities
BEFBELHAR
Amount Amount
Finance lease Bank Bank Other Other Note Note Convertible  duetothe  duetoan
liabilities due ~ Finance lease  borrowings  Borrowing  borrowings  borrowings  payabledue payabledue  bondsdue  immediate intermediate
within liabilities due  duewithin  dueafter  duewithin  dueafter within after within holding holding
1year after 1 year 1year 1year 1year 1year 1year 1year 1year company company Total
R-FREE R-E438
HRERE HEEE R-FANE H-FANE R-FANE H-F438 R-FARE R-F4NE R-FREH BAERER AGTEER
| i3 RRE NBOER  HROER  NEERR  HERER  NERRR  HEGRE KNUERRR  QERR AA9RE it
Net debt as at RZ%-7%
31 December 2016 t=A=t-BH
EEEE 304 161.5 28497 3339 1106 = = 14648 67.0 197.0 10.1 52250
Proceeds/additions Fifgsa/FE 82 343 22144 2153 2850 4189 = - - 17 - 33088
Repayments BEE @1.7) = (4.4478) = (45.6) = = = (67.6) (209.8) (10.1) (4.8286)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) 72 31 77 800 - - - - - - - 1180
Other non-cash movement 78.0 (78.0) 1774 (1754) - - 1,464.8 (1,464.8) 06 - - 26
Currency translation differences 14 212 2016 58.2 291 - 18 - - 0.1 - 3294
Net debt as at RZB-t%
31 December 2017 t=A=t-BH
) 85 1421 1,083.0 572.0 3791 4189 14766 - - - - 41552
Proceeds/additions A 64.0 2510 980.1 350 = 16915 = - - - - 30216
Repayments -E e (91.1) (15) (11723) (926) (115.5) (431.6) (1,568.0) = = = = (34726)
Other non-cash movement AbRe%D 852 (852) 1204 (1140) (131) 503 914 - - - - 1440
Currency translation differences EfZE (5.1) (10.1) (39.7) (117) - - - - - - B (66.6)
Net debt as at RZ%-N%
31 December 2018 t2A=1-BH
EEEE 1365 3023 975 3887 2505 17381 = = = = = 37876
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEBBERNHEEBE
Balance sheet of the Company KRR ZEEEER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—tF
Note HK$M HK$M
B & BEET BEAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted NF R A Z&E  JE LT 3,500.4 3,500.4
Loan receivables from a subsidiary &Y 2 B E 90.1 58.6
3,590.5 3,559.0
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b fE UL TR IE 215.0 339.4
Amounts due from subsidiaries U F R RIFRIA 2,434.2 2,961.3
Amount due from a related party & 28 B 5 1A 0.6 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFHBHER 1.8 40.6
2,651.6 3,341.9
Total assets EEHE 6,242.1 6,900.9
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EREREE
Equity attributable to ARERREGER
shareholders of the company
Share capital A& s 27 16.1 16.1
Reserves 1 3,998.5 4,511.6
Total equity R 4,014.6 4,527.7
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ima TS IR T

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 EEABREFEED (B)

(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) AAEZEEABE (H)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$M HK$M
B BEAT AEBTT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEMB
Other borrowings HAth &K 1,738.1 4316
1,738.1 431.6
Current liabilities nE 8B
Accruals and other payables FEST B A I H i FE < 5k IE 18.3 48.2
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERFTFRRIFIE 471.1 4119
Other borrowings H a5 - 1,476.6
Current income tax liabilities BVHART 1S B B (& - 49
489.4 1,941.6
Total liabilities BEE 2,227.5 2,3732
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 6,242.1 6,900.9
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARBlZEEBRREEEZEZSEN-Z
Directors on 26 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf: —NEFE=ZA-+ R B#ETHUTES
REEE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming
REBERE FXKPLE
Director Director
EZE EF
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ima TS IR &M GE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 BEABRIHEZS (B)
(continued)

Reserves movement of the Company KARZRERE
Capital
Share  redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BEARE [
B fn s (8 s NG Rt E#E fst
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBTT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
(Note (i)
(PR EE() )
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF
—H—H 5,977.3 0.2 216.2 (1,628.6) 4,565.1
Profit for the year F R - - - 11.9 11.9

Total comprehensive profit 4 A2 [ A 48 58

for the year - - - 11.9 11.9
Subscription shares B RFERERN
repurchased and cancelled  (F{{7£29)
(Note 29) (65.4) 0.1 - 0.1) (65.4)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—t%F+—H
=+—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (1,616.8) 4,511.6
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ima TS IR T

43 BEAEBERNFHE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT ga) (8)
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) ERTZBERD (K)
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EXER
17 E e B E RitE#E ‘et
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
EE- v HEER BEBR HEER HEBR
(Note (i)
(HEEEG))
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F
—A—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (1,616.8) 4,511.6
Loss for the year FREE - - - (513.1) (513.1)
Total comprehensive loss FREABRELE
for the year - - - (513.1) (513.1)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+—8 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,129.9) 3,998.5
Note: Fff 5 -
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BEARREEQARAR-_ZENGFEEE

value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries

acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a

capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.
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COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

; . —esa
44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 4 ARAZFARFE
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries () EEFARN-—REHR
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL BRIRBERA AEEEEERAERR
FARER b5k /BIBE Vaidiles RER TBEH
2018 2017
“E-NfE  ZT-t%
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BEAM (FE)ERARA &b i 1%L Group and wholesales
of metal scrap without
processing
FEERERERBERE
MIZBECRE
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment, management
BABRERRARAR &b &k 10,0007 and trading
RE EELES
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company ~ The PRC The PRC 1S$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Limited* # HE 108,000,000% 7T metal scrap, production
aMEER e BERAR and sales of metal
products
NIRHEEBESE L&
RAELBER
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Co. Limited* H HE 40,000,000% T metal scrap
BARM(ER)BEERERAR MIRHEREER
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection ~ The PRC The PRC RMB55,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Co., Ltd* H H AR 55,150,0007C lubricating oil
REUERRMBEARAA MIREEE R
Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources  The PRC The PRC JPY 8,566,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Corporation* H HE 8,566,011,000F metal scrap
AEHRBEERNIARAR MIRHERLLE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
G| b | 18,1518 7T Group
FEEZRBRE
*  For identification purpose only
BERAREEERAR ZE-N\FFER
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ima TS IR T

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 44 KRFEZFRRFE (8)

COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries () EEFARN—RER (F)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
A BRIRBERSE FEBFEEERARER
FARER GEw /BB /B RER TEER
2018 2017
“B-NE  ZT—t%
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
f=E ZE 84,00081 7T metal scrap
MIRHEREEE
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
2E = 50,0008% 70 logistic services
RETE RN RS
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
(=5 (L 100,000,0008 7T metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs-GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
(1 ZE 25,0008 7T of real estate
BEREERIE
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
(&5 fzE 25,0081 7T companies
RERKTFEERA
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
{2E L 1,000,0008% 72 metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
Diamond Hurwitz Scrap LLC USA USA US$7,095,600 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
£ B 7,095,600% 7 metal scrap
MIRHERELR
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. USA USA US$48,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
X8 e 48,000% 7 metal scrap
NIRHEBELE
Uniscrap A/S Denmark Denmark DKK20,003,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
RE AE 20,003,008 % 721 metal scrap
MIRHEBELRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ima TS IR &M GE

44 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
(@) General information of principal subsidiaries

(b)

44 KRB ZTRAFF

5 (%)

(@) EEFLRAN—REH ()

(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
HEMRL BRTRARKRA AEEREEGRAERR
FARER BEw /BB /ERRA RER TEER
2018 2017
ZB-N\f  CEF
Uniscrap Sverige AB Sweden Sweden SEK100,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
kil I 100,00035 252 64 metal scrap
MIRHEBELE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
B E# 88,501,000 Z 12 metal scrap
MIRHEBESE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Republic of EUR15,000 100% 100%  Holding company
Austria Austria 15,0000 70 BERAR
B AR B AR
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.0. Czech Republic Czech Republic (ZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
R LM RR LM 499,834,000% 2 2 B8 metal scrap
NIGHERLEE
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
RRENE R EHNE 61,217,005 72 52 56 metal scrap
MIRHEREER
DINOS d.d. Republic of Republic of EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Slovenia Slovenia 2,279,70080 T metal scrap
R X BT AAE Mg X HAE NIRHEBELE

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned

subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

(b) BEREARFZREBRZHFZET

RNEZHE

E2HIFERE TR

HAREEEBM

EaRREBERAH

BlZ IR

EUTEX-

—=—)\FFHK 289
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ima TS IR T

45 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

(o)

The Company is a defendant to a legal claim by Delco
regarding an alleged non-payment of the loan advanced
by Delco Asia to subsidiaries of the Company, amounting
to approximately HK$57.8 million together with interest
and costs. Delco alleged that it acquired the assets and
liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011. Delco Asia was dissolved
by deregistration in 2012. Each of Mr. Fang and HWH
undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold the
Company harmless on demand against all losses arising out
of, inter alia, this claim in accordance with the terms of a
letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015 (the “Indemnity”).
In addition, HWH has paid the amount of HK$57.8 million
to a lawyer in an escrow account (“Escrow Account”) as
security for any liability of the Company in respect of, inter
alia, this claim.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers
and in review of the Indemnity and the Escrow Account,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.

The Company is a defendant to another legal claim
by Delco regarding an alleged breach of a letter of
undertaking in relation to a convertible bond issued by
the Company and subscribed for by Delco. Delco further
claimed against Chiho-Tiande (HK) limited (“CTHK") for a
sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to
CTHK. Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or
other relief of HK$6.3 million.

The court case is still in progress. The directors of the
Company, after taking legal advice from its legal advisers,
are of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision of this claim has
been made.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has contingent
liabilities of approximately HK$27.4 million (2017: HK$42.5
million) which consist of non-financial guarantee in favour
of investee entities.
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5-Year
Financial Summary

hEFR S

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of HEBREXREETEAHE
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

HETZ-A=T-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

“E-Nf ZZ—tF ZT—Rf ZZT-RF ZT—@mF

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEBR EBEBT BEAT BEAT BEBRT

Revenue Yezs 20,912.8 18,491.0 32114 3,136.6 5,878.0

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERANER]/ (ER) 469.4 546.2 (4436)  (1,143.7)  (1,067.6)

Income tax (expense)/credit FiEH (RX) /#% (70.4) (110.6) 0.4 (0.3) (3.6)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: NTEFERGR,/ (ER):

Shareholders of the Company ARAIRR 401.2 426.8 (439.9) (1,138.8) (1,058.0)

Non-controlling interests ERi ey (2.2) 8.8 (3.3) (5.2) (13.2)

399.0 435.6 (443.2) (1,144.0) (1,071.2)

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet HEEERBRETHAMHSE

As at 31 December

R+-A=1+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\F T+t ZZ—% ZT-hF —T-@OEF
HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT ASEn HEAET BEET AEBAR

Asset BE
Current assets MEBEE 5,329.5 6,022.2 6,602.3 4,920.3 2,659.1
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,058.0 6,071.5 5,183.4 1,117.6 981.9
Total assets AEHRE 11,387.5 12,093.7 11,785.7 6,037.9 3,641.0
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities mEBE 3,298.0 5,365.2 5,032.9 1,481.1 2,960.2
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 2,943.6 1,681.4 2,668.4 143.0 37.5
Total liabilities BELE 6,241.6 7,046.6 7,701.3 1,624.1 2,997.7
5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 4,413.8 643.3
Equity attributable to: ATE R EGRER
Shareholders of the Company ARAIRR 5,175.3 5,073.1 41172 4,487.9 724.0
Non-controlling interests e T (29.4) (26.0) (32.8) (74.1) (80.7)
5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4 4,413.8 643.3

ESBREEERAR —E-NE£1] 291



Corporate
Information

ral&sii

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(appointed on 18 April 2018)
Mr. Zhu Dajian
(retired on 12 June 2018)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Wong Wun Lam

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(appointed on 18 April 2018)
Mr. Zhu Dajian
(retired on 12 June 2018)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Hongchao

(appointed on 18 April 2018)
Mr. Zhu Dajian

(retired on 12 June 2018)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(Chairman, appointed on 18 April 2018)
Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Qian Liping
Mr. Zhu Dajian
(retired on 12 June 2018)

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Wong Wun Lam

Mr. William Thomas Bird
(appointed on 13 June 2018)

Mr. Goh Kian Guan

PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Wun Lam
Mr. William Thomas Bird
(appointed on 4 January 2018)
Mr. Udo Langhans
(appointed on 4 January 2018)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
(retired on 4 January 2018)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting
(appointed on 3 July 2018)
Mr. Koon Wai Hung
(resigned on 3 July 2018)

Corporate Information
ral&id

HIEAE
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P g MRIE
BN T
EARAREEE
(RZZF—NFNAF+ZHREF)
HISEEELZE S
KL (£/F)
IRBRIESE
William Thomas Bird 5t 4
(RZF-—NFANAF=—HEZE)
RIE@REAE

o EE S = A
TELZES

=KL E (£/F)

William Thomas Bird 5t 4
(R=ZF-NF—AMAEZF)

Udo Langhansit 4
(RZFE-NF-HAOABZET)

RIERSEAE
(RZF—-NF—HAIHRFE)

BRERE

RERELE

PhEs R+
(R-F—)\F+ A= ARE(E)

B A S A
(R=F—NF+A=AFHE)
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Wong Wun Lam

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Mr. William Thomas Bird

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu Yi Ting
(appointed on 3 July 2018)
Mr. Koon Wai Hung
(resigned on 3 July 2018)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
DLA Piper (Hong Kong)

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert (Hong Kong)

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)

Zhejiang Xingce Law Firm (China)
Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)

CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)

Menold Bezler (Germany)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
KeyBank National Association
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REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street
Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F., Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 8, Baijin Road

Taizhou Renewable Metal Resources Industry Base
Lugiao, Taizhou

Zhejiang

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Deutschland

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AND CENTRAL
AMERICA

2144 W. McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website
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Corporate Information
ral&id

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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Coann

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
EeRREEERAF

48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

EHITUBA T WP LEHT485%

Tel EB5&: (852) 2587 7700 / (852) 2589 3500

Fax {5 E: (852) 2587 7799
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